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@ Our Mission

ACI's Mission is to enrich the quality of life of the people
through responsible application of knowledge, skills and
technology. ACI is committed to the pursuit of excellence
through world-class products, innovative processes and
empowered employees, to provide the highest level of
satisfaction to our customers.

@ Qur Vision

To realise the Mission, ACI will :

© Endeavour to attain a position of leadership in each category
of our business.

Provide products and services of high and consistent quality,
ensuring value for money to our customers.

Attain a high level of productivity in all our operations
through effective utilisation of time and adoption of
appropriate technology.

Develop our employees by encouraging empowerment and
rewarding innovation.

Promote an environment for learning and personal growth.

Ensure superior return on investment through judicious use
of resources and efficient operations, utilising our core
competencies.

Promote inclusive growth by encouraging and assisting our
distributors and suppliers in improving efficiency.

Our Values

Quality
Customer Focus
Innovation
Fairness
Transparency

Continuous Improvement
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UN Global Compact

Global Compact is an initiative to encourage businesses worldwide to adopt
sustainable and socially responsible policies, and to report on their
implementation. The UN Global Compact encourages companies to embrace a set
of core values in the areas of human rights, labor standards, the environment and
anti-corruption. Since 2000, the United Nations Global Compact has called on
companies to strategically address environmental, social and governance issues in
their operations, in the belief that responsible business actions can underpin
economies with core values that are essential for building trust in markets, driving
growth and spurring development. Under the Global Compact, companies are
brought together with UN agencies, labor groups and civil society. This ever-
increasing understanding is reflected in the Global Compact's rapid growth. With
over 8700 corporate participants and other stakeholders from over 130 countries,
it is the largest voluntary corporate responsibility initiative in the world. Overall,
the Global Compact pursues two complementary objectives:

1. Mainstream the ten principles in business activities around the world.

2. Catalyze actions in support of broader UN goals, including the Millennium
Development Goals (MDGS).

The Global Compact incorporates a transparency and accountability policy known
as the Communication on Progress (COP). The annual posting of a COP is an
important demonstration of a participant's commitment to the UN Global Compact
and its principles. Participating companies are required to follow this policy, as a
commitment to transparency and disclosure is critical to the success of the
initiative.

Since September 2003, ACI is a proud and active member of the UN Global
Compact and for the past three years it is the only Bangladeshi company who
submitted a notable Communication on Progress Report.

ACI has been accepted as a Founding
Member of the Community of Global

On the occasion of the Inaugurol Annual Meeting of the New Champior

Growth Companies by the World we rs plcied o valcome
Economic Forum which is the most Advanced Chemical Industries Limited
prestigious business networking
organisation, this membership is a W
' #id
matter of pride for us. ~

Banglodesh

s a Faunding Member of the Communily of Global Grawth Companies
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CSR Activities of ACI in 2011

The core initiative of ACI Limited (ACI) is to improve the living standards of the
Bangladeshi people by applying ACI's core competencies from different business sectors
like pharmaceuticals, consumer and commaodity products, and agribusinesses. ACI's
endeavor is to implement the core values of United Nation Global Compect (UNGC) with
its business policy and system and perform CSR activities in areas where it can utilize
its business experience and expertise. In year 2011 ACI endeavored to support and
enact the core values of UNGC by performing and extending its CSR activities in the
areas of human rights, social upliftment and protecting the environment.

"Adopt-a-Village" is a sanctified initiative of ACI endeavoring to improve the
economic and social condition of remotest parts of Bangladesh. Through a random
selection, ACI adopts a village and helps the villagers to improve the health,
educational and social infrastructure. However, the main purpose of this project is to
motivate the villagers to improve their fate on self-help basis, where ACI only works as
a catalyst, standing beside the villagers to assist them to change their fortune.
Ghonapara, a village in Gopalganj district, has been selected in 2009 and from then
many CSR activities were carried out there. In 2011 these CSR activities have been
extended for greater community development. ACI has organized a day-long health
camp program in Ghonapara to alleviate the health related problems by providing
medical services to the feeble people. ACI has provided necessary medical instruments
for the camp and also supplied necessary medicines. The response from the villagers
was positive. In 2011, a medical and eye camps were also organized with the help of
ACI. About 680 patients received free treatment and medicines. ACI aided 16 eye
cataract patients to regain their eye sight by operating them free of cost. Besides, ACI
has ensured safe drinking water for the villagers by sponsoring 5 deep tube-wells in the
village. A continued motivational activities was carried out among the local people of
Ghonapara village on vegetables cultivation, homestead gardening, inter-crop
operation, health and hygiene practices. ACI, along with some other entities, has
organized a day-long training program on "Safe and Judicious Use of Pesticides and Film
Show" where 34 farmers received training and certificates from Bangladesh Crop
Protection Association (BCPA).

ACI partnering with CARE funded the medical camp named "Amar Shasthya" (My
Health) since 2009 aiming to facilitate medical service to the people who were suffering
from health problems. "Tothyo Tori" or Information Boat carries information and
services close to remotest and most marginalized people of Bangladesh to alleviate
their misery. All boats were equipped with doctors, medical attendants, medicines and
other essential utilities that were necessary to serve the patients in the eastern and
northern parts of the country. In the year 2011, as part of continuing program, twelve
camps were arranged in different villages of Rangpur, Bogra and Thakurgaon districts.
About 1207 people were served in these medical camps and received medicines and
consultation services from the medical teams.

ACI along with "Smiling Sun Franchise Program" (SSFP) arranged an awareness
program of hand washing with soap to celebrate Global Hand Washing Day held on 15
October 2011. ACI along with the association of SSFP distributed Savlon hand wash and
bar soaps among all divisional schools. Advisory leaflets were also distributed to inform
children the proper way of washing hands and protect themselves from diseases. A total
of 1 million people washed hands in appropriate way through the assistance of ACI and
with the help of SSFP and its 323 static clinics.

ACI Motors (a subsidiary of ACI) using its own tractors took the initiative to arrange a
free cultivation program in Gaibandha for the helpless and poor farmers and cultivated
250 bigha of land in 24 hours. ACI considers it as a social commitment and contribution
towards the national development. The poor farmers of the locality also consider it as a
noble gesture from the company.

For further information on the Compact, please visit www.unglobalcompact.org
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Annual General Meeting

The Record Date in lieu of Book-Closure shall be on Wednesday, 16 May 2012.

The Shareowners' names appearing in the Register of Members of the Company or in the Depository
on the Record Date will be eligible to receive the dividend.

The Directors have recommended dividend as follows:
i) Cash dividend: @80% per share of Taka 10 each for the year ended 31 December 2011.

ii) Stock dividend: @20% (i.e. 1 (one) bonus share for every 5 (Five) Ordinary Share of Tk. 10
each for the year ended 31 December 2011.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and
vote on his/her behalf. The Proxy Form, duly completed, must be deposited at the Share Office of
the Company at 9 Motijheel Commercial Area, Dhaka-1000 not later than 48 hours before the time
fixed for the Meeting.

Members are requested to notify the changes of address, if any, well in time. For BO A/C holders,
the same to be notified through their respective Depository Participants.

Admittance to the Meeting venue will be on production of the Attendance Slip that will be sent with
the Notice.




Year 2011 - at a Glance

Sales Contribution by Business Unit

B
2011 2010

Pharmaceuticals 44% Cropex A Pharmaceuticals 42% D Cropex 10%
B Consumer Brands 33% B Seeds B Consumer Brands 31% E Seeds 4%
Livestock & Fisheries 9% B Fertilizer C Livestock & Fisheries 10% F Fertilizer 3%

Net Sales Income & Shareowners' Equity Earnings Per Share (Taka)
Profit Before Tax (Taka in Million) (Taka in Million)
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ACI Group's Six Years' Comparative Statistics from 2006-2011

Particulars 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Taka in million

Authorized capital 500 500 500 500 500 500
Issued & paid capital 162 162 162 194 194 197
Current assets 2,140 3,228 5,926 7,639 7,591 8,486
Tangible fixed assets (gross) 1,393 1,949 3,822 4,394 5,255 6,322
Shareowners' equity 1,212 1,794 2,667 3,200 4,328 4,195
Turnover (net) 4,237 5,756 10,341 12,300 14,498 17,460
Gross profit 1,467 2,007 3,052 3,584 4,140 4,835
Profit before tax 290 531 1,095 769 471 593
Profit after tax 165 340 918 598 216 238
Current ratio (times) 1.00 0.93 0.99 1.07 1.05 0.90
Quick ratio (times) 0.42 0.47 0.47 0.68 0.60 0.50
Return on equity (%) 13.61 18.95 34.42 18.69 5.00 5.67
Inventory turnover (times) 2.24 2.37 2.32 3.14 3.13 3.40
Debtors turnover (times) 9.59 6.35 5.52 4.67 5.45 5.50
Fixed assets turnover (times) 3.04 2.95 3.47 3.73 3.02 3.21
Net asset per share (Taka) 74.95 110.95 164.94 164.91 223.05 212.74
Earnings per share (Taka) 10.19 20.99 56.67 30.82 11.14 12.11
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ACI Limited's Six Years' Comparative Statistics from 2006-2011

Particulars

Taka in million

Authorized capital

Issued & paid capital
Current assets

Tangible fixed assets (gross)
Shareowners' equity
Turnover (net)

Gross profit

Profit before tax

Profit after tax

Dividend

Current ratio (times)

Quick ratio (times)

Return on equity (%)
Inventory turnover (times)
Debtors turnover (times)
Fixed assets turnover (times)
Net asset per share (Taka)
Market price per share (Taka)
Earnings per share (Taka)
Dividend per share (Taka)
Dividend rate (%)

Dividend payout ratio (%)
Price earnings ratio (times)
Dividend yield (%)

Number of employees

Analysis of Turnover (%)

7%
11%

17%

19%

2006

500
162
1,755
1,131
974
3,516
1,176
233
154
97
1.00
0.60
15.79
3.30
10.00
5.10
60.24
70.20
9.51
6.00
60.00
63.09
7.38
8.55
2,476

Comparison of Turnover & Costs over last year

Turnover (Gross)
Cost of Materials

Duties & Taxes paid to Government Exchequer

Expenses

Salaries, Wages & Benefits paid to employees

Profit
Total

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
500 500 500 500 500
162 162 194 194 197

3,121 4,987 5,369 5,856 6,955

1,541 1,700 1,830 1,813 2,546

1,255 2,340 3,241 4,458 4,767

4,917 7,365 7,228 7,915 8,514

1,667 2,278 2,366 2,821 3,161
426 1,184 1,108 808 893
308 1,076 990 592 681
137 194 204 237 198
1.00 1.13 1.13 1.43 1.31
0.65 0.66 0.66 1.01 0.98

24.54 45,98 30.55 13.28 14.29
3.56 3.20 3.05 2.97 3.01
7.51 6.68 6.22 7.78 7.52
5.72 6.56 6.15 4.51 3.65

77.61 136.34 167.06 229.75 241.82

181.70 521.30 447.10 372.60 206.60

19.03 55.43 51.00 30.49 34.64
8.50 12.00 10.50 12.00 10.00

85.00 120.00 105.00 120.00 100.00

44.67 21.65 20.59 39.36 28.87
9.55 9.40 8.77 12.22 5.96

4.68 2.30 2.35 3.22 4.84

3,050 3,339 3,552 3,378 4,014

@ Cost of Materials 46%

® Duties & Taxes paid to
Government Exchequer 19%

46%
B Expenses 17%
B Salaries, Wages &
Benefits paid to employees 11%
= Profit 7%
2010 %
9,726.22 100 8,850.31 100
ESSINESE 435708 494
1,818.07 18.69 1,464.82 16.55
PEosANNi748l  1,533.95 17.33
1,061.22 10.91 902.67 10.20
68182 7.01 591.59 6.68
9,726.22 100.00 8,850.31 100.00
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What we need to
do is to choose
projects which
can make use of

our core
competency and
relevant to our
stakeholders'
interest.
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Assalamu Alaikum,

I welcome you to the 39th AGM. The share market has gone
through several turmoils and the innocent investors have
suffered. There was no reason for the price fluctuation,
particularly of our shares, but it happened. I can attribute the
reason for the price fluctuation to nothing other than share price
manipulation. The SEC has begun investigation and I hope they
find the responsible group and punish them. My heartfelt
sympathy for the innocent share holders who suffered losses.

The year was difficult for all businesses. Banks had liquidity
problem and the interest rate fluctuated considerably. Thus
imports of active ingredients became costlier. We are a highly
geared company and therefore we took a big hit due to interest
rate increase. On top of those the currency value depreciated
considerably. Food price went up, fuel cost increased and
inflation crossed double digit mark. Management of the business
under those adverse macro economic conditions were
challenging. In some cases margin eroded and in some cases
sale volume was affected. All those factors had adverse effect on
our bottom line. Some subsidiaries have done well and some




o
P/

have not. The explanation on their performance
will be found in the Director's Report.

As a socially conscious business house we have
undertaken several new social projects and
continued some on-going projects under our CSR
policy. We consciously refrain from getting carried
away in our CSR activities. Honest payment of
Taxes e.g. Income Tax, VAT, Customs Duty are
our primary responsibility which enables the
government to undertake social development
plans. What we need to do is to choose projects
which can make use of our core competency and
relevant to our stakeholders' interest. That is why
we are selective and limited in our CSR activities.

We are committed to help our employees to reach
their highest potential. To fulfill that we have an
excellent team of trainers and there are training
programmes which taken together covers most of
our employees in overcoming their deficiency in
their current jobs and teach them to be ready to
step into the next higher responsibility. For higher
responsibilities we prefer selection from within but
we do not compromise on quality of the recruit.

I thank members of the Board for providing
valuable guidance and advice. The feedback we
get from the shareowners at the Annual General

Meeting are valuable inputs for us in steering the
company on to the desired path.

Most of all, my sincere thanks and appreciation
for management staff as well as non-management
staff for their loyalty, dedication and under -
standing. An incident in our Narayanganj factory
was amicably settled through the forward - looking
leadership of our managers and workers and I am
grateful to them for their supportive role.

Dear Shareowners, we believe in the tremendous
possibility of economic growth of the country and
we are constantly on the watch to participate in
that growth which will benefit our stakeholders as
well as the people as a whole.

I wish the company all success and all of you to
benefit from its operation.

Allah Hafez.

Jor S,
N

Y
v .

M Anis Ud Dowla
Chairman
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Corporate Governance

ACI Board of Directors is committed to meeting the highest standard of corporate
governance and disclosure. The Directors are conscious of their responsibilities in
supervision and direction of the affairs of the Company in conformity with the
practices of sound corporate governance. In fulfilment of those responsibilities the
Directors have set for themselves the principles that will be followed in their own
involvement in the oversight function and in setting up clear guidelines for the

ive management.

Composition of the Board

The Board presently consists of 8 members drawn
from amongst the major shareowners and business
professionals. Mr. M Anis Ud Dowla currently
occupies the position of the Chairman of the Board
and Dr. Arif Dowla as its Managing Director.

Role of the Board

The Board is the highest level of authority of the
Company to oversee its operation through
appropriate delegation, reporting and control.

Responsibility of the Board

The Directors hold the ultimate responsibility of
conducting the activities of the Company in
accordance with the law and in the interest of its
shareowners and other stakeholders, keeping in
view the long-term interest of the Company.

Functioning of the Board

The Board is required under the law to meet at
least once in three months. The number of Board
Meetings held in 2011 was four. The Executive
Directors are kept informed of the results and the
major activities through distribution of monthly
statements and all directors are kept informed
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through quarterly reporting by the Managing
Director. The Board agenda includes financial
results, consideration of major investments, new
business initiatives, borrowings, liquidity etc. in
addition to statutory approvals.

Audit Committee

The Board has set Audit Committee which is a sub-
committee of the Board of Directors and is
appointed and authorized by the Board to
review the activities of the Company. The Audit
Committee comprises of 3 members with Mr.
Golam Mainuddin - the Independent Director as its
Chairman. The Committee met for four times
during the year and reported its findings and
submitted its recommendations for consideration
of the Board.

Management through People

The Board has approved the organogram of the
Company, ensuring clear lines of reporting for
each Strategic Business Unit. The Board is kept
informed of the goals and targets of the Business
Units and takes account of the financial
performance on a quarterly basis.




Management Committee

The Board has delegated adequate operational and
financial authority to the Managing Director to
manage the operations of the Company. The
Managing Director conducts the affairs of the
Company through further delegation down the
line and in consultation with a Management
Committee. Senior managers of the Company
with responsibilities for the business, operations
and functional services are members of the
Management Committee. Committee usually meets
once a month to discuss the business results, to
review the prevailing business conditions and
discuss policy matters. Consensus building as
a management style is encouraged in the
deliberations of the Management Committee
meetings. The Managing Director is responsible
for implementing the Board's decision and he uses
the Management Committee as a consultative
body to advise and assist him on issues under
consideration. The Management Committee also
advises the Managing Director on new products,
major items of capital expenditure and overall
supervision of the affairs of the Company.

Empowerment of People

The Board has given clear guidelines to the
Managing Director to ensure that there is
appropriate delegation of authority and clear
statement of accountability of the management
staff all the way down to the Supervisory level and
that performance of the individual is judged on the
basis of clearly set measurable goals and through
objective assessment of their achievement.

Internal Control

The Managing Director has to satisfy the Board
that adequate internal checks and controls are in
place through appropriate MIS and employment
of Internal Audit team to check and validate
the expenses and the systems in operation. To
further strengthen the controls, the Company has
introduced ISO 9001:2008 Quality Management
System under which all activities are carried out

on the basis of Standard Operating Procedures.
These standard procedures are updated on a
regular basis in line with ISO requirements. The
Company has also introduced ISO 14001:2004
Environmental Management System, the first
Company in Bangladesh to do so and as a result
has undertaken a task of continuing improvement
through annual goals. Internal Audit department
has been strengthened with induction of qualified
and experienced personnel, showing Board's
commitment to ensure that adequate risk
management and internal control system is in place
across the Company. In addition, the Company has
adopted the Ten Principals of Global Compact, an
initiative taken by the Secretary General of the
United Nations and adopted world-wide by big and
progressive companies.

Reporting and Communication

The Managing Director reviews and approves the
strategic plans of each Business Unit every quarter.
He also reviews monthly report and commentary
on the sales and financial performance of the
business from the heads of businesses and the
activities of the functional and service heads. An
elaborate MIS system is in place.

Communication with Shareowners

The Company holds the Annual General Meeting
regularly in time. The Directors attending the
Annual General Meeting note the views and
suggestions of the shareowners and institutional
stakeholders offered at the AGM and consider
them with utmost seriousness. The Managing
Director also brings to the notice of the Board any
written communication received by him from the
shareowners.

Going Concern

The Board, through appropriate enquiries and
analyses, ensures that the resources are adequate
to support the operation and that sufficient
business opportunities exist to qualify the
organisation as a going concern and the Directors
analyse the financial statements to ensure that.




Overview

ACI group has grown above 20% last year. Our
major achievement last year was strengthening
each of our existing business in a stronger
footing against a challenging macroeconomic
environment. Focus was given to business process
efficiency and human capital development to
counter the external pressures of inflation,
exchange and interest rate hikes. As a result,
almost all our businesses improved in revenue
and quality. In addition, linking the businesses
and competencies together to improve
competitiveness has helped us to put together yet
another successful year for ACI.

2011 was a year that encountered considerable
macroeconomic stress. Stock market collapse was
a major reason for initiating a domino effect

for a whole range of economic problems.
Currency devaluation was a major challenge for
manufacturing companies with high cost of raw
material imports to service the domestic market.
Inflation has also been a challenge combined
with insufficient increase in wages. Law and order
was similar to the previous year alongside
slightly increased political activity. Business
competition has increased with new players with
no differentiators entering into every sector.
Infrastructure, electricity and gas remain
bottlenecks to growth. Despite all these serious
challenges, Bangladesh ploughs forward into yet
another year of strong growth of 6.7%.

In line with ACI's mission to improve the quality of
life, we have supported our customers with better
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Report of the Directors to the Shareowners

and more cost effective solutions through product
innovation and special offers tailored to their
need. New product
launched to cater to the increasingly diversified
and specialized needs of our customers.

lines and variants were

In the health care sector, our growth driver was
a strong prescription orientation. Alongside,
launching new product lines and technologies like
insulin, and extensive export market development
were the highlights of our pharmaceuticals
business. In agribusiness, we continued to be the
leading integrator by providing complete solution
to the farmer, through crop care, seeds, fertilizer,
agri-machineries, animal health, animal nutrition
and crop exchange. We aim to be a wealth
generator and partner of our farmers. Consumer
brands business has leading presence in home
care, hygiene and pure foods with a strong focus
on marketing and customer need fulfillment. Our
logistics business is the largest retail chain in the
country, and has a vision to connect the
agricultural supply chain and improve the goods
market efficiency. Our main focus this year has
been on quality growth, customer service and
business process improvement. Through products
and services ACI reaffirms its
commitment to provide differentiated and higher
quality benefits to its consumers, partners and
stakeholders in the true spirit of the triple bottom
line - profits, people and planet.

innovation,




Strategic Business Units

nd Subsidiaries

ACI remains co d to providing customers with
broad range of quality pr from its business operations.

Health Care | Consumer Brands | Agribusinesses | Logistics




Health Care Division

As a mature business of
the group, it leaves a

strong social footprint in

enhancing the entire
health care ecosystem of
the country.

The pharmaceutical business has taken strategic
shift from the beginning of 2011 and
concentrated on pull market through full focus on
prescription generation. This has
significant increase in prescription share and
consolidated the Company's position in the
prestigious prescription market segment for
sustainable growth. In 2011, the business has
grown by 11.5% over the previous year and
achieved 21% cumulative average growth rate
(CAGR) in the last 5 years. During the year, most
of the major products have registered remarkable
growth and increased their market shares among

led to a

its own categories.

The business continued to offer new products and
services. In 2011, we have installed number of
new high-tech manufacturing lines in the factory
and launched several specialized products like
insulin, respirator solution and dry powder inhaler
(DPI). A total of 48 new products have been
launched to increase addressable market and
introduce newer solutions for treatment of
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diseases. Market feedback of these new products
has been encouraging.

ACI has a clear vision to have a broader global
presence and our international marketing team is
dedicated in search of prospective customers
across the globe. In 2011, we have exported our
products to 12 countries such as Myanmar, Sri
Lanka, Afghanistan, Kenya, Belize, Guatemala,
Somalia, Yemen, Vietnam and Hong Kong.
Another 15 more countries of Latin America,
Africa and other part of Asia are in the process of
product registration. The current expansion of
this overseas portfolio includes countries like
Cambodia, Philippines, Nepal, Ghana, Ivory Cost,
Nigeria, Cuba, Costa Rica and Chile.




ACI Medical Services team has been continuously
organizing and sponsoring scientific seminars,
and symposiums for various associations and
societies in medical disciplines. Continuous
Medical Education a program that ACI runs
throughout the year where medical professionals
share their experiences and discuss recent
updates on diseases and treatment options. This
sharing of knowledge is ultimately helping
our medical community in development of
professional skills. ACI has organized many free
medical camps in different rural areas of
Bangladesh to support the poor patients. In those
camps ACI has arranged free medical advices and
medicines. The company participates in different
medical and clinical research programs with
financial support for the overall improvement of
health care system of Bangladesh.

ACI Pharmaceutical has ambitious plans, carefully
supported by new technology and products.
Through export market development and high
quality products, this business is increasingly
prepared to make a mark internationally. As a
mature business of the group, it leaves a strong
social footprint in enhancing the entire health
care ecosystem of the country.

ACI Medical Services team has
been continuously organizing
and sponsoring scientific
seminars, and symposiums for
various associations and
societies in medical disciplines.
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Consumer Brands Division

Creativity and consumer
insight driven marketing has
been the key. This business
“is poised to take on further

challenges through the
strong sales and marketing
team that have been
developed.

ACI Consumer Brands completed yet another
successful year, registering a robust 22% revenue
growth. This was in spite of the heightened
economic and competitive challenges like money
devaluation, high inflation, higher borrowing rate
and cost escalation due to price hike of raw
material. We were able to manage the challenge
through careful management of the brands across
the value chain.

In Home Care Solutions category, we are
delighted to report that ACI Mosquito Coil
achieved the market leadership position
with a market share of 32%. ACI Aerosol
Insect Spray achieved
22% growth and
maintained market
leadership with over
87% of the market
share. Vanish Toilet
Cleaner grew by 31%
while Cockroach spray
gained customers
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appreciation. Angelic Air Freshener maintained
market leadership position with a growth of 44%.

Last year Savlon took giant leaps in its mission to
give the people of this country a germ free life.
Thriving on the success it continued its
dominance in the Antiseptic market as it grew by
nearly 20%. Savlon has dominant 75% market
share in the liquid antiseptics and 77% in
antiseptics cream. The strength of the brand was
further augmented by noteworthy success of
Savlon Bar Soap 22% growth and Savlon Hand
Wash at an outstanding 90%. Savlon Freedom
Sanitary Napkin has continued to grow strong in
2011 with a 62% growth and beat famous
international brands in market shares. The brand
was successful in wining the trust of Bangladeshi
women rapidly.

Consumer Brands division has also been enriched
with International brands like Colgate, Nivea,
Merisant and Laser. In 2011, International
business portfolio grew by 49%.




Colgate, the second
most popular toothpaste
brand of the country,
grew by 45% over last
year. Nivea grew by

and the most preferable

77%
sweetener brand Merisant (Canderel & Equal)
grew by 8%. The male grooming brand Laser has
also achieved robust growth of 65%.

low calorie

This business has been constantly innovating its
way into categories that strengthen its brand
position and increase its distribution depth and
reach. Creativity and consumer insight driven
marketing has been the key. This business is
poised to take on further challenges through the
strong sales and marketing team that have been
developed.

ACI Electrical Division & Consumer

Electronics

ACI Electrical Division and ACI Consumer
Electronics, the two relatively new divisions,
strengthened their position in the market,
although results have not been at par with what
we were expecting. The Electrical Division
continued to capture new territories in the
electrical market with ACI Sparkle brand Energy
Saving Lamps, DC Lamp, Circuit Breaker and
Switch Socket.

ANTISEPTIC CREAM

ACI Consumer Electronics expanded its
showroom channel to take Panasonic Branded
Electronics items to more consumers. Eight new
showrooms have been set up in 2011 in different
parts of the country. These showrooms continued
to introduce new ranges of products to satisfy the
consumers in different parts of the country.

Both these businesses are dynamically re-
structuring their business models as competition
intensity increase and ever lower price are
demanded by the consumer. The changes that
are being made will
better future.

pave the way for a
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Foods

ACI Foods has experienced a revenue growth of
30% and aims to continue the growth
progressively. The product line expansion and
continuous improvement in quality made the
products popular to the consumers. Moreover, the
new attractive packagings were also appreciated
by the consumers. Both the brand "PURE" and
"Fun" have strengthened its position in the market
through clear positioning. In addition, various
marketing activities have been able to incite good
consumer response.

Along with local market, the business also did well
in exports compared to previous year. Various
spices, packaged and frozen foods are being
exported to 14 countries, some of which have
become favorites of the Bangladeshi expatriates.

The business continued to improve through the
efficiency of its operations across production,
sales and distribution to achieve better
competitiveness, which is prerequisite for rapid
market penetration. As a result our outlook
towards the future has improved significantly.

Flour

ACI Pure Flour Limited is committed to ensure
100% pure products to the Bangladeshi
consumers. The revenue growth was 18%.
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Despite of industry challenges like the wheat
crisis, government intervention through subsidies,
and energy crisis, the business carefully managed
to navigate itself to a moderately successful year.

The strategic move of the Flour Association with
government's Open Market Sales program, gave
the opportunity to sustainable growth with
continuous production. Beside this, the retail
market penetration of ACI Pure flour products also
kept pace to hold the second position in the
market. ACI Pure Flour Limited was the pioneer in
introducing the laminated packaging of Atta,
Maida and Suji in Bangladesh market to provide
better and consistent quality of our products to
the consumers throughout its shelf life. Moreover,
focusing on health benefits, Brown Atta brought
some goodwill by serving our health conscious
consumers.
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Achievers’ Nigh

Under the umbrella of the Pure brand, other
products such as Egg Noodles, Vermicelli, Minicate
Rice, Najirshail Rice, Masur Dal achieved
commendable sales growth. The customer
feedback oriented initiative of 20 kilogram pack of
rice products helped the sales to grow and
develop a new market. This business is positively
poised for growth.

Edible Qil

ACI Pure Soyabean Oil was launched to make the
consumer commodity basket more complete along
with salt, flour products, rice, pulse and sugar.
The journey of ACI Edible Oils Limited started with
potential market coverage with a single product of
soyabean oil. But in 2011, the world market of
soyabean oil as well as national market faced a
supply crisis. Along with the world
) crisis, government intervention on
/ pricing, exchange rate rise, other
‘».  materials price hike and unfavourable
legislation led us to restrict our
sales. Despite the difficulties, the
business made a turnover of Tk.
84.8 million.

ACI Edible Oils Limited plans to
increase its product line in
upcoming year with more healthy

edible oils, further building on the theme of a
healthy Bangladesh.

Salt

ACI Pure Salt continued to maintain its strong
position in the market despite having tremendous
external challenges in the form of high raw
materials price, increasing price of energy, severe
gas supply crisis and production shortage.
Throughout the year the demand for ACI Pure Salt
was a lot more than its production. In spite of
challenges from multiple angles, ACI Salt
passed a successful year by increasing the
profitability through quality sales. The business
has undertaken the initiative to setup another
state-of-the-art production plant from Evatherm
of Switzerland with 22 MT per hour capacity. The
construction work of the project is going in full
swing and expected to be complete by May 2012.
With this new plant ACI Salt Limited will emerge
as the country's largest salt refinery project.

Having created one of the leading brands in the
country, ACI Pure Salt continues to increase the
awareness of quality and purity of foods in the
minds of the people. This has a powerful impact
far beyond the business proposition, which ACI
has consciously propagated in its journey towards
a healthier and meritorious Bangladesh.
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Agribusinesses Division

Our branding efforts,
quality focus and
knowledge based scientific
agricultural support will
make our business thrive
and contribute to the food
security of the nation.

Crop Care and Public Health

Industry decline by 2% and the business
increased by 19.36% over previous year. This was
a planned initiative to drive down credit exposure
in light of a large number of competitors entering
the market with new registration. The industry
witnessed increase in push sales from new
competitors along with a deterioration of quality
standards. ACI Crop Care and Public Health, as
part of the premium branded segment of high
quality products, had to exercise extreme caution
in engaging with the markets through stringent
credit control and demand based sales.

The business launched three new products
in each of the major product ranges of
insecticide, fungicide and
herbicides to strengthen the
overall portfolio. We have
supplied Deltamethrin 5%
WP to control sand fly which
is the cause of Kala-Azar to
DG Health. New techno -
logy products are under
development with foreign
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partners. Notably, Long Lasting Impregnated Net
(LLIN) is an insect repellant net that will benefit
the people of our country.

In light of this new industry landscape of an
insurgence of new competitors, our business has
focused on branded marketing and solution. Our
field force has been augmented. Training has
been enhanced both for our own people as well as
the prescribers, retailers and channel partners.
Focus on liquid insecticides has been increased.
Farmer engagement programs that communicate
proper and timely use of products through farmer
meetings have been increased to counter the
industry turmoil. Our branding efforts, quality
focus and knowledge based scientific agricultural
support will make our business thrive and
contribute to the food security of the nation.

Fertilizer

ACI Fertilizer grew 16% in revenue in 2011.
The business has moved away from bulk
fertilizers to four areas of specialty products.
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They are soil health, soil deficiency correctors,
supplements, and plant growth promoters. This
classification has allowed the business to create
the right strategic focus for the products.

The business launched several products,
replacing older technology with new and more
efficient ones. The new additions to ACI
Fertilizer's portfolio includes 'Gypshar', a brand of
Mineral Gypsum which is more effective than the
Phospho Gypsum that is widely available in the
market. Similarly, Bentonite Sulphate is more
effective than Sulphur 80% generally used by the
farmers. ACI Fertilizer has also launched a new
variety of Organic Fertilizer (GreenSul), which has
been proven to increase yields by 17% in demo-
plots. In pursuit of providing complete plant
nutrient management system to farmers, ACI
Fertilizer plans to launch other products such as
bio-fertilizers, urea saving fertilizers and crop
specialized mixes. Seminars, multimedia
presentations, and workshops that educate
farmers about the correct usage and application
of nutrient products have been a key driver for
this business. The business established over 10
"Communication Centers" at dealer points in
order to promote and inform farmers about new
products through brochures and other promo
materials. Through constant innovation and
awareness building, ACI Fertilizer intends to
become a leading player in micronutrient
fertilizer market.

Through strategically aligned communication,
modern technology and high quality products;
ACI Fertilizer's mission is to enhance the
agricultural practices in Bangladesh along with
ensuring high yields of crops that ascertain food
security for the nation.

Organic Fertilizer (GreenSul),
which has been proven to
increase yields by 17% in
demo-plots.

Rehort 2011r x{xpage‘n

5"‘?:




Seed

ACI Seed has grown by 28%. ACI Seed seeks to provide farmers with high quality,
high-yield and hybrid seeds, so that they can obtain better yields, and through that
contribute to the nation's food security.

ACI Seed markets high yield and hybrid varieties of paddy and vegetable seeds as
well as other high value crop seeds under the supervision of
specialized agriculture scientists.

Several new products have been launched including Bitter,
Snake, Sponge, Ridge Gourds and Cucumber. The sales of
open pollinated vegetable seeds increased by 20% primarily
due to the introduction of these new products. The sales of
hybrid vegetable seeds have grown by 308% this year.
Furthermore the business has sold 1063MT of hybrid rice seed

and held 2nd position in the hybrid rice market during 2011.

Special Emphasis is given to product demonstration activities. Each product is
carefully tested in trial fields before being marketed. ACI Seed also has a large field
force to develop its network of retailers through several training sessions.

This industry is fundamental to our economy, which is why ACI has taken a leading
role in shaping its future. ACI Seed aspires to take the seed production system in
Bangladesh to the higher level.

Cropex

ACI Cropex seeks to lead integration in the agriculture value chain, and a fair market
for the farmers, as well as to ensures the conservation of easily perishable crops
through its logistics and cold storage facilities. Cropex went through significant
changes in its business model leading to a 32% decline in sales. We developed a
business model that will facilitate the business to grow in a more sustainable and
robust manner.

ACI Cropex intermediated transactions of a range of crops including rice, wheat,
maize, ginger, lentils, mustard, potato, vegetables, and fruits. ACI Cropex also
provides animal feed with technical assistance and support farmers, as a result, that
they can understand and control the quality of their produce.

ACI Cropex has signed Memorandum of Understanding with the NGO Practical Action,




Katalyst, and Grameenphone for Online Agri-Commodity Trading. It has also
undertaken alignment with the farmers for local maize and wheat. Through these
actions, Cropex gained farmers commitment and thus the volume of farmers

procured items was doubled in 2011.

In a modest way, Cropex aspires to serve as a link between the several businesses of
the ACI Agribusinesses, ACI Consumer Brands and ACI Logistics. Cropex is tying up
with the farmers for their produce and then marketing the goods under Cropex brand,
where farmers are encouraged to enhance their production and quality. It gradually
continues to build equity in the future through buying, branding, grading and sorting
of more farm products.

Motors

In 2011, the sales of ACI Motors have remarkably increased by 62.8%. In addition,
ACI Motors has been on a relentless pursuit in developing agricultural technology in
Bangladesh, and
throughout the nation. In the International Agricultural
fair, 2011, held in Bogra, ACI motors received an award
recognizing the crucial role it played in helping the
farmers improve agricultural efficiency and quality.

its efforts have been recognized

ACI Motors has made commendable progress toward its
mission of providing mechanized solutions to ever
increasing costs of agricultural production and scarcity of
field
comprehensive portfolio of machinery ranging from tractors, power tillers, diesel
engines, rotavators and transplanters. Water pump business was launched with a
plan to extend our solution irrigation and water management. Rice reapers were also
introduced which was a lower cost intermediate harvesting technology. Furthermore,
ACI motor has become the exclusive dealer harvesters and transplanters for
DEADONG Group, the largest agro-based technology provider in Korea. We opened a
new showroom in Gazipur for proper display of our products and establish our own
contact points for service in addition to the numerous outsourced ones.

labor. The business offers the farmers a

ACI Motors offers free health checkups to farmers, and free cultivation in certain
areas for demonstration. The comprehensive product portfolio in conjunction with the
superior customer service and holistic approach that ACI Motors takes in regards to
its customers has helped ACI Motors build strong farmer equity and social value.

ual Report 2011
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Animal Health

In 2011, we continued to maintain a strong
position in the market. The business encountered
several severe pitfalls in the form of bird flu, and
glitches on the supply side. A significant number
of poultry had to be disposed due to the bird flu,
which hampered flow of revenue and thus
prevented the business from achieving its target.
On the other hand, several vaccine suppliers
failed to deliver the vaccines on time which was
an important part of our business portfolio.
Despite these setbacks the business moved
forward in developing new avenues of business
and improving operational efficiency.

ACI Animal Health employed the farmers'
expertise combined with advanced technology in
order to significantly improve the production of
poultry, fish, and dairy. At present, ACI Animal
Health produce Nutritional products, antibiotics,
disinfectants, analgesic, antihistamines and
vaccines at the pharmaceutical factory at
Narayanganj. The comprehensive range of

Page 24

Annual Report 2011

products is made in a controlled environment that
ensures quality.

ACI Animal Health is involved in strong product
development activities, by which experienced
pharmacists constantly improve products as well
as control the quality of the medicinal products.
ACI Animal Health has already introduced Kill
vaccines. A range of new products were launched
that include dairy anthelmintic, dairy digestive
stimulant, dairy antibiotic, poultry amino acid,
poultry vitamins and growth promoters for aqua-
segment. New products, awaiting launch are HVT-
AIB, vaccine for Bird flu and two other vector-
vaccines: HVT-NDV and HVT-IBD.

The distribution centers located in 19 cities
employ strict quality control standards and hence
ensure that the farmers could promptly access
to our products and services. The business
continued to strengthen its differentiators that will
make the business better positioned for success
despite the difficult environmental adversities.
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Logistics
In 2011, this business has achieved a remarkable
114% growth in revenue, 54% growth in

customer transactions and 40% growth in basket
size. ACI Logistics operates retail outlets in Dhaka,
Chittagong and Sylhet, under the brand
"Shwapno". Through its wide reach, it continues to
holds the position of the largest supermarket
chain in Bangladesh. Shwapno has evolved to
interact with over 350,000 consumers every
month, offering more than 5,000 products. It has
developed strong links with more than 250
vendors, who we consider as our esteemed
business partners.

As the business progressed, we incorporated
effective changes to the operating model with new
ideas, resources and infrastructure. Strengthening
the front end operational team with empowerment
and purpose, has led to transformation in
customer service. With the placement of
specialized personnel in planning and procurement
for key categories, such as protein, commodities
and perishables, combined with cluster based
purchasing, the business created a noteworthy
impact. This led to scalable purchase efficiency
and ensured product availability. It also paved way
for a supplier development model. This facilitates
ACI logistics in making the rural farmers and
domestic suppliers the heart of the business,
linking them directly to the consumers with the
benefit of lower prices. Based on customer
feedback on product requirements, more than
2,000 new products were introduced, which
helped to generate additional sales. These
improvements were the key drivers behind the
rapid growth of Shwapno as it enabled the
business to satisfy and retain valued customers.
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Several major seasonal promotional campaigns
were conducted within the year, which resulted in
increased footfall and excitement among the
customers. To compliment the efforts and to
establish our value proposition, we launched the
first ever 360 degree thematic advertising
campaign under the premise "the best buy with
your hard earned money" with the intention of
inviting and converting the wet market shoppers.
The bold campaign messages that were publicized
through television, press, leaflets and billboards,
challenged the consumer to be wise in their
spending. We are in the process of experiencing
the fruits of the campaign through increased
brand awareness, increased footfall, and extended
support from our business partners.

The accelerated in customer
service and product offerings, excellent brand
positioning, and strengthening of operations,

the business

improvements

is moving closer objective of
transforming the value chain

the benefit of the
consumers at

for
large.
Retail is one of the most
promising businesses
with tremendous growth
potential in Bangladesh
as it has been across
the globe. ACI Logistics
is moving forward
journey to change the

consumer lifestyle and

landscape of the retail
industry in Bangladesh.
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Subsidiaries and Associated Companies

Separate reports on each of the subsidiaries,
along with their accounts are provided later in this
report.

ACI Formulations Ltd. is one of our largest
subsidiaries which by itself is a public listed
company, is discussed under crop care business.
In addition to crop care, this company also
manufactures coil and aerosol for ACI Consumer
Brands division.

Premiaflex Plastics Ltd. The vision of
Premiaflex is to add value to customers' product
through innovative and informative packaging.
Premiaflex Plastics Limited manufactures a wide
range of packaging items starting from wrapper,
pouch packs, shrink/pearl labels, shrinkage outer
pack and pharmaceuticals strips.

Over the last year, Premiaflex Plastics Limited has
grown at a remarkable 107%, whereas the growth
of the plastic industry has been just 44%. In
2011, Premiaflex has had major achievements in
all kinds of Metalized work and Laminated
Oven Bag. In the laminated oven bag market,
Premiaflex has dominant 84% market share.

Premiaflex manufactures products for many
multinational and local companies. The company
will soon receive the ISO 9001 certificate which
will further reinforce the image of quality and
standards of the company. The core focus of
Premiaflex Plastics Limited is to build customer
loyalty through providing customers a one stop
solution. It seeks to provide consistent quality,
on-time delivery and develop market leadership
through relationship marketing.

ACI Godrej Agrovet Private Ltd. has registered
an outstanding growth of 63 % over last year. The
company has increased its revenues from broiler
feeds and floating fish feed. It also registered
double digit growth in other feed categories such
as layer feeds, sinking fish feeds and dairy feeds.

The company commissioned a state-of-the-art
automated 15 MT per hour poultry feed plant at
Sirajganj in June, 2011. The Company further
improved its product quality and enhanced
its market share in the Industry. The company
prides itself in being end customer centric by
making continuous efforts in farmer training

programs, meetings and seminars,

thereby
inculcating customer loyalty by reducing their cost
of production.

The company strives to become one among the
top three feed companies in the country.

Tetley ACI Bangladesh Limited continued to
maintain its strong position in the market. The
company looked for alternative business model
to support the future business initiatives. As a
first step it changed its distribution model and
partnered with ACI Branded Commaodity which has
enhanced the distribution reach. Through global
tea sourcing and blending expertise, Tetley was
able to provide a consistent blend and excellent
quality tea in Bangladesh. Consequently, this has
also improved gross margin of the product. A
strategic approach to procurement, marketing,
sales and distribution has improved the overall
quality of the business. With all these initiatives
outlook of the business has significantly improved.

Asian Consumer Care (Pvt) Ltd. Financial year
2011 - 12 has been a remarkable year for ACCL.
While the FMCG industry in Bangladesh grew by
11.5%. The company grew by an outstanding
55%. Major brands like Vatika Hair oil, Dabur Amla
Hair oil grew much faster than the total company's
growth. Dabur brands exceeded the category
growths of Hair oil, Shampoo and Toothpaste.

Of special mention is the proficiency introduced
in the sphere of Distribution and Consumer
Communication. The 'Think Global Act Local' idea
has been the key to success. Careful planning and
impeccable implementation of the right marketing
mix helped propel growth. A 360 degree approach
was used to synergize all resources.

Dabur's Global vision is "Dedicated to the health
and well being of every household". All Dabur
products are researched and certified by highly
qualified scientists and professionals of Dabur
Research and Development Center, India and are
undoubtedly the best in all quality parameters.
Currently we have 2 manufacturing facilities -
Narayanganj and Manikganj. The management is
inclined to further invest in the country to support
future plans. Company has started developing a
new production facility in Dhamrai on the Dhaka -
Manikganj Road. Commercial production will start
by March 2013.




Financial Results - ACI Limited

In 2011, revenue of the company has reached to Tk. 8.52 billion from
Tk. 7.92 billion of 2010, an increase of Tk. 0.60 billion or 7.56 percent over
last year. Higher sales volume aided by favourable product mixes and
selected product price increases has led to increase in Gross profit (Taka
0.34 billion) by 12 percent despite negative impact of inflation and adverse
currency conversion rates. The PAT from operation rose to Tk. 681 million,
a growth of Tk. 89 million or 15.14 percent from the comparative period.
The basic earnings per share (BEPS) of the company was Tk. 34.64 in 2011
(Tk. 30.49 in 2010) representing a growth of 13.62 percent over last year.
The diluted earnings per share (DEPS) of the company was Tk. 34.09 in
2011 (Tk. 29.40 in 2010). The diluted earnings per share has arose due to
the existence of dilutive potential ordinary shares in the balance sheet to
be required to be issued in case the bondholders of ACI 20% Convertible
Zero Coupon Bonds exercise their convertibility option in the respective
redemption dates.

Appropriation of profit

Considering the financial results of the company during the year and free
reserve carried over, the Directors recommended appropriation of net profit
as follows:
2011 2010
Taka Taka

Un-appropriated profit from the previous year 2,454,473,365 2,099,163,480

Add: Net profit after tax for the year 681,129,072 591,590,015
Add: Realization of revaluation reserve 883,609 296,942

Margins 2006-2011

Gross Profit Margin 37.13%

3345%  3389% € 373 35.64%

Profit Before Tax Margin

1607% 130 8.00%

6.63% 8.77% 7.47%

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Year

Total available for appropriation 3,136,486,046 2,691,050,437

Appropriation proposed:

Proposed dividend:

Cash dividend 158,492,224 236,577,072
Stock dividend 39,623,056 -
Total dividend 198,115,280 236,577,072

Balance carried forward 2,938,370,766 2,454,473,365

With the balance carried forward in this year and with future ploughing back of
the profit, directors are confident that company will be able to maintain prudent
dividend policy in years to come.

Dividend

The Board of Directors is pleased to recommend dividend @ 100% which
include Tk. 8.00 per share (80%) as cash dividend and 20% as stock
dividend or 1 share against each 5 shares for the year 2011 to those
shareowners whose names will appear in the Share Register of Members
of the Company or in the Depository list of CDBL on the Record Date which
is Wednesday, 16th May 2012.

Contribution to the National Exchequer

During 2011, the company contributed Tk. 1.8 billion to the National
Exchequer in the form of corporate tax, custom duty and Value Added Tax
(VAT). This is equivalent to 21.36 percent of the Company's net sales
revenue for the year 2011.

Revenue Profit after tax
(Taka in Million) (Taka in Million)
8,514
681
7,915 592
2010 2011 2010 2011
Annual retained earnings
(Taka in Million)
882
786
483
359
2008 2009 2010 2011
Dividend
(Taka in Million)
233
194 204 198
2008 2009 2010 2011
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Financial Results - ACI Group

In 2011, turnover has reached to Tk. 17.46 billion from Tk. 14.50 billion of 2010, an increase of Tk. 2.96
billion or 20 percent over last year. The higher sales volume has also resulted into increase in cost of
sales by 22 percent. Despite higher growth in cost of sales, gross profit has rather shown a positive
growth of 17 percent mainly on account of improved mix and selective price increases of products. The
operating PAT resultantly was significantly higher (32.54 percent) than the comparative period. Earnings
Per Share (EPS) has also increased by 9 percent from Tk. 11.14 to Tk. 12.11 per share in 2011.

A. Statutory Information

In compliance with the SEC guidelines' condition no.- 1.4 the Directors confirm that:

(a)

(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)
(9)

(h)
()
)

(k)

The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgement.

International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation
of the financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed.

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Significant deviations from last year in operating results of the Company have been highlighted in
the Report and reasons thereof have been explained.

Key operating and financial data of preceding six years has been provided.
The company is declaring the dividend regularly

The number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance by each Director is given in
annexure-I

The pattern of share holding is given in annexure-II
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The People of ACI

People are the core strength of ACI. Consequently,
the development of human capital is a top priority.
Value communication has been the foundation
for our organization, with emphasis on code of
conduct and business friendly culture.

Training has increased significantly in areas
involving skills, knowledge and mindset
development. New platforms for peer learning and
sharing achievements are designed to compress
the learning curve. New ways of fostering
innovation and creating while maintaining
efficiency and discipline has been explored.

Sports events are organized among department
for social interaction and fostering of team spirit
so crucial in a high performance culture. The
interaction in an informal setting gives new
meaning to being part of the ACI. Both top down
and bottom up information sharing platform has
been created to build a harmonious ACI family.

We thank the partners of ACI, shareowners,
suppliers, customers, bankers, media and all other
well wishers for their support and patronage to

On behalf of the Board
Dr. Arif Dowla
Managing Director

e
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bring us to this level. We pray for their continued
support to fulfill our mission to improve the lives
of people.

Finally and most importantly, I thank the
employees of ACI in factories, depots, offices and
other locations throughout the country, for their
untiring efforts. They have worked hard, against
uncertainties and adversity to build a stronger
organization that can create a greater positive
impact on the quality of life of people.

Election of Director

By operation of Article 120 of the Company's
Articles of Association Mr. M Anis Ud Dowla and
Ms. Sheema Abed Rahman retire by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Auditors

Our Auditor Messrs Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co,
Chartered Accountants has sought re-appointment
for the year 2012 and the Directors recommend
their re-appointment.

Mr. Waliur Rahman Bhuiyan, OBE
Director
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B. Status of Compliance

The status of the compliance as per SEC guidelines' condition no.-5.0 is given in annexure- III

Annexure - I: Attendance of Board meetings

During the year Four Board meetings were held and the attendance by each Director was as follow:

Name

Mr. M Anis Ud Dowla

Mrs. Najma Dowla

Dr. Arif Dowla

Ms. Shusmita Anis

Mr. Waliur Rahman

Mr. Wajed Salam

Ms. Sheema Abed Rahman
Mr. Waliur Rahman Bhuiyan OBE
Mr. Golam Mainuddin

Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman

Annexure - II: Pattern of Shareholding

No. of Meeting Attended

PP ULWORRHPDPPDPDW

As per SEC guideline condition no-1.4(k), the pattern of share holding status as on 31 December 2011 is given below:
1.4 (K) (i) Held by Parent/ Subsidiary/ Associates and other related parties: n/a
1.4. (K) (ii) Held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, and Chief Financial Officer etc.:

. of Shares

Name
Mr. M Anis Ud Dowla
Mrs. Najma Dowla

Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman - representing ICB

Dr. Arif Dowla
Ms. Shusmita Anis

Mr. Waliur Rahman- representing ACI Foundation
Mr. Wajed Salam- representing ACI Foundation
Mr. Waliur Rahman Bhuiyan OBE- representing ACI Foundation

Mr. Golam Mainuddin
Ms. Sheema Abed Rahman

Position No
Chairman

Director

Director

Managing Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Independent director

Company Secretary and Director

1.4 (K) (iii) Held by Executive - No shares held by such executive

1.4 (K) (iv) Held by Shareholders holding ten percent or more voting right:

Name
Mr. M Anis Ud Dowla

Annexure - III: Status of Compliance

Status of compliance with the condition imposed by the Commission's Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/ dated
20th February, 2006 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969

Chairman

2,654,054
554,264
722,183

1,201,348

9,900

% of Shares
13.46

Compliance Status Explanation for
Condition Title (Put v in the appropriate non-compliance
No column) with the condition
Complied | Not Complied

1.1 Number of the Board members of the company should not be 4

less than 5 and more than 20
1.2(i) Number of Independent Directors should be at least 1/10 of the total 4

number of Company's Board of Directors
1.2(ii) Independent Directors should be appointed by the elected directors 4
1.3 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer should preferably "4

be filled by different individuals
1.4(a) Fair presentation of Financial Statements 4
1.4(b) Maintenance of Proper books of accounts 4
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1.4(c) Appropriate Accounting Policies applied consistently
1.4(d) International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Bangladesh "4
have been followed in preparing the Financial Statements
1.4(e) Sound and Effective Internal Control System v
1.4(f) Ability to continue as going concern v
1.4(q) Significant deviations from last year in operating results 4
1.4(h) Summary of Key operating and financial data v
1.4(i) If dividend has not been declared, the reasons thereof v
1.4() Number of Board Meetings held during the year and attendance by each director "4
1.4(k) Pattern of share holding %4
2.1 Appointment of a CFO, a Head of Internal Audit and a Company secretary (4
2.2 Attend the Board meeting by CFO and Company Secretary v
3 Constitution of Audit Committee v
3.1(i) The Audit Committee should be composed of at least 3 members (4
3.1(ii) Members of Audit Committee should be appointed by the Board who (4
are directors and one should be Independent Director
3.1(iii) Board of Directors should fill up the vacancy within one month of the (4
vacancy in the Audit Committee
3.2(i) Board of Directors should select one member of the Audit Committee 4
as Chairman of the Audit Committee
3.2(ii) Chairman of the Audit Committee should have a professional qualification 4
or knowledge, understanding and experience in accounting or finance
3.3.1(i) Activities of the audit committee to the Board of Directors ("4
3.3.1(ii)(@) Report on conflict of interest v
3.3.1(ii)(b) | Report on Fraud or irvregularity or material defect in internal control system 4
3.3.1(ii)(c) | Report on infringement of laws, including security related laws, ("4
rules and regulations
3.3.1(ii)(d)| Report on any other matter which should be disclosed to the Board ("4
of Directors' immediately
3.3.2 Reporting to the Authorities: If the Audit Committee has reported to the ("4
Board of Directors about anything which has impact on the financial condition
and results of operation and being ignored by the Board of Directors, the
Audit Committee should report such findings to the Commission
3.4 Reporting to the Shareholders: Report on activities carried by the v
Audit Committee including any report made to the Board of Directors
under condition 3.3.1 (ii) and the disclosure of which should be
made in the annual report
4.00(i) Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions (4
4.00(ii) Financial information system design and implementation ("4
4.00(iii) = Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records v
or financial statements
4.00(iv) | Broker-dealer services v
4.00(v) Actuarial services 4
4.00(vi) | Internal audit services 4
4.00(vii) | Any other service that the Audit Committee determines (4

On behalf of the Board

AT A

Dr. Arif Dowla

Mr. Waliur Rahman Bhuiyan, OBE

Managing Director

Director
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Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co

Chartered Accountants

Independent Correspondent Firm to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
to the Shareholders of
Advanced Chemical Industries Limited

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Advanced Chemical Industries Limited (the
"Company") as well as the consolidated financial statements of Advanced Chemical Industries Limited (the "Group")
which comprises the separate and the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011, income
statements, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity, statements of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. The financial
statements of 10 subsidiaries, 2 associates and 2 joint ventures disclosed in note 44 to these financial statements were
audited by other auditors and we have relied on those audited financial statements for the purpose of consolidation.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of the Company and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) and
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs) for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of these financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
and error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSAs). Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether these financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatements of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risks
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as well as of the Group as at 31 December 2011 and of their
financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards
(BASs), Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs), and comply with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities
and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Companies so far as it appeared
from our examination of those books;

c) The consolidated and separate statements of financial positions as well as the income statements together with
annexed notes 1 to 44 dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account; and

d) The expenditure incurred and payments made were for the purposes of the Companies business.

Wbt Ghofhe Zzo

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Dhaka, 25 April 2012 Chartered Accountants

National Office : BTMC Bhaban (8th Floor), 7-9 Karwan Bazar Commercial Area, Dhaka-1215, Bangladesh
Motijheel Office : Ispahani Building (3rd Floor), 14-15 Motijheel Commercial Area, Dhaka 1000, Bangladesh
Chittagong Office : Delwar Bhaban (4th Floor), 104 Agrabad Commercial Area, Chittagong-4100, Bangladesh
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Advanced Chemical Industries Limited

Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
Assets Taka Taka
Property, plant and equipment 4
At cost/revaluation 2,545,580,924 1,813,315,763
Accumulated depreciation (214,159,844) (57,071,200)
2,331,421,080 1,756,244,563
Capital work-in-progress 5 611,541,022 678,876,604
2,942,962,102 2,435,121,167
Intangible assets 1,816,269 2,335,201
Long term investments 7 1,197,263,603 1,392,275,334
Non-current assets 4,142,041,974 3,829,731,702
Inventories 8 1,770,481,777 1,716,072,609
Trade receivables 9 1,131,611,820 1,017,539,096
Other receivables 10 138,454,704 134,442,146
Advances, deposits and prepayments 11 522,847,653 414,326,518
Advance income tax 25.1 122,788,615 222,974,570
Inter-company receivables 12 3,045,084,692 2,196,742,792
Cash and cash equivalents 13 223,659,923 154,440,135
Current assets 6,954,929,184 5,856,537,866
Total assets 11,096,971,158 9,686,269,568
Equity
Share capital 14 197,147,560 194,040,000
Share premium 15 298,788,486 250,022,474
Capital reserve 16.1 1,671,386 1,671,386
Revaluation surplus 16.2 895,636,955 896,520,564
Available for sale reserve 17 237,767,126 424,872,936
Retained earnings 3,136,486,047 2,691,050,437
Total equity 4,767,497,560 4,458,177,797
Liabilities
Long term liabilities 18 888,406,400 1,013,068,165
Deferred tax liabilities 19 125,011,848 127,860,190
Non-current liabilities 1,013,418,248 1,140,928,355
Bank overdrafts 20 905,029,397 230,296,089
Short term loan from banks 21 2,487,707,979 2,264,558,838
Long term loan from banks-current portion 22 256,410,862 295,781,565
Trade payables 221,220,224 211,838,314
Other payables 23 939,541,226 665,636,419
Inter-company payables 24 289,071,143 69,556,334
Obligation under finance lease-current portion 18.1 652,878 523,990
Current tax liability 25 216,421,641 348,971,867

Current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

5,316,055,350

4,087,163,416

6,329,473,598

5,228,091,771

11,096,971,158

9,686,269,568

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

N7 L

Managing Director Director

Slianna Qe Ratdronn

Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

Wedlo: Gumalle, ,@o

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Dhaka, 25 April 2012
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Advanced Chemical Industries Limited

Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative, selling and distribution expenses
Operating profit

Other income

Financing costs

Provision for contribution to WPPF
Profit before income tax

Income tax expenses
Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense

Net profit after tax for the year
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Note

26
27

28

29

30

25
31

32.1
32.2

2011
Taka

8,513,841,846
(5,352,860,199)

2010
Taka

7,915,400,279
(5,094,561,620)

3,160,981,647
(2,193,597,248)

2,820,838,659
(1,919,655,805)

967,384,399 901,182,854
99,755,402 86,240,840
1,067,139,801 987,423,694

(126,842,315)

(136,849,107)

940,297,486 850,574,587
(47,014,874) (42,528,729)
893,282,612 808,045,858

(194,212,347)

(213,842,650)

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

N7 oA

Managing Director Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012

Page 44 Annual Report 2011

(17,941,192) (2,613,194)
(212,153,539) (216,455,844)
681,129,073 591,590,014

34.64 30.49
34.09 29.40

Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

bl Gl

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants




Advanced Chemical Industries Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
Taka Taka

Net profit after tax for the year 681,129,073 591,590,014
Other comprehensive income:
Revaluation surplus of property, plant and
equipment-net of reversal of revaluation loss - 562,656,790
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets 17 (207,895,345) 257,970,169
Income tax on other comprehensive income 20,789,535 (63,414,315)
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (187,105,810) 757,212,644
Total comprehensive income for the year 494,023,263 1,348,802,658

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Yy 4 | Sl O Rt

Managing Director Director Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

ot Gl

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Dhaka, 25 April 2012 Chartered Accountants
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A)

B)

<)

D)
E)
F)

Advanced Chemical Industries Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers
Cash receipts from other income
Receipts from/(payments to) other receivables

Cash paid for:

Purchase of inventories

Operating expenses

Other payables

Advances, deposits and prepayments
Workers' profit participation fund

Cash generated from operating activities

Financing costs
Income tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

Payments for capital work-in-progress

Investment

Sale proceeds from property, plant and equipment
Net cash from (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Inter-company debts paid

Dividend paid

Payment for finance lease

Proceeds from/(payment for)sale/redemption of Zero Coupon Bonds
Short term bank loan received

Long term bank loan received

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December (D+E) 13.1

Closing balance represents:

Cash and cash equivalents 13
Bank overdraft

2011 2010

Taka Taka
8,321,769,694 7,912,654,206
99,677,040 86,085,648
4,740,844 (62,864,578)
8,426,187,578 7,935,875,276
(5,226,553,519) (5,232,562,125)
(2,017,808,930) (1,784,838,765)
130,422,049 28,525,337
(121,754,144) (23,920,357)
(10,368,816) (12,952,378)
(7,246,063,360) (7,025,748,288)
1,180,124,218 910,126,988
(126,842,315) (127,276,518)
(226,576,618) (158,707,773)
(353,418,933) (285,984,291)
826,705,285 624,142,697
(159,930,546) (55,225,856)
- (2,335,201)
(510,291,628) (653,285,590)
(12,883,614) (98,322,592)
1,229,827 1,106,000
(681,875,961) (808,063,239)
(628,827,092) (962,958,133)
(228,144,885) (194,716,557)
(573,993) (1,315,809)
(124,391,015) 400,006,924
223,149,141 408,160,574
8,445,000 60,364,304
(750,342,844) (290,458,697)
(605,513,520) (474,379,239)
(75,855,954) 398,523,285
(681,369,474) (75,855,954)
223,659,923 154,440,135
(905,029,397) (230,296,089)
(681,369,474) (75,855,954)

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Annual Report 2011

Page 47




Advanced Chemical Industries Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
Assets Taka Taka
Property, plant and equipment 4(a)
At cost / revaluation 6,322,173,701 5,254,590,967
Accumulated depreciation (878,635,804) (487,128,907)
5,443,537,897 4,767,462,060
Capital work-in-progress 5(a) 1,295,296,242 875,065,530
Intangible assets 6 81,818,843 62,116,589
Long term investments 7(a) 769,517,554 908,344,759
Non-current assets 7,590,170,536 6,612,988,938
Inventories 8(a) 3,734,176,456 3,284,059,034
Trade receivables 9(a) 3,162,788,969 2,641,478,336
Other receivables 10(a) 150,235,143 149,058,590
Advances, deposits and prepayments 11(a) 713,391,611 836,251,046
Advance income tax 25.1(a) 291,909,295 389,792,767
Inter-company receivables 12(a) 14,124,729 14,331,021
Cash and cash equivalents 13(a) 419,074,206 276,053,818
Current assets 8,485,700,409 7,591,024,611
Total assets 16,075,870,945 14,204,013,549
Equity
Share capital 197,147,560 194,040,000
Share premium 298,788,486 250,022,474
Capital reserve 1,671,386 1,671,386
Revaluation surplus 16.2(a) 1,515,015,779 1,515,899,388
Available for sale reserve 237,767,126 424,872,936
Retained earnings 1,943,697,532 1,941,277,922
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 4,194,087,869 4,327,784,106
Non-controlling interest 494,270,382 586,663,688
Total equity 4,688,358,251  4,914,447,794
Liabilities
Long term liabilities 18(a) 1,506,974,165 1,833,530,714
Deferred tax liabilities 273,562,157 218,365,538
Non-current liabilities 1,780,536,322 2,051,896,252
Bank overdraft 20(a) 1,116,708,457 387,540,323
Short term loan from banks 21(a) 5,154,801,386 3,911,060,043
Long term loan from banks-current portion 22(a) 690,766,349 600,988,955
Trade payables 936,929,700 649,079,203
Other payables 23(a) 1,348,381,804 1,180,279,013
Obligation under finance lease-current portion 18.1 652,878 523,990
Current tax liability 25(a) 358,735,798 508,197,976
Current liabilities 9,606,976,372 7,237,669,503

Liabilities

11,387,512,694

9,289,565,755

Total equity and liabilities

16,075,870,945 14,204,013,549

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

N7 oA

Managing Director

Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012
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Advanced Chemical Industries Limited

Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note
Revenue 26(a)
Cost of sales 27(a)

Gross Profit
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 28(a)

Other income 29(a)
Operating profit
Share of profit of equity accounted investees

Financing costs 30(a)

Provision for contribution to WPPF
Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses

Current tax expense

Deferred tax expense

Profit after tax for the year
Profit attributable to:
Equityholders of the Company
Non-controlling interest
Profit after tax for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 32.1
Diluted earnings per share 32.2

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

N7 A

Managing Director Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012

2011 2010

Taka Taka
17,460,120,785 14,498,060,264
(12,625,298,947) (10,357,630,780)
4,834,821,838 4,140,429,484
(3,583,609,676) (3,213,291,747)
1,251,212,162 927,137,737
103,912,840 98,161,945
1,355,125,002 1,025,299,682
57,750,693 92,928,389
1,412,875,695 1,118,228,071
(752,697,387) (589,903,974)
660,178,308 528,324,097
(67,253,862) (56,940,974)
592,924,446 471,383,123
(330,868,745) (271,947,590)
(75,986,155) (59,047,083)
(406,854,900) (330,994,673)
186,069,546 140,388,450
238,113,071 216,246,323
(52,043,525) (75,857,873)
186,069,546 140,388,450
12.11 11.14
12.11 11.14

Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

ot G

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
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Advanced Chemical Industries Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
Taka Taka

Net profit after tax for the year 186,069,546 140,388,450
Other comprehensive income:
Revaluation surplus of property, plant and equipment = 1,191,872,323
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 17 (207,895,345) 257,970,169
Income tax on other comprehensive income (20,789,535) (90,805,552)
Total other comprehensive income,
net of tax (187,105,810) 1,359,036,940
Total comprehensive income (1,036,264) 1,499,425,390
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 51,007,261 1,295,436,370
Non-controlling interests (52,043,525) 203,989,020
Total comprehensive income (1,036,264) 1,499,425,390

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

M7 4 | Sleea O Rl

Managing Director Director Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

ot Gl

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Dhaka, 25 April 2012 Chartered Accountants
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Advanced Chemical Industries Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
Taka Taka
A) Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers 16,856,970,042 14,318,411,990
Cash receipts from other income 107,758,153 85,764,387
Receipts from (payments to) other receivables 8,406,330 (55,964,368)

16,973,134,525 14,348,212,009

Cash paid for:

Purchase of inventories (12,455,993,372) (10,705,135,957)
Operating expenses (3,496,505,618) (2,905,243,150)
Other payables 133,142,808 (66,357,858)
Advances, deposits and prepayments 119,969,942 97,333,724
Workers' profit participation fund (16,828,423) (24,259,093)
(15,716,214,663) (13,603,662,334)
Cash generated from operations 1,256,919,862 744,549,675
Financing costs (747,735,931) (575,158,489)
Income tax paid (380,601,456) (289,175,394)
(1,128,337,387) (864,333,883)
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities 128,582,475 (119,784,208)

B) Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (264,832,196) (254,306,225)
Acquisition of intangible assets - (2,335,201)
Payments for capital work- in- progress (1,221,760,212) (762,281,056)
Investments (11,282,572) (154,607,192)
Sale proceeds from property, plant and equipment 1,472,114 7,235,600
Net cash used in investing activities (1,496,402,867) (1,166,294,074)

C) Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest (39,854,584) (32,187,357)
Inter-company debts paid (561,021) (911,441)
Dividend paid (228,144,884) (194,716,557)
Short term loan received 1,304,337,820 959,228,238
Long term loan paid (130,639,678) (94,066,651)
Proceeds from / (payment for) sale / redemption of Zero Coupon Bonds (124,391,014) 400,006,924
Issuance of shares to non-controlling interest 1,500,000 -
Repayment of lease obligation (573,993) (1,315,809)
Net cash from financing activities 781,672,646 1,036,037,347
D) Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (586,147,746) (250,040,935)
E) Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January (111,486,505) 138,554,430
F) Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December (D+E) 13(a) (697,634,251) (111,486,505)

Closing balance represents:
Cash and cash equivalents 13(a) 419,074,20 276,053,818
Bank overdraft (1,116,708,457) (387,540,323)

(697,634,251) (111,486,505)

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 52 Annual Report 2011




Notes to the Financial Statements
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011

1.1

1.1.1

1.1.2

1.1.3

1.1.4

Reporting entity

Advanced Chemical Industries Limited (ACI Limited) is a public limited company incorporated in
Bangladesh on 24 January 1973 as ICI Bangladesh Manufacturers Limited. The registered office
of the Company is situated in Dhaka. The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at
and for the year ended 31 December 2011 comprise the Company's and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the "Group" and individually as "Group entities") and the Group's interest in
associates and jointly controlled entities. The Group primarily is involved in manufacturing of
pharmaceuticals, consumer brands, livestock & fisheries products and marketing them along
with fertilizer, seeds and other agricultural items.

The Company is listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange
Limited (CSE).

Description of subsidiaries

ACI Formulations Limited

The Company was incorporated on 29 October 1995 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1994. The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and marketing of
a number of agrochemical and consumer products. The Company became a publicly listed
company through direct listing process effective from 18 November 2008 with Dhaka Stock
Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited.

ACI Salt Limited

The Company was incorporated on 13 June 2004 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1994. The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and marketing of
edible branded salt.

ACI Foods Limited

The Company was incorporated on 14 September 2006 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1994. The main objectives of the Company are manufacturing, processing and
marketing of different food items including spices and different snack items.

ACI Pure Flour Limited

The Company was incorporated on 29 August 2006 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1994. The main objectives of the Company are to carry on the business of milling,
processing, packaging and marketing of wheat flour products.

1.1.5 Apex Leather craft Limited

The Company was incorporated on 22 May 1990 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1994. There was no business activity of the Company other than letting out its
property to ACI Limited.
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1.1.6 Flyban Insecticides Limited

The Company was incorporated on 5 October 1991 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1994. The Company's main function was to manufacture and sale of mosquito
coil. There was no business operation of the Company during the year under review.

1.1.7 ACI Agrochemicals Limited

The Company was incorporated on 4 July 2006 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1994. The main objectives of the Company are to carry on the business of
manufacturing, formulating and packaging of pesticide, fertilizer, plant nutrient, animal food and
other nutrient products. The Company is yet to start its commercial operation.

1.1.8 ACI Motors Limited

The Company was incorporated on 11 December 2007 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1994. The main objectives of the Company are to carry on the business of buying,
selling, importing and assembling of vehicles for both agricultural and non-agricultural use
including other agricultural equipment and supplying of spare parts and providing service facilities
for these vehicles and equipment.

1.1.9 Creative Communication Limited

The Company was incorporated on 2 September 2007 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1994. The principal activities of the Company are managing media solutions and
similar services for different clients including television commercials and other advertisement and
promotion related activities.

1.1.10 Premiaflex Plastics Limited

The Company was incorporated on 11 June 2007 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1994. The main objectives of the Company are to carry out the business of
manufacturing and marketing of plastic products, flexible printing and other ancillary business
associated with plastic and flexible printing. The Company commenced its commercial production
from 1 December 2008.

1.1.11 ACI Logistics Limited

The Company was incorporated on 29 April 2008 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1994. The main objective of the Company is to set-up nationwide retail outlets in
order to facilitate the improvement in goods marketing efficiency and to provide a modern self
service shopping option to customers.

1.1.12 ACI Edible Oils Limited
The Company was incorporated on 13 December 2010 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1994. The main objective of the Company is to carry out the business as
manufacturing as well as trading of all kinds of crude and refined edible oils, edible fats, food
grade chemicals, cleansing materials, preservatives and other allied food products.

2. Basis of preparation
2.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Bangladesh
Accounting Standards (BASs), Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs), the Companies
Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.
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2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

3.1

Date of authorisation

The consolidated financial statements as well as separate financial statements were authorized by
the Board of Directors on 25th April 2012 for public issue.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain
assets which are stated either at revalued amount or fair market value as explained in the
accompanying notes.

Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are prepared in Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk), which is the Company's
functional currency.

Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Bangladesh Accounting
Standards (BASs) and Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs) requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected thereby.

Reporting Period

The financial period of the companies other than the following two associates covers one year
from 1 January to 31 December and is followed consistently.
Financial periods of two associates are:

Stochastic Logic Limited From 1 August to 31 July
Asian Consumer Care (Pvt.) Limited From 1 April to 31 March

The figures involved in the aforesaid two associated companies up to 31 December 2011 from the
end of their accounting years are considered to be immaterial to these financial statements.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

3.1.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by ACI Limited. Control exists when ACI Limited has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken
into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries have been included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that it ceases. The
accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the
policies adopted by ACI Limited.
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3.1.2

3.2
3.2.1

3.2.2

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealized income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized gains arising from transactions with associates are eliminated against the investment
to the extent of ACI Limited's interest in the investee. Unrealized losses, if any, are eliminated in
the same way as unrealized gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost or revaluation less accumulated
depreciation. The items of property, plant and equipment were revalued in the year 2004, 2007
and 2010 by the firm of professional valuers on the basis of fair market value. When revalued
assets are disposed off, the amounts included in the revaluation surplus are transferred to
retained earnings. Capital work-in-progress represents the cost incurred for acquisition and / or
construction of items of property, plant and equipment that were not ready for use at the end of
2011 and these are stated at cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of asset. The cost of self constructed asset includes the cost of material, direct labour
and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their
intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be
measured reliably. All other repair & maintenance expense are charged to income statement as it
is incurred.

Separate financial statements of Apex Leatercraft Limited, a solely owned subsidiary of ACI
Limited, includes investment property rented to the Group. For consolidation purpose, considering
single entity concept this asset is shown under property, plant and equipment in the consolidated
financial statements.

Depreciation

All items of property, plant and equipment have been depreciated on straight line basis.
Depreciation on additions are charged at 50% of normal rates only in the year of acquisition and
no depreciation is charged in the year of disposal. Depreciation is charged at the rates varying
from 2.5% to 20% depending on the estimated useful lives of assets. No depreciation is charged
for land and capital work-in-progress. The Company is following this policy consistently from past
years.

The revalued items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated by writing off their revalued
amount at the date of revaluation over their remaining estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

Building 40 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture and fixture 10 years
Electrical and other office appliances 10 years
Office machinery 10 years
Vehicles 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.
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3.2.3 Capitalization of borrowing costs

3.2.4

3.3
3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

3.4
3.4.1

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition of fixed assets is capitalized as per Bangladesh Accounting
Standard (BAS)-23, Borrowing costs at the weighted average cost of borrowings. However,
capitalization of borrowing costs is ceased when acquisition of relevant asset is completed.

Impairment

The carrying amount of the entity's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets (considered as disclosed separately under respective accounting standards), are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is reestimated. However, no such conditions that
might be suggestive of a heightened risk of impairment of assets existed at the reporting date.

Intangible asset
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's interest in the net
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree on the date of acquisition.

Software

Software that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific assets to which it relates.

Amortization

Amortization is charged in the income statement on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives of intangible assets other than goodwill. Amortization on additions are charged at
50% of normal rates only in the year of acquisition. Amortization is charged at the rates of 10-
20% depending on the estimated useful lives of assets and no amortization is charged in the year
of disposal.
The estimated useful life for the current intangible asset is as follows:

Useful life Normal rate
Software 5-10 years 10-20 Percent
Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.

Leased assets
Finance lease

Leases in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured
at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged according to the policy applicable for the owned assets of the Company.
Lease payments

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance
expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each

period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.
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3.4.2

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.8.1

3.8.2

Operating lease

Payments made under operating leases are recognized in income statement on a straight line
basis over the term of the lease.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is
based on the weighted average principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress,
cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operation capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Stock- in-transit represents the cost incurred up to the date of the statement of financial position
for the items that were not received till to the date of reporting. Inventory losses and abnormal
losses are recognized as expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised at original invoiced amount. Receivables are stated at net off
provision for doubtful debts. Provision is made in the financial statements considering the
uncertainty of recovery at the date of the statement of financial position and doubtful debts are
written off when the receivables become finally irrecoverable based on assessment and judgment
made by senior management of the Company.

Provision

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in
the comprehensive income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current tax

Current tax expense has been recognised on the basis of the Finance Act 2011 and Income Tax
Ordinance 1984.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated using the carrying amount and tax base of assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax arises due to temporary difference deductible or taxable for the events or
transactions recognized in the comprehensive income statement. A temporary difference is the
difference between the tax base of an asset or liability and its carrying amount/reported amount
in the statement of financial position. Deferred tax asset or liability is the amount of income tax
recoverable or payable in future periods recognized in the current period. The deferred tax
asset/income or liability/expense does not create a legal recoverability/liability to and from the
income tax authority. Deferred tax also arises due to revaluation of property, plant and
equipment. The resulting impact of deferred tax assets/liabilities on revaluation surplus is
included in the statement of comprehensive income.
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3.9 Investment in shares

In the separate financial statements of the Company, all investments categorized under
'Investment available for sale' and 'Held-to-maturity' are carried at fair value and other
investments are carried at cost.

In the consolidated financial statements of Advanced Chemical Industries Limited, following
valuation principles have been used:

Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries has been accounted for as per, Bangladesh Accounting Standard 27
(revised-2008): Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements - The investment is eliminated in
full against the equity of acquiree measured at fair value at the date of acquisition.

Investments available for sale
These are valued at fair value and the change in fair value of investments available for sale is
presented in comprehensive income statement and in statement of financial position. This is as
per Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standard 7: Financial Instruments Disclosures, Bangladesh
Accounting Standard 32: Financial Instruments: Presentation and Bangladesh Accounting
Standard 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement applicable for periods
beginning from 1 January 2010.

Associates and joint ventures

Associates are those entities in which ACI Limited has significant influence, but not control, over
the financial and operating policies. Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities ACI
Limited has joint control, established by contractual agreement and requiring unanimous consent
for strategic, financial and operating decisions. Associates and joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method (equity accounted investees). The consolidated financial statements
include the ACI Limited's share of the income and expenses of equity accounted invested, after
adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of the ACI Limited, from the date that
significant influence or joint control commences until the date that significant influence or joint
control ceases. This is in consistent with Bangladesh Accounting Standard 28: Investments in
Associates and Bangladesh Accounting Standard 31: Interests in Joint Ventures.

3.10 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at reporting date
are translated at rates ruling at the statement of financial position date. All exchange differences
are charged/credited to the statement of comprehensive income.

3.11 Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in shares and fixed deposit receipts
(FDR), trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, share capital, and interest-
bearing borrowings.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs.

Investment in shares-other than the investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Investment in shares are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale.
Initially they are recognized at cost and subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at
fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses and foreign currency differences on
available-for-sale are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in fair value
reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognized, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Investment in Fixed Deposit Receipts (FDR)

The Company has the positive intent and ability to hold FDR to maturity, and as such financial
assets are classified as held to maturity. Held-to-maturity financial assets are recognized at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and all call deposits with original maturities of
three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Company's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose only of the statement of cash flows.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effect.

Trade payables
Trade payables are recognized at fair value.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost
using the effective interest method less any impairment losses.

ACI 20% Convertible Zero Coupon Bonds (ZCB)

Zero Coupon Bonds are recognized initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, ZCBs are stated at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

3.12 Financial risk management

The Company's management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. The Company's management policies are established to
identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company to set appropriate risk limits and controls
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies, procedures and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The
Company has provided in the separate notes regarding the information about the Company's
exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk and the Company's management of capital. The Company has
exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.

Credit risk (note-33.1)
Liquidity risk (note-33.2)
Market risk (note-33.3)

3.13 Revenue recognition

3.13.1 a) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised upon invoicing the customers for goods sold and delivered. Sales are
accounted for net of value added tax, trade discount and allowances. In case of cash delivery,
revenue is recognised when delivery is made and cash is received by the Company.

3.13.2 Revenue arising from services
Revenue from services rendered is recognized in income statement in proportion to the stage of
completion of the transaction at the reporting date.

3.13.3 Revenue arising from commission
When the Group acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the principal in a transaction, the
revenue is recognized in the net amount of commission earned by the Group.

3.13.4 Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when right to receive payment of such dividend is established.
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3.14 Allocation common service costs

Common costs and facilities are allocated to entities based on common cost sharing agreement
and followed consistently.

3.15 Statement of cash flows
Cash flows from operating activities have been presented under direct method.

3.16 Employee benefits
a. Defined contribution plan (provident fund)
The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme where employees contribute 10% of
their basic salary with equal contribution by the Company. The provident fund is considered as
defined contribution plan being managed by a Board of Trustees.

b. Defined benefit plan (gratuity)

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme, provision in respect of which is made
annually covering all permanent employees. The Employees' Gratuity Fund is being considered as
defined benefit plan.

Defined benefit plan is a retirement benefit plan under which amounts to be paid as retirement
benefits are determined by reference to employees' earnings and year of services. The rate used
to discount post employment benefit obligations is determined by reference to the rate stated in
the actuarial report. Actuarial valuation of gratuity scheme has been made in 2011 to assess the
adequacy of the liabilities provided for the schemes.

c. Workers' profit participation fund
The Company had created funds for workers as 'Workers' Profit Participation Fund' and 5% of the
profit before charging such expense have been transferred to this fund.

3.17 Earnings per share (EPS)

The Company and the Group (which is made up of ACI Limited and its subsidiaries and
associates) present its basic earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company /
Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. This has been shown on the face of income statement and computation of EPS is
stated in note 32.

3.18 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that
relate to transactions with any of the Company's other components. However, a segment is a
distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in providing related products or
services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different
from those of other segments. The Company's primary format for segment is based on business
segments.

All operating segments' operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company's managing
director to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. Segment results that are
reported to the managing director include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
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3.19

Page 62

The business described below as part of segment analysis of units analyzed for the criteria of
reportable segments as specified in Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standard 8: Operating
Segments-

Pharmaceuticals: Involves in manufacturing and marketing of health care products in home and
abroad.

Consumer Brands: Involves in marketing and distributing of consumer products.

Livestock & Fisheries: Involves in manufacturing and distributing of veterinary and fisheries
products.

Cropcare and Public Health: Involves in manufacturing and marketing of crop protection items.
ACI Motors: Involves in the business of buying and selling of agricultural equipment.
ACI Pure Flour: Involves in milling, processing, packaging and marketing of wheat flour products.

Retail chain: Involves in facilitating the improvement in goods marketing efficiency and to provide
a modern self-service shopping option to customers.

Premiaflex Plastics: Involves in manufacturing, processing and marketing of plastic products at
home.

The detail segment analysis is shown in note-37

Going concern review

During the year under review, ACI Logistics Limited, a subsidiary of ACI Limited, incurred a
net loss of Tk. 630,727,475 resulting an accumulated loss at the reporting date to
Tk. 1,776,391,190. The Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
Tk. 1,644,994,361 at the balance sheet date. The equity of the Company at the closing date
shows an adverse balance of Tk. 1,428,551,190 whereas amount due to banks on the same date
was Tk. 705,697,294.

Another subsidiary of the Group namely ACI Foods Limited, incurred a net loss of
Tk. 199,299,884 during the year making an accumulated loss at the balance sheet date to
Tk. 609,710,533. Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Tk. 740,970,087.
The equity of the Company at the closing date shows an adverse balance of Tk. 569,710,533
whereas amount due to banks on the same date was Tk. 320,095,257.

In addition to the above facts, these two subsidiaries have been experiencing working capital
deficiencies and adverse key financial ratios during the last few years. However, the management
of these companies are expected to overcome the present situation by taking necessary
measures as appropriate. Necessary plans and actions are underway to this effect which has
been substantiated by projections and forecasts supported by enhanced and effective operation
mechanisms. Nevertheless, major shareholders of these companies assured in principle for
further financing, if so required. Further, the Group also committed to continue support by way of
trade finance. In view of the continued support and assurance from the Group and major
shareholders, management believes that it remains appropriate to prepare these financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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5 (a)

Capital work-in-progress- 2011

Building

Plant and machinery

Land and land development
Furniture & fixtures

Electrical and other office appliances

Capital work-in-progress-comparative -2010

Building
Plant and machinery
Land and land development

Consolidated capital work-in-progress-2011

Land

Building

Plant and machinery

Furniture and fixture

Electrical and other office appliances
Software

Office machinery

Vehicles

Additions Transferred
Balance as at during to fixed Balance as at
1 January the year assets Adjustments 31 December 2011
Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka

132,210,919 84,312,646 3,905,969 - 212,617,596
313,311,493 163,793,172 340,197,742 - 136,906,923
232,887,096 262,106,310 233,056,403 - 261,937,003
467,096 - 467,096 - =
- 79,500 - - 79,500
678,876,604 510,291,628 577,627,210 - 611,541,022
42,113,872 90,097,047 - - 132,210,919
64,016,856 330,301,447 80,539,714 - 313,778,589
232,887,096 - - 232,887,096
106,130,728 653,285,590 80,539,714 - 678,876,604
240,807,096 273,180,480 252,050,573 - 261,937,003
145,809,724 257,607,837 19,966,860 - 383,450,701
393,946,592 727,368,999 472,150,554 - 649,165,037
47,169,340 1,654,323 41,457,491 (7,366,172) -
10,149,603 119,182 9,525,284 - 743,501
21,829,905 - 21,829,905 - =
11,497,270 4,651,940 13,486,542 (2,662,668) =
3,856,000 2,005,939 5,861,939 - =
875,065,530 1,266,588,700 836,329,148 (10,028,840) 1,295,296,242

Consolidated capital work-in-progress-comparative-2010

Land

Building

Plant and machinery

Furniture and fixture

Electrical and other office appliances
Software

Office machinery

Vehicles

Consolidated intangible assets

Goodwill on acquisition
Software
Cost

Less: Accumulated amortization
Carrying amounts

- 261,277,105 3,390,009 - 257,887,096
75,387,646 57,541,864 33,999,823 - 98,929,687
266,872,428 432,765,955 273,891,451 - 425,746,932
19,472,923 118,387,317 118,393,317 - 19,466,923
1,332,505 13,242,360 13,242,360 - 1,332,505
559,199 - - - 559,199
89,698,510 55,204,655 73,759,977 - 71,143,188
- 3,859,941 3,859,941 - -
453,323,211 942,279,197 520,536,878 - 875,065,530
Additions Retirement

Balance as at during and Balance as at
1 January the year disposal 31 Dec 2011

_Taka_ _Taka_ Taka Taka_
49,261,574 - - 49,261,574
15,242,787 21,986,128 - 37,228,915
64,504,361 21,986,128 - 86,490,489
2,387,772 2,283,874 - 4,671,646
62,116,589 19,702,254 - 81,818,843
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Long term investments

a) Investment in shares

Investment in subsidiaries
Flyban Insecticides Limited
ACI Formulations Limited

ACI Salt Limited

ACI Foods Limited

ACI Pure Flour Limited

Apex Leathercraft Limited
ACI Agrochemicals Limited
Creative Communication Limited
ACI Motors Limited
Premiaflex Plastics Limited
ACI Logistics Limited

ACI Edible Oils Limited

Investment in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Asian Consumer Care (Pvt.) Limited
ACI Godrej Agrovet ( Pvt.) Limited
Computer Technology Limited
Stochastic Logic Limited

Tetley ACI (Bangladesh) Limited

Investment in others
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Central Depository Bangladesh Limited

b) Other investment
FDR with Bank Asia Limited and others

Total investment

2011 2010
Face value Called and
Number of per paid up Share-

shares share capital per share holding Value Value

Taka Taka % Taka Taka
25,500 100 100 51.00 2,550,000 2,550,000
16,050,070 10 10 53.50 | 66,872,823 66,872,823
78,000 1,000 1,000 78.00 | 78,000,000 78,000,000
380,000 100 100 95.00 38,000,000 38,000,000
380,000 100 100 95.00 38,000,000 38,000,000
365,700 100 100 100.00 24,567,963 24,567,963
180 100 100 90.00 18,000 18,000
6,000 100 100 60.00 600,000 600,000
6,750 100 100 72.00 675,000 675,000
32,000 1,000 1,000 80.00 32,000,000 32,000,000
273,600 1,000 1,000 76.00 | 273,600,000 273,600,000
850,000 10 10 85.00 8,500,000 -
563,383,786 554,883,786
3,393,321 10 10 24.00 33,933,210 23,994,450
1,850,000 100 100 50.00 | 185,000,000 185,000,000
200 100 100 40.00 20,000 20,000
2,000 100 100 20.00 200,000 200,000
1,150,000 100 100 50.00 | 115,000,000 115,000,000
334,153,210 324,214,450
8,478,310 10 10 3.33 | 292,501,695 500,397,040
913,889 10 10 0.58 3,138,890 8,833,340
295,640,585 509,230,380
4,086,022 3,946,718
1,197,263,603 1,392,275,334

Other investment includes Fixed Deposit Receipt amounting to Taka 3,586,022 which is kept as lien against service
received from Titas Gas Transmission and Distribution Limited. Therefore, the Company has no intention to encash the said
amount and recorded as long term investment.

Consolidated long term investments

Investment valued at fair value:
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Investment valued at cost:
Central Depository Bangladesh Limited
Computer Technology Limited
Investment in FDR

Investment valued under equity method:

Tetley ACI (Bangladesh) Limited
Asian Consumer Care (Pvt.) Limited
ACI Godrej Agrovet (Pvt.) Limited
Stochastic Logic Limited

Total carrying amount of investment

Annual Report 2011

2011 2010
Face value Called and
Number of per paid up Share-

shares share  capital per share holding Value Value

Taka Taka % Taka Taka
8,478,310 10 10 3.33 292,501,695 500,397,040
913,889 10 10 0.58 3,138,890 8,833,340
200 100 100 40 20,000 20,000
86,399,072 79,325,935
382,059,657 588,576,315
1,150,000 100 100 50 (16,826,441) 9,224,625
3,393,321 10 10 24 18,848,242 7,004,499
1,850,000 100 100 50 386,469,639 304,500,567
2,000 100 100 20 (1,033,543) (961,247)
387,457,897 319,768,444

769,517,554

908,344,759




8 (a)

Inventories

Finished goods
Work-in-process
Raw materials
Packing materials
Stores and spares
Stock in transit

2011
Taka

1,176,656,093
59,307,201
347,515,033
156,759,539
19,673,154
105,948,267

2010
Taka

936,842,134
70,926,828
465,395,521
153,506,089
12,828,553
184,199,907

Less: Provision for slow moving and damaged goods and write down to NRV

As the Company deals in large number of items which vary in units, item-wise quantity statement of

inventories could not be given.

Consolidated inventories

Finished goods
Work-in-process
Raw materials
Packing materials
Stores and spares
Stock in transit

1,865,859,287
95,377,510

1,823,699,032
107,626,423

1,770,481,777

1,716,072,609

2,177,959,321
79,663,202
1,184,141,728
170,097,588

1,699,955,555
88,353,875
1,020,557,809
258,965,459

Less: Provision for slow moving and damaged items and write down to NRV

Trade receivables

Pharmaceuticals
Livestock & Fisheries
Consumer brands
Seeds

Fertilizer

Cropex

Less: Provision for doubtful debts

65,965,711 58,866,223
208,837,289 334,140,528
3,886,664,839  3,460,839,449
152,488,383 176,780,415

3,734,176,456

3,284,059,034

2011 2010
Dues over Dues below

6 months 6 months Total Total

Taka Taka Taka Taka
30,187,007 163,051,890 193,238,897 280,664,756
44,416,254 135,847,282 180,263,536 160,810,673
51,172,066 208,371,365 259,543,431 207,962,448
15,121,962 151,006,136 166,128,098 104,837,726
34,311,323 155,129,939 189,441,262 169,048,589
109,380,512 72,220,647 181,601,159 127,106,672
284,589,124 885,627,259 1,170,216,383  1,050,430,865
38,604,563 32,891,769
1,131,611,820 1,017,539,096
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10.

10 (a)

Page 70

Consolidated trade receivables

Pharmaceuticals
Agro-chemicals
Consumer Brands
Livestock & Fisheries
Seeds

Fertilizer

Cropex

ACI Logistics

ACI Salt

ACI Foods

ACI Flour
Premiaflex Plastics
ACI Motors

Edible Qils

Provision for doubtful debts

Debts due over six months
Debts due below six months

Other receivables

Receivable from Novartis
(Bangladesh) Limited
Receivable from Oram Limited
Godrej consumer product

advertisement and promotional fund

Les Laboratories Servier
Transcom Distribution Limited
Bank guarantee margin
Other receivables

Consolidated other receivables

Debts due over six months
Debts due below six months

Annual Report 2011

2011
Taka

193,238,897
609,402,737
259,543,431
180,263,536
166,128,098
189,441,261
181,601,159
9,450,898
5,305,571
38,408,507
101,925,030
350,521,596
990,780,729
7,530,698

2010
Taka

280,664,756
614,869,445
207,962,448
160,810,673
104,837,726
169,048,589
127,106,672
3,891,114
2,727,922
46,140,702
80,143,031
202,186,829
719,228,996

3,283,542,148
120,753,179

2,719,618,904
78,140,568

3,162,788,969

2,641,478,336

496,802,509
2,665,986,460

360,753,907
2,280,724,429

3,162,788,969

2,641,478,336

2011 2010
Dues over Dues below
6 months 6 months Total Total
Taka Taka Taka Taka
- 583,270 583,270 547,517
2,262,050 - 2,262,050 2,262,050
- 497,650 497,650 10,910,264
- 29,894,080 29,894,080 41,556,604
- 2,958 2,958 5,600,619
8,173,854 - 8,173,854 7,728,456
10,647,115 86,393,727 97,040,842 65,836,636
21,083,019 117,371,685 138,454,704 134,442,146
2011 2010
Taka Taka
21,083,019 18,395,583
129,152,124 130,663,007
150,235,143 149,058,590




11.

11 (a)

12

12 (a)

Advances, deposits and prepayments

Advances:

Loans and advances to staff
Advance to C & F agents and others
Advance for rent and others

VAT current account

Advance for capital expenditure

Deposits:
Deposits for utilities
Tender deposits

Prepayments

Consolidated advances, deposits and prepayments

Advances:

Advance to staff

Advance to C&F agent and others
Advance for rent and others

VAT current account.

Advance for capital expenditure

Deposits:

Deposits for utilities
Tender deposits

L/C margin

Prepayments

Inter-company receivables

Flyban Insecticides Limited

Apex Leathercraft Limited
Computer Technology Limited
Tetley ACI (Bangladesh) Limited
Asian Consumer Care (Pvt.) Limited
ACI Salt Limited

ACI Godrej Agrovet (Pvt.) Limited
ACI Foods Limited

ACI Pure Flour Limited

ACI Agrochemicals Limited
Stochastic Logic Limited
Premiaflex Plastics Limited

ACI Motors Limited

ACI Logistics Limited

Consolidated inter-company receivables

Tetley ACI (Bangladesh) Limited
Asian Consumer Care (Pvt.) Limited
Computer Technology Limited

ACI Godrej Agrovet (Pvt.) Limited
Stochastic Logic Limited

2011 2010
Taka Taka
112,032,246 117,029,402
132,572,986 180,168,535
66,368,854 13,517,065
59,527,017 72,760,026
134,689,931 -
505,191,034 383,475,028

5,678,678 5,652,873
11,065,850 10,352,387
16,744,528 16,005,260

912,091 14,846,230
522,847,653 414,326,518
120,599,445 128,812,497
137,705,007 181,212,874
206,718,174 377,582,131
59,596,239 85,461,264
135,318,521 -
659,937,386 773,068,766
21,674,170 22,438,627
22,002,252 18,863,969

1,256,000 1,256,000
44,932,422 42,558,596

8,521,803 20,623,684

713,391,611 836,251,046
999,861 987,341
105,915,073 103,634,776
30,000 30,000
469,249 484,909
7,576,425 8,149,787
116,151,680 161,039,371
879,726 869,727
528,223,183 295,774,590
- 116,219,923

151,227 115,662
5,169,329 4,796,599
566,438,472 369,425,920
12,515,082 218,602,960
1,700,565,385 916,611,227

3,045,084,692

2,196,742,792

469,249 484,909
7,576,425 8,149,787
30,000 30,000
879,726 869,726
5,169,329 4,796,599
14,124,729 14,331,021
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13. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

Collection in hand

Cash at banks in current accounts
Total cash and cash equivalents

2011 2010

Taka Taka
12,562,750 13,137,489
86,928,214 45,894,210
124,168,959 95,408,436
223,659,923 154,440,135

As the Company deals with large number of bank accounts, details of cash at bank could not be

given.

13.1 Cash and cash equivalents used for statement of cash flows' purpose

Total cash and cash equivalents
Bank overdrafts used for cash management purposes
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows

223,659,923 154,440,135
(905,029,397)  (230,296,089)
(681,369,474) (75,855,954)

Details of bank overdrafts alongwith terms and conditions are shown under note 20

13 (a) Consolidated cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand 23,623,370 32,678,386
Cash at banks in current accounts 269,161,174 173,831,395
Collection in hand 126,289,662 69,544,037
Total consolidated cash and cash equivalents 419,074,206 276,053,818
Consolidated cash and cash equivalents used for statement of cash flows' purpose
Total Consolidated cash and cash equivalents 419,074,206 276,053,818
Bank overdrafts used for cash management purposes ( note-20.a) (1,116,708,457) (387,540,323)
Consolidated cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows (697,634,251) (111,486,505)
14. Share capital
Authorized capital:
50,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 500,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and paid-up capital:
1,680,700 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 16,807,000 16,807,000
1,049,300 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each
issued for consideration other than cash 10,493,000 10,493,000
7,350,000 Rights shares of Tk. 10 each 73,500,000 73,500,000
9,324,000 Bonus shares of Tk. 10 each 93,240,000 93,240,000
310,756 Conversion of bond into equity of Tk 10 each 3,107,560 -
19,714,756 197,147,560 194,040,000
The aforesaid share capital is subscribed as under :
Number of
shares Percentage
Directors/Sponsors 6,741,647 34.20
Institutions 6,809,854 34.54
General shareholders 6,163,255 31.26
19,714,756 100.00
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16

16.1

16.2

A distribution schedule of the above shares is given below as required by the listing rules:

% of total
shareholdings

Number of

shareholders Shareholdings No of shares

15,498 Less than 500 shares 1,516,232 7.69
1,532 501- 5,000 shares 1,693,302 8.59
77 5,001- 10,000 shares 509,639 2.59

39 10,001- 20,000 shares 683,017 3.46

21 20,001- 30,000 shares 589,375 2.99

13 30,001- 40,000 shares 619,524 3.14

13 40,001- 50,000 shares 444,044 2.25

12 50,001- 100,000 shares 753,247 3.82

13 100,001- 1,000,000 shares 5,627,543 28.54

4 Over 1,000,000 shares 7,278,833 36.92
17,222 19,714,756 100.00

Share premium-Tk. 298,788,486
This represents the amount received against issue of shares at premium in the years 1995, 1998 and 2011.

Capital reserve and revaluation surplus

Capital reserve-Tk. 1,671,386

This represents the total grant received from Imperial Chemical Industries plc, London towards the
cost of fixed assets.

Revaluation surplus

Revaluation surplus represents revaluation of porperty, plant and equipments and its adjustment and
realization at the time of disposal. Details of these are follows:

2011
Taka

2010
Taka

Opening balance as at 1 January 300,272,175

Addition during the year
Adjustment due to change in tax rate for deferred tax on land
Realized during the year due to disposal of fixed assets

16.2 (a) Consolidated revaluation surplus

17

Opening balance as at 1 January

Addition during the year
Realized during the year due to disposal of fixed assets
Adjustment due to change in tax rate for deferred tax on land

Change in fair value of available for sale (AFS) reserve

896,520,564

525,039,492

- 71,505,839
(883,609) (296,942)
895,636,955 896,520,564

1,515,899,388

(883,609)

589,529,448
847,016,895

(296,942)
: 79,649,987
1,515,015,779 1,515,899,388

This represents changes in fair value of investment in shares of Mutual Trust Bank Limited. Details are

as follows:

Changes in fair

No. of shares  Cost of Movement in value of AFS AFS reserve as
Year held investment MV of shares fair value financial assets at 31 December
2008 498,960 28,316,000 159,542,460 131,226,460 131,226,460 118,103,814
2009 588,772 28,316,000 242,426,871 214,110,871 82,884,411 192,699,784
2010 706,526 28,316,000 500,397,040 472,081,040 257,970,169 424,872,936
2011 8,478,310 28,316,000 292,501,695 264,185,695 (207,895,345) 237,767,126
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18 Long term liabilities
Notes

Staff gratuity provision

Other long term employee benefits

Employees group insurance fund

Loan from other sources - unsecured

Obligation under finance lease-due more than one year 18.1
ACI 20% Convertible Zero Coupon Bonds (ZCB) 18.2
Long term bank loans 18.2

18 (a) Consolidated long term liabilities

Staff gratuity provision

Other long term employee benefits

Employees group insurance fund

Loan from other sources - unsecured

Obligation under finance lease

ACI 20% Convertible Zero Coupon Bonds (ZCB) 18.2 (a)
Long term bank loans 18.2 (a)

18.1 Obligation under finance lease

Payment due within one year
Payment due within 5 years but later than one year

18.2 Long term loans

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank

Total long term bank loans

ACI 20% Convertible Zero Coupon Bonds

18.2 (a) Consolidated long term loans

Standard Chartered Bank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Eastern Bank Limited

Bank Asia Limited

National Bank Limited

The City Bank Limited

Dhaka Bank Limited

Prime Bank Limited

Jamuna Bank Limited

ACI 20% Convertible Zero Coupon Bonds

Page 74 Annual Report 2011

2011 2010

Taka Taka
187,185,768 139,451,996
38,381,000 44,827,716
400,000 400,000
215,245 215,245
3,787,119 -
658,437,268 824,254,495
= 3,918,713
888,406,400 1,013,068,165
192,352,477 144,281,512
43,785,320 44,827,716
400,000 400,000
215,245 215,245
3,787,119 -
658,437,268 824,254,495
607,996,736 819,551,746
1,506,974,165 1,833,530,714
652,878 523,990
3,787,119 -
4,439,997 523,990
= 685,661
= 3,233,052
= 3,918,713
658,437,268 824,254,495
658,437,268 828,173,208
- 3,233,052
66,150,540 34,198,643
53,603,521 12,395,549
263,309 -
69,374,998 116,331,730
24,155,765 48,566,336
74,116,719 112,738,368
52,150,553 84,836,564
268,181,331 407,251,504
607,996,736 819,551,746
658,437,268 824,254,495
1,266,434,004 1,643,806,241




19

20

20(a)

Deferred tax liabilities

(a) Deferred tax on temporary differences
(i) Taxable temporary differences
Fixed assets

(ii) Deductible temporary difference
Inventories
Trade receivables
Gratuity
Total deductible temporary difference
Net taxable temporary differences

Deferred tax liability
(b) Deferred tax liability on change in AFS Financial assets
Closing balance (a+b)

Bank overdrafts

Standard Chartered Bank
Commercial Bank of Ceylon Plc
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Citibank, N.A.

Mercantile Bank Limited

The City Bank Limited

Eastern Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

BRAC Bank Limited

AB Bank Limited

Bank Asia Limited

The Premier Bank Limited
Dutch-Bangla Bank Limited
ONE Bank Limited

Consolidated Bank Overdrafts
Standard Chartered Bank
Commercial Bank of Ceylon Plc
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Citibank, N.A.

The City Bank Limited

Mercantile Bank Limited

Dhaka Bank Limited

Eastern Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

BRAC Bank Limited

AB Bank Limited

Prime Bank Limited

National Bank Limited

Premier Bank Limited

Bank Asia Limited

Dutch Bangla Bank Limited

ONE Bank Limited

2011 2010
Taka Taka

1,720,703,079 1,259,848,580
95,377,510 107,626,423
38,604,563 32,891,769
187,185,768 139,451,996
321,167,841 279,970,188
1,399,535,238 979,878,392
98,593,278 80,652,086
26,418,570 47,208,104
125,011,848 127,860,190
140,461,228 83,004,933
37,095,600 39,394,132
19,767,861 5,830,010
30,072,484 32,066,654
65,438,061 407,624
185,886,539 273,356
15,340,172 451,350
90,604,857 41,709,608
36,385,045 28,367,834
(36,067,143) (4,953,352)
- 9,479,228
190,082,219 -
79,962,474 (5,735,288)
50,000,000 -
905,029,397 230,296,089
169,652,359 107,957,853
50,444,998 42,341,614
17,648,638 11,455,069
31,032,265 56,291,684
185,886,539 273,356
65,438,061 407,624
14,195,570 16,117,888
63,234,807 15,548,765
90,604,857 41,709,608
36,385,045 28,367,834
(36,067,143) (4,953,352)
26,147,266 21,881,140
53,400,446 26,727,502
190,082,219 -
14,442,636 23,920,625
94,179,894 (506,887)
50,000,000 -
1,116,708,457 387,540,323
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21

21 (a)

Short term loan from banks

Standard Chartered Bank
Commercial Bank of Ceylon Plc
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Citibank, N.A.

AB Bank Limited

The City Bank Limited

Eastern Bank Limited

BRAC Bank Limited

Bank Asia Limited

Jamuna Bank Limited

Dutch Bangla Bank Limited
Bank Alfalah Limited

Consolidated short term loan from banks
Standard Chartered Bank

Commercial Bank of Ceylon Plc

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Citibank, N.A.

AB Bank Limited

The City Bank Limited

Eastern Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Bank Asia Limited

Dutch Bangla Bank Limited

National Bank Limited

Jamuna Bank Limited

Bangladesh Krishi Bank Limited

BRAC Bank Limited

ONE Bank Limited

Prime Bank Limited

Facility arrangement for bank overdraft, short term bank loan and term loan are as follows:

Bank overdraft (Note: 20)

Limit : BDT 1,130,000,000
Purpose . Working capital financing
Tenure ;1 year

LC/LATR (Note: 21)

2011
Taka

671,014,329
200,000,000
423,963,627
24,148,324
205,707,078
339,841,656
397,885,742
96,555,737
16,162,100
16,408,250
96,021,136

2010
Taka

798,840,357
123,900,000
608,489,324
182,547,471
40,335,040
5,956,942
3,273,923
410,090,719
2,613,959
18,025,103
70,486,000

2,487,707,979

2,264,558,838

942,882,538 966,705,939
455,739,000 268,881,000
1,291,372,729 1,146,152,347
31,321,212 342,637,035
205,707,078 138,531,961
339,841,656 5,956,942
1,098,302,160 77,953,366
96,021,136 70,486,000
38,752,800 74,826,027
16,408,250 18,028,305
150,000,001 150,000,001
16,162,100 -

- 12,022

96,555,737 410,090,719
182,900,050 190,078,734
192,834,939 50,719,645
5,154,801,386 3,911,060,043

Limit : BDT 3,430,000,000

Purpose . To import raw material, packing material, Finished Goods and spare parts etc.
Tenure . Ranges from 120 days to 180 days

Short term loan/revolving loan (Note: 21)

Limit : BDT 2,015,000,000

Purpose . Working capital financing

Tenure . Range from 90 days to 180 days

Term loan (Note: 18)

Limit : BDT 34,051,010

Purpose . Import of capital machinery

Tenure . Range from 1 year to 4 years

Guarantee

Limit : BDT 70,000,000

Purpose : To issue guarantee to different government organizations, gas/electricity service

providers and other organization to participate in tender

Tenure : Range from 0 days to 5 years
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22 (a)

23

Securities for the facilities mentioned above are as under:
a) Demand promissory notes for BDT 6,383.69 million.
b) Registered hypothecation over inventories and accounts receivables on pari-passu basis for BDT 5,900 million.
c) Registered hypothecation over plant and machinery on pari-passu basis for BDT 1,455 million .
d) Corporate guarantee issued to AB Bank Limited by ACI Formulations Limited, ACI Pure Flour Limited and ACI Foods Limited.
e) Corporate guarantee issued to Premier Bank Limited by ACI Salt Limited.
f) Corporate guarantee issued to Bank Asia Limited by ACI Motors Limited and ACI Foods Limited.
g) Corporate guarantee issued to Dutch Bangla Bank Limited by ACI Salt Limited, ACI Foods Limited and ACI Motors Limited.

Facility for ACI 20% zero coupon bonds are as under:

ACI 20% Convertible Zero Coupon Bonds (Note: 18.2)

Issue Price : BDT 1,000,017,310

Face value : BDT 1,335,850,000

Purpose : For project financing and repaying existing debts.

Tenure : 5Syears

Repayment : From sales proceeds

Redemption : At maturity of each respective bond, redemption will be made in cash to the extent of 80% and rest 20%
is eligible for convertible option.

Conversion : Net Assets Value (NAV) per share as per last annual audited financial statements multiplied by 1.1

strike price

Conversion : 20% of the redemption value of the Zero Coupon Bonds at each maturity

value

Securities for the facility mentioned above are as follows:

i) The bonds are subordinated to the bank liabilities.
ii) Post dated cheques equivalent to the total face value of the ZCBs.

Long term loan from banks-current portion

Note 2011 2010
Taka Taka

Standard Chartered Bank 3,233,057 28,357,620
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited 685,357 4,484,137
ACI 20% Convertible Zero Coupon Bonds 252,492,448 262,939,808

256,410,862 295,781,565
Consolidated long term loans-current portion
Standard Chartered Bank 3,233,057 28,357,620
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited 43,348,115 51,601,383
The City Bank Limited 21,669,426 21,242,847
Dhaka Bank Limited 36,914,498 36,914,498
National Bank Limited 46,956,732 46,956,732
Eastern Bank Ltd. 115,402,915 22,971,668
Jamuna Bank Limited 144,111,757 130,004,399
Bank Asia Limited 9,349,788 -
Prime Bank Limited 17,287,613 -
ACI 20% Convertible Zero Coupon Bonds 252,492,448 262,939,808

690,766,349 600,988,955
Other payables
Creditors for expenses 407,912,344 309,507,832
Security money received from customers 77,970,381 53,871,317
Workers' profit participation fund 23.1 163,641,857 126,995,798
Unclaimed dividend 35,865,457 27,433,270
Tax deducted at source 53,480,795 27,128,362
Employees welfare fund 99,290,904 101,871,776
Rights share deposit to be refunded 563,723 563,723
Family day fund 4,148,057 4,311,769
Non-management staff provident fund 364,291 2,600,445
Advance against sale of land of ACI Trading Limited 72,639,388 -
Unclaimed refund warrant-Zero Coupon Bonds 3,738,779 4,442,737
Payable for redemption for ZCB 13,105,840 -
Management staff provident fund 276,830 1,279,802
Laser advertisement and promotional fund 6,411,162 4,274,846
Electronics advertisement and promotional fund 131,418 1,354,742

939,541,226 665,636,419
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23.1

23 (a)

23.1 (a)

24

25

25 (a)

Page 78

Workers' profit participation fund (WPPF)

Note

Opening balance
Interest
Addition during the year

Paid during the year
Closing Balance

Consolidated other payables

Creditors for expenses

Security money received from customers
Workers' profit participation fund

Unpaid dividend

Provident fund

Tax deducted from suppliers and employees
Employees savings fund

Rights share deposit to be refunded

Family day fund

Non-management staff provident fund
Unclaimed refund warrant-Zero Coupon Bonds
Payable for redemption for ZCB

Creditors for capital expenditure

Proceeds from sale of land of ACI Trading
Laser advertisement and promotional fund
Electronics advertisement and promotional fund

Consolidated Workers' profit participation fund (WPPF)

Opening balance
Interest
Addition during the year

Paid during the year
Closing Balance

Inter-company payables

ACI Formulations Limited
Creative Communication Limited
ACI Edible Oils Limited

ACI Pure Flour Limited

Current tax liability

Opening balance
Provision made during the year

Adjustment made during the year
Closing balance

Consolidated current tax liability

Opening balance
Provision for the year

Adjustment made during the year
Closing balance

Annual Report 2011

2011 2010

Taka Taka
126,995,798 87,846,858
13,348,196 9,572,589
47,014,874 42,528,729
187,358,869 139,948,176
(23,717,012) (12,952,378)
163,641,857 126,995,798

23.1 (a)

699,206,929

616,976,117

107,544,296 59,488,635
197,050,389 146,674,920
36,336,980 30,682,812
364,291 1,279,802
65,047,572 31,543,494
99,290,904 101,871,776
563,723 563,723
4,148,057 4,311,769
276,830 2,600,445
3,738,779 4,442,737
13,105,840 -
42,525,246 174,213,193
72,639,388 -
6,411,162 4,274,846
131,418 1,354,742
1,348,381,804 1,180,279,013

146,674,920

104,370,484

13,348,196 9,572,589

67,253,862 56,940,974
227,276,978 170,884,047
(30,226,589) (24,209,127)

197,050,389

146,674,920

243,764,427 56,454,542
17,164,621 13,101,792
10,497,600 -
17,644,495 -

289,071,143 69,556,334

348,971,867

353,966,851

194,212,347 213,842,650
543,184,214 567,809,501
(326,762,573) (218,837,634)
216,421,641 348,971,867

508,197,976

523,703,557

330,868,745 271,947,590
839,066,721 795,651,147
(480,330,923) (287,453,171)
358,735,798 508,197,976




25.1 Advance income tax

Opening Balance
Paid / withheld during the year

Adjustment made during the year
Closing Balance

25.1 (a) Consolidated advance income tax

Opening Balance
Paid / withheld during the year

Adjustment made during the year
Closing Balance

26 Revenue

Pharmaceuticals*
Livestock & Fisheries
Consumer Brands
Seeds

Fertilizer

Cropex

* Pharmaceuticals turnover includes sales of the following in units :

Tablets (Pc)
Capsules (Pc)
Injection (Pc)
Bottled products (Pc)
Creams (Pc)

Inhaler

2011 2010

Taka Taka
222,974,570 283,104,430
226,576,618 158,707,774
449,551,188 441,812,204
(326,762,573) (218,837,634)
122,788,615 222,974,570
389,792,767 387,574,948
416,312,605 290,263,956
806,105,372 677,838,904
(514,196,077) (288,046,137)
291,909,295 389,792,767
3,740,773,487 3,355,588,404
734,828,063 762,479,568
2,800,535,499 2,424,865,916
329,446,668 256,487,543
360,540,151 311,332,513
547,717,978 804,646,335
8,513,841,846 7,915,400,279
Quantity Quantity
13,046,403 10,845,175
3,763,924 3,324,475
4,220,507 3,944,264
20,429,860 18,257,997
3,974,346 4,067,223
362,974 150,577

The rest relates to agrochemical, livestock & fisheries, seeds, fertilizer, cropped and consumer

goods.

26 (a) Consolidated revenue

Gross sales
Inter-company sales
Net sales

18,905,526,176 15,596,577,576
(1,445,405,391) (1,098,517,312)
17,460,120,785 14,498,060,264
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28 (a)

Allocation of expenses

2011 2010
QCand
Particulars Administrative | Distribution | Manufacturing | development Selling
expenses expenses expenses expenses expenses Total Total
Taka Taka. Taka. Taka. Taka. Taka Taka.
(A) (A) (B) (©) (A)

Salary and wages 123,577,485 74,125,153 157,294,470 37,694,613 668,525,819 1,061,217,540 902,668,078
Traveling and conveyance 5,477,650 47,877,355 1,851,879 230,867 195,255,201 250,692,952 234,905,654
Rent and rates 9,690,844 21,054,576 30,940,935 24,976,850 86,663,205 80,362,801
Repair and maintenance 4,810,631 4,910,895 33,890,931 2,021,920 5,247,110 50,881,487 54,066,769
Fuel and power 2,318,862 2,869,256 77,127,447 1,431,428 4,400,479 88,147,471 56,330,731
Postage 5,172,090 1,744,909 1,012,301 325,657 14,716,763 22,971,719 22,878,152
Printing and stationery 7,673,118 7,538,369 1,702,876 1,002,040 17,334,638 35,251,041 26,286,651
Promotional expenses 4,953,619 5,061,826 154,211 641,002,002 651,171,658 596,089,895
Entertainment 2,002,860 2,798,609 7,002,829 5,352,021 17,156,318 12,136,260
Vehicle maintenance 4,442,303 38,018,397 4,508,790 160,441 21,544,771 68,674,703 59,526,325
Bad debts 5,991,736 5,991,736 6,782,660
Truck and handling 42,068,934 2,523,529 55,854,356 100,446,819 74,241,148
Legal and professional charges 3,824,263 4,900 52,835 1,273,738 5,155,736 2,529,069
Audit fees 400,000 400,000 400,000
Insurance 519,856 7,267,509 6,065,676 140,798 2,023,351 16,017,190 21,190,959
Directors' fees 15,000 15,000 12,750
Bank charges 65,156 2,138,228 344 5,660,680 7,864,408 7,635,086
Sundry expenses 115,411 39,138 398,070 552,619 186,210
Product development expenses 375,201 1,038,010 3,914,449 5,327,660 8,203,738
Training expenses 3,377,904 92,313 736,595 113,052 6,712,185 11,032,050 4,797,185
Depreciation 11,804,202 13,737,653 105,924,884 9,004,021 16,495,615 156,966,374 120,871,320
Amortization 518,932 518,932 259,467
Lab chemical and apparatus 1,751,126 5,178,610 6,929,736 9,972,051
Meeting expenses 4,571,479 25,955 15,000 13,262,962 17,875,396 17,994,932
Share department expenses 785,364 785,364 7,699,248
Export expenses 6,119,252 6,119,252 4,320,860
ISO/TQM related expenses 180,055 51,133 231,188 546,384
Market research 10,211,080 10,211,080 10,581,400
196,297,084 271,373,973 433,329,928 58,341,457 1,725,926,191 2,685,268,632 2,343,475,781

_2011 2010

Taka Taka

(a) Administrative expenses 196,297,084 150,022,353
(b) Distribution expenses 271,373,973 204,223,160
(c) Selling expenses 1,725,926,191 1,565,410,292

Consolidated administrative, selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses
Distribution expenses
Selling expenses

Annual Report 2011

2,193,597,248

1,919,655,805

484,879,076
486,743,172
2,611,987,428

381,651,545
463,751,352
2,367,888,851

3,583,609,676

3,213,291,747
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Other income

Service charges

Dividend income

Rental income

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Reversal of revaluation loss

Gain/(loss) from foreign currency translations
Proceeds from scrap sale

Commission income

Miscellaneous income

Consolidated other income

Service charges

Dividend income

Rental income

Sales proceeds of scrap and used bags
Gain/(loss) from foreign currency translations
Commission income

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Reversal of revaluation loss

Miscellaneous income

Annual Report 2011

2011 2010
Taka Taka
3,977,018 15,195,208

49,046,172 40,510,175
2,388,000 2,388,000
42,609 625,125

5 710,233

1,654,360 (800,456)
5,822,276 5,233,303
35,580,316 21,900,665
1,244,651 478,587
99,755,402 86,240,840
14,223,754 15,195,208
913,962 400,000
2,388,000 2,388,000
35,385,896 47,240,911
1,654,360 (800,456)
47,951,128 21,900,665
151,089 625,125

- (617,888)

1,244,651 11,830,380
103,912,840 98,161,945




30 Financing costs

Interest expenses on

Bank loan *

Employees' welfare fund

Finance lease

Security deposits

Workers' profit participation fund
ACI 20% Zero Coupon Bonds
Other funds / borrowings

Interest income from
Investment / inter-company
Banks

* The Company has capitalized borrowing costs to the extent of Tk. 104,042,337 and 19,476,454 using the

2011 2010

Taka Taka
285,641,399 214,765,893
11,647,079 8,177,943
81,122 1,367,071
4,501,419 3,317,593
13,348,193 9,572,589
85,612,661 87,588,266
100,961 244,716
400,932,834 325,034,071
(274,090,519) (187,880,456)
- (304,508)
(274,090,519) (188,184,964)
126,842,315 136,849,107

weighted average cost of borrowing on acquisition of qualifying assets during the year 2011 and 2010

respectively.

30(a) Consolidated financing costs

Interest expenses on
Bank loans
Employees' welfare fund
Finance lease
Security deposits
Workers' profit participation fund
ACI 20% Convertible Zero Coupon Bond
Other funds/borrowings

Interest income from
Investment/inter-company
Banks

31 Deferred tax expenses
Net taxable temporary differences

638,803,988 482,082,504
11,647,079 8,177,943
81,122 1,367,071
4,501,419 3,317,593
13,348,193 9,572,589
85,612,661 87,588,266
100,961 244,716
754,095,423 592,350,682
(899,538) (1,644,638)
(498,498) (802,070)
(1,398,036) (2,446,708)
752,697,387 589,903,974

1,399,535,238

979,878,392

Tax rate 27.50% 27.50%
Deferred tax liability as at 31 December 98,593,278 80,652,085
Less: Opening balance as at 1 January 80,652,086 111,927,432
Less: Adjustment for change in tax rate - 71,505,839
Less: Deferred tax on revaluation surplus
recognized in other comprehensive income = 37,617,298
17,941,192 2,613,194
32 Earnings per share
32.1 Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December is as follows:
ACI Limited ACI Group
2010 2010
Profit for the year 681,129,073 591,590,014 238,113,071 216,246,323
Weighted average number of shares 19,662,963 19,404,000 19,404,000
Basic earnings per share 30.49 11.14
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32.2 Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December is as follows:.

ACI Limited ACI Group
2011 2010 2011 2010

Attributable profit for basic earnings per share 681,129,073 591,590,014 238,113,071 216,246,323
Interest savings for conversion of bond into equity 13,558,878 16,948,597 13,558,878 16,948,597
Adjusted profit for diluted earnings per share 694,687,950 608,538,611 251,671,948 233,194,920
Weighted average number of shares for

basic earnings per share 19,662,963 19,404,000 19,662,963 19,404,000
Incremental number of shares from conversion 716,041 1,296,085 716,041 1,296,085
Weighted average number of share outstanding

for diluted earnings per share 20,379,004 20,700,085 20,379,004 20,700,085
Diluted earnings per share (Taka) 34.09 29.40 12.35 11.27

The Group's diluted and basic EPS is Tk. 12.35 and Tk. 12.11 respectively. Since the diluted EPS is higher than the
basic EPS, the effect of dilution has created anti-dilution. So, in the Group level, basic and diluted EPS are same i.e. Tk.

12.11.
33 Financial instruments for ACI Limited

33.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations which arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and
investment securities.
Exposure to credit risk

Carrying amount

Note 2011 2010

Taka Taka
Trade receivables 9 1,131,611,820 1,017,539,096
Other receivables 10 138,454,704 134,442,146
Financial assets classified as available for sale 292,501,695 500,397,040
Inter-company receivables 2,939,169,619 2,093,108,016
Investment in Fixed Deposit Receipts 7 3,586,022 3,446,718
Cash at bank 124,168,959 141,302,646

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by geographic region are as follows:
Domestic 1,128,226,163 1,007,653,035
Sri Lanka 3,385,657 9,886,061
Myanmar 590,481 -
1,132,202,301 1,017,539,096

The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date are

Due below 6 months 885,627,259 804,643,341
Due above 6 months 284,589,124 245,787,524
1,170,216,383 1,050,430,865
Less: provision for doubtful debts 38,604,563 32,891,769
1,131,611,820 1,017,539,096

The movement in the provision for doubtful debts in respect of trade receivables during the year are as follows:

Balance at 1st January 32,891,769 29,387,070
Impairment loss recognized 5,991,736 6,782,660
Adjustment made during the year (278,941) (3,277,961)
Balance at 31 December 38,604,563 32,891,769

33.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets or liabilities. The Company's approach to managing
liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity and arrangements in place to meet
its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to Company's reputation.
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33.3

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities of the Company as at 31 December 2011:

Exposure to liquidity risk

Short term interest bearing loans (note - 21)
Long term interest bearing loans

ACI 20% Convertible Zero Coupon Bonds
Finance lease liabilities (note - 18.1)
Inter-company payables (note - 24)

Trade and other payables

Bank overdraft (note - 20)

Carrying
amount
Taka

2,487,707,979
3,918,414
910,929,716
652,878
289,071,143
1,160,411,876
905,029,397

5,757,721,403

Contractual Less than
cash flows 1 year 1-5 years
Taka Taka Taka
(2,487,707,979) (2,487,707,979) -
(3,918,414) (3,918,414) -
(910,929,716) (252,492,448) (658,437,268)
(652,878) (652,878) -
(289,071,143) (289,071,143) -
(1,160,411,876) (1,160,411,876) -
(905,029,397) (905,029,397) -
(5,757,721,403) (5,099,284,135) (658,437,268)

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities of the Company as at 31 December 2010:

Short term interest bearing loans (note - 21)
Long term interest bearing loans

ACI 20% Convertible Zero Coupon Bonds
Finance lease liabilities (note - 18.1)
Inter-company payables (note - 24)

Trade and other payables

Bank overdraft (note - 20)

Market risk

Carrying
amount
Taka

2,264,558,838
36,760,470
1,087,194,303
523,990
69,556,334
877,474,733
230,296,089

Contractual Less than
cash flows 1 year 1-5 years
Taka Taka Taka

(2,264,558,838
(36,760,470
(1,087,194,303
(523,990
(69,556,334
(877,474,733
(230,296,089

(2,264,558,838)
(32,841,757)
(262,939,808)
(523,990)
(69,556,334)
(877,474,733)
(230,296,089)

(3,918,713)
(824,254,495)

4,566,364,757

N NN NG NN N

(4,566,364,757

(3,738,191,549)

(828,173,208)

Market risk is the risk that include changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
that may affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Exposure to currency risk

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk are as follows based on the notional amounts:

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

_GBP Euro usD GBP Euro usb
Short term interest bearing loan - - - - 921,363 4,120,455
Trade and other payables - 121,445 285,628 - 261,256 288,183
Trade receivables - - 46,988 - - 140,427
Cash at bank 1,439 2,220 526,168 1,576 2,299 335,861
1,439 123,665 858,784 1,576 1,184,918 4,884,926

The following significant exchange rates are applied:

Euro
usb
GBP

Reporting date spot rate

201
108.00
83.00
90.32
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2010
96.94
71.40
99.75
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Market risk-interest rate risk
At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments are:

Carrying amount

2011 2010

Taka Taka
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets 3,586,022 3,446,718
Financial liabilities (4,308,238,384) (3,226,220,970)

(4,304,652,362) (3,222,774,252)

Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities - (393,112,720)
- (393,112,720)

Operating leases-lessee

Cancelable operating lease rentals are payable for ACI Limited as follows:

2011 2010

Taka Taka
Less than one year 51,420,446 43,486,138
Between one and five years 128,991,524 122,275,631
More than five years 31,974,543 31,824,000
212,386,513 197,585,769

The Company obtained leases of 58 agreements for 21 Depots and 5 agreements for 5 warehouses, 5
agreements for 5 office premises and 1 agreement for 1 show-room under operating leases. The leases
typically run for 1-5 years, with an option to renew the leases after that date. Lease payments are
increased at the time of renewal of the rent agreements to reflect market rental.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, Tk 51,751,377 was recognized as expense in the income
statement in respect of operating leases (2010: 43,452,423).

Sale/adjustment of fixed assets

Accumulated

Particulars Original cost depreciation Book value Sale value
Taka Taka Taka Taka Mode of disposal/adjustment
Motor vehicle 577,000 576,999 1 565,500 Sold through tender
Motor vehicle 1,438,542 1,438,541 1 300,375 Sold through tender
Motor vehicle 605,700 605,699 1 355,952  Sold through tender
Plant and Machinery 12,220 611 11,609 8,000 Sold through tender

2,633,462 2,621,850 11,612 1,229,827

Subsequent events

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 25 April 2012 have recommended cash dividend @ 80% per
share of Taka 10 each aggregating to Taka 158,492,224 and stock dividend @ 20% (i.e. 1(one) bonus
share for every 5 (five) Ordinary share) of Taka 10 each aggregating to Taka 39,623,056 for the year ended
31 December 2011 subject to approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be
held on 13 June 2012. The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 do not include the
effects of the above cash dividend and stock dividend which will be accounted for in the period when
shareholders' right to receive the payment will be established.

There are no events identified after the statement of financial position date which require adjustment or
disclosure in this accompanying financial statements.
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39.1

39.2

39.3

40

41

42

43

Off-balance sheet items

Commitments

On the date of statement of financial position, the Company was enjoying unfunded credit facilities

from the following banks:

Letters of credit

Standard Chartered Bank

Commercial Bank of Ceylon Plc

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Citibank, N.A.

BRAC Bank Limited

Eastern Bank Limited

The City Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Bank Asia Limited

AB Bank Limited

Contingent liabilities

Shipping guarantees
Standard Chartered Bank

Capital expenditure

i) Contracted but not approved for

i) Approved but not contracted for

2011 2010
Taka Taka
150,284,786 151,120,272
46,492,639 12,844,860
96,325,193 161,919,540
23,039,390 21,076

2,918,384 8,000,400
57,317,702 7,726,109
102,553,720 17,716,349
7,022,168 43,832,696
- 51,840,000
11,753,125 -
497,707,107 455,021,302
17,280,973 -
17,280,973 -
Nil Nil
806,640,000 529,000,000

These capital expenditure commitment is in respect of import of plant and machinery, building

renovation, central warehouse and laboratory.

Payments made in foreign currencies

Raw and packing materials 1,136,584,209 912,894,758
Finished goods 988,374,139 851,428,285
2,124,958,348 1,764,323,043
Production capacity and utilization
Capacity in units pack Utilization
per 8hr / month

2011 2010 2010
Pharmaceuticals, Consumer Brand and
Livestock and Fisheries 4,999,402 5,027,327 114%

Number of employees engaged for drawing remuneration

The number of employees drawing Tk. 3,000 or more per month was 4014 in 2011 (2010: 3378)

during the year.

General

i) Figures appearing in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest Taka.

ii) Previous year's figures have been rearranged, wherever considered necessary to conform current

year's presentation.
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Name of auditors of the group companies

Name of the company
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ACI Formulations Limited

ACI Salt Limited

ACI Logistics Limited

ACI Godrej Agrovet (Pvt.) Limited
Tetley ACI (Bangladesh) Limited
ACI Foods Limited

ACI Pure Flour Limited

Apex Leather Craft Limited
Creative Communication Limited
ACI Motors Limited

Premiaflex Plastics Limited

ACI Edible Oils Limited

Flyban Insecticides Limited

ACI Agrochemicals Limited
Stochastic Logic Limited

Asian Consumer Care (Pvt.) Limited
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Subsidiary

Joint venture

Subsidiary

Associate

Auditors

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Rahman Rahman Hugq
Rahman Rahman Huqg
Rahman Rahman Hugq

M. J. Abedin & Co.

M. J. Abedin & Co.

M. J. Abedin & Co.

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Shiraz Khan Bashak & Co.
Shiraz Khan Bashak & Co.
Shiraz Khan Bashak & Co.
Ahmed Mashuque & Co.




AdVanced Chemicalinustr

Report of the Directors and Audited
Financial Statements of the Subsidiary
Companies for the year 2011
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ACI Formulations Limited
Directors' Report

Overview

Agriculture plays a vital role in Bangladesh economy in terms of GDP contribution, employment generation,
rural development, food security and export earnings. Feeding 160 million people from a small surface area is
a serious challenge. More than 45% of the labor force are engaged in agricultural activity accounting for
around 20% of our GDP. Diversification of agricultural output is also important for balanced nutrition of the
people. Thus agricultural development is a crucial and non optional road to the prosperity in Bangladesh.

Sales

Industry decline by 2% and CC & PH business increased by 19.36% over previous year. This was a planned
initiative to drive down credit exposure in light of a large number of competitors entering the market with
new registration. The industry witnessed increase in push sales from new competitors along with a
deterioration of quality standards. ACI Crop Care and Public Health, as part of the premium branded segment
of high quality products, had to exercise extreme caution in engaging with the markets through stringent
credit control and demand based sales.

New Product Development:

ACI Formulations has launched a new molecule of each Insecticide, Fungicide and Herbicide named Protect
50SG, Xtramil 720WP and Super Care 25EC respectively as more effective solution. From our Sulphur plant
we produced over Sulphox 80WP, which was well received by the farmers.

Public Health Products:

Vector Born Disease like Malaria, Kala-Azar, and Dengue cause significant adversity to public health. ACI
Formulations has developed products for controlling vectors and successfully supplied Deltamethrine 5WP to
Government for Indoor Residual Spray (IRS), to help control vector born diseases. Some new products are
under development to support the Government, notably LLIN (Long Lasting Impregnated Net), Larvicides,
Adulticides , Insecticide - Treated Nets (ITNs). ACI Formulations collaborates closely with a variety of
partners, including health organizations, humanitarian aid agencies and academic institutions, to ensure the
availability of mosquito control products in affected areas and to provide education as to their safe and
effective use. ACIFL is also conducting seminars, symposiums and community based field trials with local and
international agencies to support vector control programs.

Manufacturing:

ACI Formulations Plant has provided production support of insecticide, fungicide and herbicide to the Crop
Care and Public Health Business. There was considerable growth in the production of mosquito coil and
aerosol insect spray. ACI Air Freshener, ACI Cockroach Spray and Vanish Toilet Cleaner also grew
satisfactorily. We have a well equipped factory with modern machineries and equipment where government
rules and regulations are followed strictly. Modern Effluent Treatment Plant (ETP) & Incinerator is there to
make the factory eco friendly. ACI Formulation Plant is considered as Smoke Free Zone.
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Promotion and Communication Campaign:

Integrated approach of ACI Formulation involves educational institutions, scientists, researchers, retailers and
farmers to influence and educate the entire ecosystem. Main objective is to improve the social, economic and
environmental conditions by providing technology and solution support to all layers of stakeholders. We have
used direct interactions, field demonstrations, audio-visual campaigns, solution booths and "Uthan Boithaks"
to communicate a range of ideas. In each program, safety precaution and pesticide regulation has been a
compulsory topic.

People:

Human capital development has been a top priority for ACI Formulation. The approach is multidimensional;
values, knowledge and skill delivered through training, coaching, communication and social events. Health
and safety day was observed when all factory members enjoy a day of togetherness around this concept. A
sports day was observed that foster team spirit and enjoyment. This holistic approach makes ACI
Formulations a strong value based cohesive team and an example for the community at large.

Corporate Social responsibility:

In 2011, the CSR activity of ACIFL was objectively aligned with the business operation. ACIFL's mission is to
improve the farmers' life in terms of food, shelter, treatment, education and socio economic development.
ACIFL is continuously transferring technological knowledge and promoting best cultivation practices to bring
prosperity among farmers through different awareness programs such as trainings, seminars, field
demonstrations etc. by our large number of skilled field forces and scientists. This knowledge is helping our
farmers to protect their crop and achieve better yield. Through this initiative we will be able to ensure food
security of the country and the nation will grow as a whole.

Prospects:

A large proportion of the cultivated land is not using scientific agriculture. Currently, we are protecting only
32% of insect, 39% of disease and 16% of weed of the total rice acreage. Relatively new herbicide technology
can reduce about 15% of traditional cultivation cost. Environment friendly, yield booster products can increase
output by as much as 20%. Crop specific solution is another area that is largely unexplored. These facts
reveal the enormous potential for growth and development through scientific agriculture in Bangladesh.
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Financial Results

In 2011, total turnover increased to Tk. 2,443.66 million from Tk. 1,924.40 million of 2010, an increase
of Tk. 519.26 million, resulting into 26.98% growth over last year. The cost of sales has also increased
by 27.65% mainly due to higher sales volume coupled with increased raw materials cost. Higher
turnover partially offset by the increased cost of sales has contributed to the increase in gross profit by
24.82% (Tk. 113.72 million) over last year. Profit after tax has also increased to Tk. 146.85 million from
Tk. 91.61 million of 2010 which is higher by 60.30% mainly due to increased gross margin partially
offset by increased financing cost. Earnings Per Share (EPS) has also increased by 60.30% to Tk. 4.89
from Tk. 3.05 (2010).

Appropriation of profit

Considering the financial results of the company during the year and free reserve carried over, the
Directors recommended appropriation of net profit as follows:

2011 2010
Taka Taka
Un-appropriated profit from previous year 498,554,370 496,949,034
Add: Net profit after tax for the year 146,847,207 91,605,336
Total available for appropriation 645,401,577 588,554,370
Appropriation proposed:
Proposed dividend:
Cash dividend 75,000,000 90,000,000
Stock dividend 150,000,000 -
Total dividend 225,000,000 90,000,000
Balance carried forward 420,401,577 498,554,370

With the balance carried forward in this year and with future ploughing back of the profit, Directors are
confident that company will be able to maintain prudent dividend policy in years to come.

Dividend

The Board of Directors is pleased to recommend dividend @75% which include Tk. 2.50 per share of
Taka 10 i.e. 25% as cash dividend and 50% stock dividend or 1 Share against 2 Shares held for the
year 2011 to those shareowners whose names will be appeared in the Share Register of Members of the
Company or in the Depository list of CDBL on the Record Date which is Wednesday, 16th May 2012.

Contribution to the National Exchequer

During 2011, the company contributed Tk. 172.47 million to the National Exchequer in the form of
corporate tax, custom duty, VAT etc. This is equivalent to 7.06 percent of our net sales revenue for the
year 2011.

On behalf of the Board

M Anis Ud Dowla Dr. Arif Dowla
Managing Director Director
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Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co

Chartered Accountants
Independent Correspondent Firm to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
to the Shareholders of
ACI Formulations Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ACI Formulations Limited (the Company) which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011, the related income statement, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other relevant explanatory notes thereon.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs), Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSSs)
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements prepared in accordance with the Bangladesh Accounting Standards
(BASs) and Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs), give a true and fair view of the financial
position of ACI Formulations Limited as at 31 December 2011 and the results of its financial performance and

its cash flows for the year then ended and comply with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange
Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appeared from our examination of those books;

c) the statement of financial position and income statement along with the annexed notes 1 to 34 dealt with
by the report are in agreement with the books of account; and

d) the expenditure incurred and payments made were for the purposes of the Company's business.

MotV Gl ,@p

Dhaka, 25 April 2012 Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants

National Office : BTMC Bhaban (8th Floor), 7-9 Karwan Bazar Commercial Area, Dhaka-1215, Bangladesh
Motijheel Office : Ispahani Building (3rd Floor), 14-15 Motijheel Commercial Area, Dhaka 1000, Bangladesh
Chittagong Office : Delwar Bhaban (4th Floor), 104 Agrabad Commercial Area, Chittagong-4100, Bangladesh
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ACI Formulations Limited

Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
At cost/revaluation

as at 31 December 2011

2011
Taka

1,229,783,264

2010
Taka

1,124,225,291

Less: Accumulated depreciation 52,490,189 6,568,832
1,177,293,075 1,117,656,459
Capital work-in-progress 33,113,538 13,475,657
Investment 2,396,817 3,599,050
Total non-current assets 1,212,803,430 1,134,731,166
Current assets
Inventories 704,746,537 699,819,589
Trade receivables 546,036,962 577,768,167
Advances, deposits and prepayments 68,353,667 109,561,096
Inter-company receivables 243,764,427 68,426,208
Cash and cash equivalents 83,150,407 51,027,175

Total current assets
Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' equity

1,646,052,000

2,858,855,430

1,506,602,235

2,641,333,401

Share capital 300,000,000 300,000,000
Revaluation surplus 693,376,055 693,376,055
Retained earnings 645,401,577 588,554,370
Total equity 1,638,777,632 1,581,930,425
Non-current liabilities
Long term liabilities 34,726,794 58,198,966
Defered tax liabilities 59,234,469 72,295,436
Total non-current liabilities 93,961,263 130,494,402
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts 58,082,809 26,212,136
Short term loan from banks 762,277,352 634,784,684
Long term loan from bank- current portion 21,669,426 21,242,847
Trade payables 97,971,753 61,363,824
Other payables 112,959,962 80,965,765
Inter-company payables - 7,928,466
Current tax liability 73,155,233 96,410,852
Total current liabilities 1,126,116,535 928,908,574

Total equity and liabilities

2,858,855,430

2,641,333,401

Managing Director

Slianna Oad Radronn

Company Secretary

Director

As per our report of same date.

Mot Gioidlny ,@v

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Dhaka, 25 April 2012
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ACI Formulations Limited

Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative, selling and distribution expenses

Results from operating activities

Other income
Finance costs

Provision for contribution to WPPF
Profit before taxation

Income tax:
Current tax expense
Deferred tax income/(expense)

Profit for the year

Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share (par value Tk. 10)

2011
Taka

2,443,657,886
(1,871,798,982)

2010
Taka

1,924,403,783
(1,466,262,071)

571,858,904 458,141,712
(302,740,217) (270,483,649)
269,118,687 187,658,063

10,246,736 7,082,997
(71,477,257) (65,548,912)
207,888,166 129,192,148
(10,394,408) (6,459,607)
197,493,758 122,732,541

(63,707,518)

(26,302,190)

13,060,967 (4,825,015)
(50,646,551) (31,127,205)
146,847,207 91,605,336

4.89 3.05

Managing Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012

Director

Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

MotV Groidlny ,@Lo

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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ACI Formulations Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010

Taka Taka
Profit for the year 146,847,207 91,605,336
Other Comprehensive Income
Revaluation surplus of property, plant and equipment - 629,215,532
Income tax on other comprehensive income - (27,391,237)
Total other comprehensive income net of tax - 601,824,295
Total comprehensive income 146,847,207 693,429,631

P R Sl 1 Rt

Managing Director Director Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

Wedo: Ghofls Zﬂ

Dhaka, 25 April 2012 Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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ACI Formulations Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Particulars

Balance as per 01 January 2010

Comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year 2010

Total other comprehensive income net of tax
Total Comprehensive income for the year 2010

Contributions by and distributions to owners of the Company
Dividends to owners of the Company
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of the Company

Transaction directly recognised in equity

Adujustment of deferred tax on land due to changes in tax rate
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of the Company
Balance as at 31 December 2010

Comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year 2011

Total other comprehensive income net of tax
Total Comprehensive income for the year 2011

Contributions by and distributions to owners of the Company
Dividends paid during the year

Total contributions by and distributions to owners of the Company

Balance at 31 December 2011

Paid up Revaluation Retained
capital reserve earnings Total
Taka Taka Taka Taka
300,000,000 76,329,119 571,949,034 948,278,153
- - 91,605,336 91,605,336
- 601,824,295 - 601,824,295
- 601,824,295 91,605,336 693,429,631
- - (75,000,000) (75,000,000)
- - (75,000,000) (75,000,000)
- 15,222,641 - 15,222,641
- 15,222,641 - 15,222,641
300,000,000 693,376,055 588,554,370 1,581,930,425
- - 146,847,207 146,847,207
- - 146,847,207 146,847,207
- - (90,000,000) (90,000,000)
- - (90,000,000) (90,000,000)
300,000,000 693,376,055 645,401,577 1,638,777,632
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A)

B)

C)

D)
E)
F)

ACI Formulations Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash received from other income

Cash received/(paid) from/(for):
Purchase of inventory
Operating expenses
Other creditors
Payment for WPPF
Advances, deposits and prepayments

Cash generated from operating activities

Finance costs
Income tax

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Investment

Sale proceeds from property, plant and equipment
Payments for capital work in progress

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Inter-company debts received/(paid)
Dividend paid

Short term loan received/(paid) from banks
Long term loan received/(paid) from banks
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December (D+E)

Closing balance represents

Page 100

Cash in hand and at banks
Bank overdrafts
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2011 2010
Taka Taka
2,288,963,108 2,093,342,518

10,246,736 7,701,118
2,299,209,844 2,101,043,636
(1,796,964,576) (1,552,616,205)
(274,799,775) (261,957,354)
1,812,081 592,305
(6,459,607) (11,306,715)
2,802,390 (1,905,025)
(2,073,609,487) (1,827,192,994)
225,600,357 273,850,642
(71,477,257) (65,548,912)
(48,558,099) (63,134,449)
(120,035,356) (128,683,361)
105,565,001 145,167,281
(69,985,937) (14,279,814)
1,202,232 (1,971,942)

- 6,129,600
(55,209,917) (18,431,050)
(123,993,622) (28,553,206)
3,159,298 (10,618,036)
(87,986,794) (72,297,532)
127,492,668 (1,999,894)
(23,983,992) (11,338,268)
18,681,180 (96,253,730)
252,559 20,360,345
24,815,039 4,454,694
25,067,598 24,815,039
83,150,407 51,027,175
(58,082,809) (26,212,136)
25,067,598 24,815,039




LW

ACI Logistics Limited
Directors' Report

ACI Logistics Limited is a subsidiary of Advanced Chemical Industries (ACI) Limited with ACI holding
majority shareholding. The Company was formed in 2008 and started its commercial operation in 2009.
The objective of the Company is to facilitate the improvement in goods market efficiency and to provide
a modern self service shopping option to customers who would benefit by the convenience of their
regular shopping needs.

2011 was the third year of operation of ACI Logistics. The company is still in its initial stage and making
all out efforts to reach break-even point. In line with that adequate steps have been taken to augment
sales and to improve supply chain efficiencies along with controlling and containing costs. Initial results
show some improvement in operating loss reduction.

Key Financial Results Taka

Revenue 1,885,569,670
Gross profit 212,165,999
Operating loss (367,665,270)
Profit before tax (616,706,099)
Profit after tax (630,727,475)

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Arif Dowla
Managing Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012
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Rahman Rahman Hugq Telephone  +880 (2) 988 6450-2
Chartered Accountants Fax +880 (2) 988 6449

9 Mohakhali C/A (11th & 12th Floors) Email kpmg-rth@citech-bd.com
Dhaka 1212 Internet www.kpmg.com/bd
Bangladesh

ACI Logistics Limited
Auditors' Report to the Shareholders

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ACI Logistics Limited (the "Company") which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011 and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs), the Companies Act 1994 and other
applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSAs). Those standards require that we comply
with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting
Standards (BFRSs), give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2011

and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended and comply with the Companies
Act 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appeared from our examination of these books; and

c) the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in
agreement with the books of account and returns.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion above, we draw attention to Note 3.13 to the financial statements where
management explains how they will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future in spite of

having net current liabilities as at the reporting date.

Rahman Rahman Hugq
Chartered Accountants

Dhaka, 25 April 2012

Rahman Rahman Hug, a pertnership firm registered in Bangladesh Tel +880 (31) 710704, 710996
and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms Chittagong office address : Fax +880 (31) 2520795
affiliated with KPMG International cooperative 102 Agrabad C/A (3rd Floor) E-mail kpmgrrh @ globalctg.net
("KPMG International"), a Swiss entity. Chittagong, Bangladesh Internet  www.kpmg.com/bd
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ACI Logistics Limited

Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2011

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Capital work-in-progress
Investments in FDR

Current assets

Inventory

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Advances, deposits and prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
Equity And Liabilities

Shareholders' equity
Share capital
Accumulated loss

Non-current liability
Long term bank loan

Current liabilities

Current portion of long term bank loan
Short term bank loan

Trade payables

Other payables

Provision for expenses

Inter-company liabilities

Provision for income tax

Total equity and liabilities

2011 2010

Taka Taka
373,263,144 385,401,731
30,740,999 10,519,814
664,001 94,035,022
79,956,358 71,855,167
484,624,502 561,811,734
555,681,782 342,754,924
9,450,898 3,891,114
- 1,500,000
89,122,835 279,634,931
33,875,085 20,767,115
688,130,600 648,548,084

1,172,755,102

1,210,359,818

347,840,000
(1,776,391,190)

347,840,000
(1,145,663,715)

(1,428,551,190)

(797,823,715)

268,181,331 407,251,504
144,111,757 130,004,399
293,404,206 231,720,903
131,181,168 64,130,660
9,916,645 179,329,898
39,919,424 69,814,491
1,700,565,385 925,926,678
14,026,376 5,000

2,333,124,961

1,600,932,029

1,172,755,102

1,210,359,818

] A le Lele Sl Rt

Managing Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012

Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

bealh ot

Rahman Rahman Hugq
Chartered Accountants
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ACI Logistics Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Marketing, selling and distribution expenses
Operating loss

Finance cost

Other income

Loss before income tax

Income tax expenses:

Current tax

Net loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the year

(175,102,701)
(404,728,568)

2011 2010

Taka Taka
1,885,569,670 897,976,258
(1,673,403,671) (809,371,263)
212,165,999 88,604,995

(130,165,058)
(384,994,776)

(367,665,270)
(251,312,560)
2,271,731

(426,554,839)
(158,733,353)
7,039,136

(616,706,099)

(14,021,376)

(578,249,056)

(5,000)

(630,727,475)

(578,254,056)

(630,727,475)

(578,254,056)

e R W L

Managing Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012

Page 104 Annual Report 2011

Director

Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.
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ACI Logistics Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Balance as at 01 January 2010

Total comprehensive loss for the year 2010

Balance as at 31 December 2010

Total comprehensive loss for the year 2011

Balance as at 31 December 2011

Share Accumulated

capital loss Total

Taka Taka Taka
347,840,000 (567,409,659) (219,569,659)
- (578,254,056) (578,254,056)
347,840,000 (1,145,663,715) (797,823,715)
- (630,727,475) (630,727,475)
347,840,000 (1,776,391,190) (1,428,551,190)
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A)

B)

<)

D)

E)

F)
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ACI Logistics Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers
Cash receipts from other income

Cash paid for:

Purchase of inventory

Operating expenses

Vendor settlement

Advances, deposits and prepayments
Cash used in operation

Finance cost
Income tax

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Investment in fixed deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Inter-company payables

Long term loan paid

Short term loan received

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Opening cash and cash equivalents

Closing cash and cash equivalents

Annual Report 2011

2011
Taka

1,880,009,886
3,771,731

2010
Taka

1,883,781,617

894,085,144
7,535,819

(1,819,280,021)
(699,494,058)
10,028,840
190,512,096

901,620,963

(2,318,233,143)

(930,974,015)
(403,926,384)

183,333,831

(251,312,560)

(1,151,566,568)

(251,312,560)

(158,733,353)
(5,000)

(685,764,086)

(158,738,353)

(4,385,948)
(8,101,191)

(408,683,958)

(12,487,139)

(175,746,455)
(54,312,657)

(230,059,112)

774,638,707
(124,962,815)
61,683,303

711,359,195

511,253,306
(1,525,204)
127,720,903

13,107,970

20,767,115

637,449,005

33,875,085

(1,294,065)

22,061,180

20,767,115
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ACI Pure Flour Limited
Directors' Report

ACI Pure Flour Limited is a private limited company which was incorporated in 2006 with the Registrar of
Joint Stock Companies, Dhaka, Bangladesh under Companies Act 1994. It is a subsidiary of Advanced
Chemical Industries (ACI) Limited with ACI holds 95% shareholding. The plant is situated at
Chawrapara, Bandar, Narayanganj with most advanced European technology coupled with a well-
equipped laboratory keeping in mind to provide the best quality flour to the consumers.

ACI Pure Flour Limited was established with the objectives of delivering cleanest, healthiest and most
hygienic flour by adopting the state-of-the-art technology. The business is enjoying high growth and its
products has become a daily necessity in most households. The financial results of the company for the
year ended 31 December 2011 is as follows:

Key Financial Results
Revenue

Gross profit
Operating profit
Profit before tax

Profit after tax
On behalf of the Board

e 4

Dr. Arif Dowla

Managing Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012

Taka
2,190,094,300
213,924,984
53,460,282
50,787,268

30,061,722

e

Mr. Syed Alamgir

Director
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M.J. ABEDIN & CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Telephone Off : 8629771, 8612203 National Plaza (3rd Floor)
Fax 1 (880-2) 8617681 109, Bir Uttam C.R. Datta Road,
Res 1 8631678 Dhaka-1205
E-mail : mjabedin@bangla.net
mjabedinbd@gmail.com

ACI Pure Flour Limited
Auditors' Report to the Shareholders

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ACI Pure Flour Limited which comprise statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2011 and statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and explanatory notes thereto.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSAs). Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting
Standards (BFRSs), give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as on 31 December 2011

and of the results of its operations and its cash flow for the year then ended and comply with the Companies
Act 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that :

a. we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appeared from our examination of those books;

c. Company's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income together with the
annexed notes 1 to 24 dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and

d. the expenditure incurred and payments made were for the purposes of the Company's business;
Dated: 9 April 2012 M. J. Abedin & CO
Place: Dhaka Chartered Accountants

An independent member firm of

MOORE STEPHENS

INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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ACI Pure Flour Limited

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2011

Non-current assets:

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets:
Inventories

Advances, deposits and prepayments

Accounts receivable
Advance income tax

Receivable from inter-companies

Other receivable

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Shareholders' equity:

Share capital
Retained earnings

Long term loan

Deferred tax liabilities

Current liabilities:
Bank overdraft
Short term bank loan

Long term bank loan - current portion

Trade creditors
Other creditors

2011 2010

Taka Taka
- at cost less accumulated depreciation 365,200,181 385,497,355
51,274,918 81,078,547
10,500,748 36,644,026
99,677,966 79,143,031
47,932,161 26,214,561
31,906,877 -
132,120 89,341
10,796,212 23,900,743
252,221,002 247,070,249
617,421,183 632,567,604
40,000,000 40,000,000
55,760,212 25,698,490
95,760,212 65,698,490
74,116,719 112,738,368
37,508,714 16,783,168
40,937,134 45,582,438
284,400,000 160,089,564
36,914,498 36,914,498
17,575,126 60,832,650
30,208,780 17,708,505
Inter-company liabilities = 116,219,923
410,035,538 437,347,578
617,421,183 632,567,604

Total equity and liabilities

e O Ratrmann

Company Secretary

Dated: 9 April 2012
Place: Dhaka

e 474

Director

Managing Director

As per our report of same date.

e

M. J. Abedin & CO
Chartered Accountants
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ACI Pure Flour Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Revenue

Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Operating profit
Financial expenses
Other income

Provision for contribution to WPPF
Net profit before tax

Income tax expenses:

Deferred tax expenses

Net profit after tax
Total comprehensive income

Sl W Ratrmanm

Company Secretary

Dated: 9 April 2012
Place: Dhaka
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2011 2010

Taka Taka
2,190,094,300 2,191,561,298
(1,976,169,316) (1,979,574,519)
213,924,984 211,986,779
(104,787,122) (114,265,027)
109,137,862 97,721,752
(60,905,622) (47,540,594)
5,228,042 10,660,567
53,460,282 60,841,725
(2,673,014) (3,042,086)
50,787,268 57,799,639
(20,725,546) (22,006,706)
(20,725,546) (22,006,706)
30,061,722 35,792,933
30,061,722 35,792,933

eV

Director Managing Director

As per our report of same date.

e

M. J. Abedin & CO
Chartered Accountants




ACI Pure Flour Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Share Retained

capital earnings Total

Taka Taka Taka
Balance as at 01 January 2010 40,000,000 (10,094,443) 29,905,557
Net profit after tax for the year - 35,792,933 35,792,933
Total comprehensive income for the year 2010 - 35,792,933 35,792,933
Balance as at 31 December 2010 40,000,000 25,698,490 65,698,490
Net profit after tax for the year 2011 - 30,061,722 30,061,722
Total comprehensive income for the year 2011 - 30,061,722 30,061,722
Balance as at 31 December 2011 40,000,000 55,760,212 95,760,212

Company Secretary Director Managing Director

As per our report of same date.

e

Dated: 9 April 2012 M. J. Abedin & CO
Place: Dhaka Chartered Accountants
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A)

B)

€)

D) Net cash flow from all activities (A+B+C)
E) Cash and bank balances at the beginning of the year
F) Cash and bank balances at the end of the year
Closing Balance represents :
Cash in hand and at bank
Bank overdraft

ACI Pure Flour Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customer
Cash received from other income

Cash paid for :

Purchase and production

Operating expenses

Financing cost

Other receivable

Payments for advance, deposits and prepayments
Advance income tax

Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of fixed assets

Sales Proceeds from fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Intercompany debts(paid)/received

Short term loan (paid)/received

Long term loan (paid)/received

Net cash flows provided by financing activities

2011 2010
Taka Taka
2,169,559,365 2,170,371,939

5,119,562 10,206,862
2,174,678,927 2,180,578,801
(1,966,262,417) (1,968,650,849)

(94,270,128) (113,775,417)
(60,905,622) (47,540,594)
(42,779) 61
26,143,278 (32,496,008)
(21,717,600) (15,127,732)
(2,117,055,268) (2,177,590,539)
57,623,659 2,988,262
(3,887,160) (2,094,679)
242,287 1,043,000
(3,644,873) (1,051,679)
(148,126,800) 57,940,400
124,310,436 59,520,801
(38,621,649) (131,394,231)
(62,438,013) (13,933,030)
(8,459,227) (11,996,447)
(21,681,695) (9,685,248)
(30,140,922) (21,681,695)
10,796,212 23,900,743
(40,937,134) (45,582,438)
(30,140,922) (21,681,695)

=V

Company Secretary Director

Dated: 9 April 2012
Place: Dhaka
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As per our report of same date.

R

M. J. Abedin & CO

Chartered Accountants
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ACI Foods Limited
Directors' Report

ACI Foods Limited is a private limited company incorporated in 2006 with the Registrar of Joint Stock
Companies, Dhaka, Bangladesh under Companies Act 1994. It is a subsidiary of Advanced Chemical
Industries (ACI) Limited with ACI holds 95% shareholding. The company is engaged in manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of various branded food products and condiment. The factory of the company
is situated at Kutirchar, Bhadraghat, Kamarkhand, Sirajganj. The company went into commercial
production in January 2008.

The company has embarked its journey with wholesome food products under the brand name 'Pure' and
"Fun" and striving to establish its brand in a highly competitive market. The Company is making all out
efforts to reduce its loss in order to acclearte break-even. Steps include introducing new products,
improving supply chain efficiencies, controlling cost and exploring new export destinations.

Key Financial Results Taka

Revenue 469,308,493
Gross profit 69,745,516
Operating expenses (182,739,360)
Operating loss (97,654,212)
Loss before tax (198,700,678)
Loss after tax (199,299,884)

On behalf of the Board

oo 4 =

Dr. Arif Dowla Mr. Syed Alamgir
Managing Director Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Telephone Off : 8629771, 8612203 National Plaza (3rd Floor)
Fax 1 (880-2) 8617681 109, Bir Uttam C.R. Datta Road,
Res 1 8631678 Dhaka-1205
E-mail : mjabedin@bangla.net
mjabedinbd@gmail.com

ACI Foods Limited
Auditors’' Report to the Shareholders

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ACI Foods Limited which comprise statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2011 and statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and explanatory notes thereto.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSAs). Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to note -1.5.10 to the financial statements which describes the uncertainty related to the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting
Standards (BFRSs), give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as on 31 December 2011
and of the results of its operations and its cash flow for the year then ended and comply with the Companies
Act 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

a. we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appeared from our examination of those books;

c. Company's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income together with the
annexed notes 1 to 24 dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and

d. the expenditure incurred and payments made were for the purposes of the Company's business;
Dated: 9 April 2012 M. J. Abedin & CO
Place: Dhaka Chartered Accountants

An independent member firm of

MOORE STEPHENS

INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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ACI Foods Limited
Statement of Financial Position

Assets 2011 2010
Taka Taka
Property, plant and equipments:
At cost 283,717,390 256,280,237
Accumulated depreciation (63,047,807) (45,627,785)
220,669,583 210,652,452
Capital work-in-progress 115,283 823,690
Total non-current assets 220,784,866 211,476,142
Deferred tax asset 19,849,687 17,110,419
Inventories 91,101,589 56,427,729
Trade debtors 27,379,608 42,611,937
Other receivables 1,071,439 759,712
Advances, deposits and prepayments 3,696,636 14,717,330
Advance income tax 1,448,617 720,293
Inter-company receivable = 25,493
Cash and cash equivalents 18,547,952 1,345,531
Total current assets 143,245,841 116,608,025
Total assets 383,880,394 345,194,587
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 40,000,000 40,000,000
Accumulated loss (609,710,533) (410,410,649)
Total equity (569,710,533) (370,410,649)
Liability
Long term loan 69,374,998 116,331,730
Total non-current liabilities 69,374,998 116,331,730
Bank overdraft 53,400,446 26,727,502
Short term bank loan 150,363,081 150,000,001
Long term bank loan -current portion 46,956,732 46,956,732
Trade payables 46,308,418 30,981,194
Other payables 52,872,694 43,919,006
Inter-company liabilities 534,314,557 300,689,071
Total current liabilities 884,215,928 599,273,506
Total liabilities 953,590,926 715,605,236
Total equity and liabilities 383,880,394 345,194,587

as of 31 December 2011

Managing Director

Director

Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

R ey

M. J. Abedin & CO
Chartered Accountants

Dated: 9 April 2012
Place: Dhaka
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ACI Foods Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Taka Taka
Revenue 469,308,493 347,217,745
Cost of sales (399,562,977) (301,199,831)
Gross profit 69,745,516 46,017,915
Administration, selling and distribution expenses (182,739,360) (166,201,993)
(112,993,844) (120,184,079)
Other income 15,339,632 15,542,776
Result from operating activities (97,654,212) (104,641,303)
Finance cost (101,046,466) (63,920,515)
Loss before income tax (198,700,678) (168,561,818)
Income tax :
Current tax (U/S 16CCC) (3,338,473) -
Deferred tax 2,739,267 6,321,917
(599,206) 6,321,917
Net loss after tax (199,299,884) (162,239,901)

Managing Director Director Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

SR

Dated: 9 April 2012 M. J. Abedin & CO
Place: Dhaka Chartered Accountants
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ACI Foods Limited

Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Particulars

Balance on 01 January 2010

Net loss after tax for the year

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners of the Company, recognised directly in equity
Balance as at 31 December 2010

Net loss after tax for the year

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners of the Company, recognised directly in equity
Balance as at 31 December 2011

Share Retained
capital earnings Total
Taka Taka Taka
40,000,000 (248,170,748) (208,170,748)
- (162,239,901) (162,239,901)
- (162,239,901) (162,239,901)
40,000,000 (410,410,649) (370,410,649)
- (199,299,884) (199,299,884)
- (199,299,884) (199,299,884)
40,000,000 (609,710,533) (569,710,533)

A

Managing Director

Dated: 09 April 2012
Place: Dhaka

Director

Slianna Oad Radirenn

Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

e

M. J. Abedin & CO
Chartered Accountants
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ACI Foods Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

A) Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash receipts from other income

Cash paid for:
Purchase of inventory
Operating expenses
Advances, deposits and pre-payments
Advance income tax
Cash generated from operations

Financing cost
Net cash used in operating activities
B) Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Payment for capital work-in-progress
Net cash from (used in) investing activities

C) Cash flows from financing activities

Inter-company debts received

Short term bank loan received

Long term bank loan (paid)/ received
Net cash flows from financing activities

D) Net increase in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C)
E) Cash and cash equivalent at 1 January
F) Cash and cash equivalent at 31 December (D+E)

Closing balance represents:
Cash in hand and at bank
Bank overdraft

2011
Taka

484,540,822
15,339,632

2010
Taka

499,880,454

349,478,864
14,783,064

(402,510,615)
(174,575,128)
11,020,695
(728,324)

364,261,928

(566,793,372)
(101,046,466)

(295,441,305)
(160,141,108)
(11,958,919)
(373,992)

(167,959,384)

(467,915,324)
(63,920,515)

(2,334,283)
(26,234,183)

(167,573,911)

(28,568,466)

(3,714,292)
(1,057,691)

233,650,979
363,080
(46,956,732)

(4,771,983)

187,057,327

30,724,792
77,195,261
80,100,741

(9,470,523)
(25,381,971)

188,020,794

(34,852,494)

15,674,900
(41,056,871)

(25,381,971)

18,547,952
(53,400,446)

(34,852,494)

1,345,531
(26,727,502)

(25,381,971)

Slaana O Roternanm

Company Secretary

Y A

Managing Director Director

As per our report of same date.

M. J. Abedin & CO
Chartered Accountants

Dated: 09 April 2012
Place: Dhaka
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ACI Salt Limited
Directors' Report

ACI Salt Limited is a private limited company which was incorporated in 2004 with the Registrar of Joint
Stock Companies, Dhaka, Bangladesh under Companies Act 1994 as a subsidiary of Advanced Chemical
Industries (ACI) Limited with ACI holding 78% shareholding.

Within a short span of time, the company has succeeded in becoming the brand leader in the edible salt
category and turned itself into a profit making company in 2008. The Company is continuing to make
profit despite having production constraints. The Company has taken ambitious plan to expand its
production capacity by setting up a completely new plant. The new plant is expected to go into
production by middle of 2012.

Key Financial Results Taka

Revenue 630,050,331
Gross profit 175,793,716
Operating profit 85,032,700
Profit before tax 80,781,065
Profit after tax 46,878,831

On behalf of the Board

oo 4 =

Dr. Arif Dowla Mr. Syed Alamgir
Managing Director Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012
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Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co

Chartered Accountants

Independent Correspondent Firm to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

ACI Salt Limited
Auditors' Report to the Shareholders

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ACI Salt Limited, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs), Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards
(BFRSs) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSAs). Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of
ACI Salt Limited as at 31 December 2011 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs), Bangladesh Financial
Reporting Standards (BFRSs) and comply with the Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and
regulations.

We also report that:
a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appeared from our examination of those books; and

c) the Company's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income along with
notes 1 to 26 thereto dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account.

Medlot Goralln, /@m

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Dhaka, 25 April 2012 Chartered Accountants

National Office : BTMC Bhaban (8th Floor), 7-9 Karwan Bazar Commercial Area, Dhaka-1215, Bangladesh
Motijheel Office : Ispahani Building (3rd Floor), 14-15 Motijheel Commercial Area, Dhaka 1000, Bangladesh
Chittagong Office : Delwar Bhaban (4th Floor), 104 Agrabad Commercial Area, Chittagong-4100, Bangladesh
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ACI Salt Limited

Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2011

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment - at cost
Accumulated depreciation

Capital work-in-progress
Total non-current assets
Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivable

Advance income tax

Advances, deposits and prepayments

Inter-company receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Total assets
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' equity

Share capital

Retained earnings
Total equity
Liabilities

Long term loan from bank

Deferred tax liability
Current liabilities

Bank overdraft

Short term loan from bank

Long term loan from bank - current portion

Trade payables

Other payables

Inter-company payables

Current tax liability
Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Slaens ) Rotermann

2011 2010
Taka Taka
391,390,804 387,659,328
(169,189,357) (141,421,332)
222,201,447 246,237,996
649,862,399 78,128,585
872,063,846 324,366,581
73,430,792 70,460,621

5,305,571 2,527,922
61,380 3,769,645
2,199,007 -
18,498,307 13,294,861
738,699 141,973
12,256,160 6,085,154
112,489,916 96,280,176
984,553,762 420,646,757
100,000,000 100,000,000
42,202,906 (4,675,925)
142,202,906 95,324,075
41,660,079 56,809,198
36,932,591 5,230,357
1,868,265 4,017,829
499,644,611 50,012,022
15,149,119 3,787,280
5,132,741 919,534
121,562,465 43,507,092
118,200,985 161,039,370
2,200,000 -
763,758,186 263,283,127
984,553,762 420,646,757

Company Secretary

Dhaka, 25 April 2012

Managing Director

e V4

Director
Auditors' report to the shareholders

See annexed report of date

Medlo: Gumall, ,@U

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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ACI Salt Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative, selling and distribution expenses
Results from operating activities

Other income - sale of scraps

Financing cost
Provision for contribution to WPPF
Profit before taxation
Income tax
Current tax expenses

Deferred tax expenses

Profit for the year

Slamna Ve Rotvnan

2011 2010

Taka Taka
630,050,331 654,211,774
(454,256,615) (489,682,281)
175,793,716 164,529,493
(67,210,034) (80,623,478)
108,583,682 83,906,015
500,645 119,629
109,084,327 84,025,644
(24,051,627) (24,999,106)
85,032,700 59,026,538
(4,251,635) (2,951,327)
80,781,065 56,075,211

(2,200,000)
(31,702,234)

(21,525,459)

(33,902,234)

(21,525,459)

46,878,831

34,549,752

e 44

Company Secretary Managing Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012
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Auditors' report to the shareholders
See annexed report of date

Wedlo: Gunalle ,@o

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants




ACI Salt Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Particulars

Balance as per 01 January 2010
Comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year 2010

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year 2010
Transactions directly recognised in equity
Balance as at 01 January 2011

Comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year 2011

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year 2011
Transactions directly recognised in equity
Balance as at 31 December 2011

Share Retained
capital earnings Total
Taka Taka Taka
100,000,000 (39,225,677) 60,774,323
- 34,549,752 34,549,752
: 34,549,75£ 34,549,752-
100,000,00(; (4,675,925_) 95,324,075_
- 46,878,831 46,878,831
: 46,878,83; 46,878,831-
100,000,00(; 42,202,90é 142,202,906-

Slion e Oead Ratemann //ﬁ?

Company Secretary Managing Director

AT

Director
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ACI Salt Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Cash flow from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash received from other income

Cash received/(paid) from/(for):
Purchase of inventory
Operating expenses
Other receivable
Advance, deposits and prepayments

Cash generated from operating activities
Financing cost
Advance income tax paid

Net cash inflows from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipments
Payment of capital work-in-progress

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceed/(repayment) of short term loan from bank
Repayment of long term loan from bank
(Payment)/proceed of inter-company payable/receivable

Net cash from/(used) in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December (D+E)
Closing balance represents:
Cash and cash equivalent
Bank overdraft

2011 2010
Taka Taka
627,272,682 656,618,138

500,645 119,629
627,773,327 656,737,767
(425,269,629) (484,603,474)
(33,839,962) (66,487,061)
3,708,265 (3,760,418)
(5,203,446) (2,380,439)
(460,604,772) (557,231,392)
167,168,555 99,506,375
(24,051,627) (24,999,106)
(2,199,007) -
(26,250,634) (24,999,106)
140,917,921 74,507,269
(3,731,476) (899,533)
(531,276,073) (78,128,585)
(535,007,549) (79,028,118)
449,632,589 (139,892,165)
(3,787,280) -
(43,435,111) 109,737,294
402,410,198 (30,154,871)
8,320,570 (34,675,720)
2,067,325 36,743,045
10,387,895 2,067,325
12,256,160 6,085,154
(1,868,265) (4,017,829)
10,387,895 2,067,325

=Y
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ACI Motors Limited
Directors' Report

ACI Motors Limited is a private limited company incorporated in 2007 with the Registrar of Joint Stock
Companies, Dhaka, Bangladesh under Companies Act 1994 as a subsidiary of Advanced Chemical
Industries (ACI) Limited with ACI holds 71% shareholding. The company was established with an
objective to market high quality agri-machineries and light commercial vehicles.

ACI Motors markets various models of 'Sonalika' tractors and currently it is number 3 brand in tractors
category. The Company has expanded its business by introducing new agriculture equipment like
'harvester and trans-planter'. It has also taken ambitious plan to market other products like diesel
engine and pumps and also considering manufacturing spare parts for the use of agriculture

machineries.

Key Financial Results Taka
Revenue 1,562,888,795
Gross profit 253,113,819
Operating profit 119,722,679
Profit before tax 119,722,679
Profit after tax 70,383,458

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Arif Dowla Dr. F H Ansarey
Director Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012
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w %ﬁ w ﬁ ‘ﬂE mg Bhuiyan Mansion
(2nd floor), Dhaka-1000

ASHRAFUL HAQUE NABI & CO. Tel: 9559682, 9569620

E-mail: ashrafulhaquenabi@yahoo.com
Chartered Accountants d @y

ACI Motors Limited
Auditors' Report to the Shareowners

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ACI Motors Limited which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 31 December, 2011 and the related statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in shareholders' equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other relevant explanatory notes thereon.

Management's responsibility for the financial statement:

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs) and for such internal control as
management determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on auditing (BSAs). Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion:

In our opinion, the financial statements prepared in accordance with the Bangladesh Accounting Standards
(BASs) and the Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs), give a true and fair view of the state of
the financial position of ACI Motors Limited as at 31 December, 2011 and the results of its financial

performance and its cash flows for the year then ended and comply with the Companies Act, 1994, and other
applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appeared from our examination of those books;

c) the company's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income along with the
annexed notes 1 to 25 dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of accounts; and

d) the expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Company's businesses.

%/7/4%4// it

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Dhaka, 21 March 2012 Chartered Accountants
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ACI Motors Limited

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Taka Taka
Assets
Non- current assets:
Property, plant and equipment- at cost 10,697,045 5,428,799
Accumulated depreciation (3,167,516) (1,887,504)
7,529,529 3,541,295
Current assets
Inventories 139,785,451 70,615,561
Advances, deposits and prepayments 31,258,250 29,398,472
Trade receivable 985,478,071 714,926,338
Other receivable - 2,532,155
Advance income tax 12,835,945 42,364,106
Cash and bank balance 16,588,899 146,779
Total current assets 1,185,946,616 859,983,411
Total assets 1,193,476,145 863,524,706
Equity:
Share capital 1,000,000 1,000,000
Retained earnings 158,786,281 88,402,824
Total equity 159,786,281 89,402,824
Liability:
Long term bank loan 52,860,580 12,395,549
Deferred tax liability 349,249 -
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft 24,763,413 29,522,692
Short term bank loan 334,867,198 146,891,511
Long term bank loan-current portion 124,752,703 22,971,668
Other payable 30,215,845 63,288,690
Inter-company liabilities 12,515,082 220,375,274
Trade payable 406,497,939 219,095,775
Provision for tax 46,867,855 59,580,723
Total current liabilities 980,480,035 761,726,333
Total liabilities 1,033,689,864 774,121,882
Total equity and liabilities 1,193,476,145 863,524,706
Company Secretary Director Director
Auditors' Report to the Shareowners
See annexed report of date.
Y
Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Dhaka, 21 March 2012 Chartered Accountants
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ACI Motors Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010

Taka Taka
Revenue 1,562,888,795 958,045,653
Cost of Sales (1,309,774,976) (753,516,788)
Gross profit 253,113,819 204,528,865
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses (142,879,660) (119,251,004)
Operating profit 110,234,159 85,277,861
Other income 12,370,812 3,373,518
Profit before interest & tax 122,604,971 88,651,379
Financing cost (2,882,293) (16,439,753)
Profit before income tax 119,722,678 72,211,626

Income tax expenses

Current tax expenses (48,989,972) (28,609,600)
Deferred tax expenses (349,249) -
(49,339,221) (28,609,600)
Net profit after tax 70,383,457 43,602,026
Other comprehensive income = -
Total comprehensive income for the year 70,383,457 43,602,026

Dl Rt S G

Company Secretary Director Director

Auditors' Report to the Shareowners
See annexed report of date.

Y et

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.

Dhaka, 21 March 2012 Chartered Accountants
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ACI Motors Limited
Statement of Changes in Shareowners' Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Particulars

Balance as at 1 January 2010

Net profit for the year
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transaction with owners of the Company, recognized directly in equity
Balance as at 31 December 2010

Net profit for the year
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transaction with owners of the Company, recognized directly in equity
Balance as at 31 December 2011

Share Retained

capital earnings _Total

Taka Taka. Taka

1,000,000 44,800,798 45,800,798
- 43,602,026 43,602,026
: 43,602,026- 43,602,026-

1,000,00(; 88,402,824; 89,402,824;
- 70,383,457 70,383,457
: 70,383,457- 70,383,457-

1,000,00(; 158,786,281- 159,786,281-

Dliene O Rk O s o

Company Secretary Director

Dhaka, 21 March 2012

Director

Auditors' Report to the Shareowners

See annexed report of date.

Y
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Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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B)

%)

D)
E)
F)

ACI Motors Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash receipts from other income

Cash paid for:

Purchase of inventory

Operating expenses

Financing cost

Advances, deposit and prepayments
Advance income tax

Net cash flow used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Long term bank loan received

Short term bank loan received

Receipt / (Payments) inter-company

Net cash flows provided by financing activities

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from total activities (A+B+C)
Opening balance
Closing balance (D+E)

Closing balance represents:

Page 130

Cash in hand and at bank
Bank overdraft

Annual Report 2011

2011 2010
Taka Taka
1,292,337,063 767,199,526

14,902,967 2,671,459
1,307,240,030 769,870,985
(1,191,542,702) (642,930,785)
(174,672,493) (81,042,367)
(2,882,293) (16,439,753)
(1,859,779) (11,566,025)
(32,174,679) (41,174,492)
(1,403,131,946) (793,153,422)
(95,891,916) (23,282,437)
(5,268,246) (694,500)
(5,268,246) (694,500)
142,246,066 (201,054,364)
187,975,687 76,411,115
(207,860,192) 108,194,500
122,361,561 (16,448,749)
21,201,399 (40,425,686)
(29,375,913) 11,049,773
(8,174,514) (29,375,913)
16,588,899 146,779
(24,763,413) (29,522,692)
(8,174,514) (29,375,913)




Creative Communication Limited
Directors' Report

Creative Communication Limited is a private limited company incorporated in 2007 with the Registrar of
Joint Stock Companies, Dhaka, Bangladesh under Companies Act 1994 as a subsidiary of Advanced
Chemical Industries (ACI) Limited with 60% shareholding. The company is an integrated communication
house staffed by dedicated and pragmatic specialists working as a team. As a forward-thinking
marketing and advertising firm, Creative Communication Limited is a solid partner at both strategic and
tactical levels and has developed several partnerships with the most state-of-the-art players in
numerous fields.

The principal business of the Company is to provide result-oriented advertisement, public relations and
complete corporate communication solutions and has long experience in handling outdoors, events and
project management along with strong rapport in the electronic and press media.

Key Financial Results Taka

Revenue 24,526,058
Gross Profit 11,124,078
Profit before tax 10,413,162
Profit after tax 5,859,079

On behalf of the Board

N7 A e

Dr. Arif Dowla Bilkis Mansoor
Director Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012
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ASHRAFUL HAQUE NABI & CO. Tel: 9559682, 9569620

E-mail: ashrafulhaquenabi@yahoo.com
Chartered Accountants . @y

Auditors' Report to the Shareholders of
Creative Communication Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Creative Communication Limited which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December, 2011 and the related statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in shareholders equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other relevant explanatory notes
thereon.

Management's responsibility for the financial statement:

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs) and for such internal control as
management determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on auditing (BSAs). Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion:

In our opinion, the financial statements prepared in accordance with the Bangladesh Accounting
Standards (BASs) and the Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs), give a true and fair view
of the state of the financial position of Creative Communication Limited as at 31 December, 2011 and
the results of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended and comply with the
Companies Act, 1994, and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:
a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appeared from our examination of those books;

c) the company's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income along with
the annexed notes 1 to 15 dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of accounts; and

d) the expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Company's businesses. /

Y

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Dhaka, 21 March 2012 Chartered Accountants
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Creative Communication Limited

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Taka Taka
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3,024,857 2,810,857
Accumulated depreciation (866,268) (377,983)
2,158,589 2,432,874
Current assets :
Advance, deposit and prepayments 10,000 37,200
Trade receivables 10,515,500 5,965,590
Advance income tax 905,070 1,414,938
Inter-company receivable 17,164,620 13,101,792
28,595,190 20,519,520
Total assets 30,753,779 22,952,394
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' equity :
Share capital 1,000,000 1,000,000
Retained earnings 20,292,615 14,433,536
21,292,615 15,433,536
Liability
Deferred tax liabilities 327,843 172,819
Non-current liabilities 327,843 172,819
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft 1,152,183 3,300,496
Trade paybles 207,000 -
Other paybales 3,738,908 857,393
Current tax liability 4,035,230 3,188,150
9,133,321 7,346,039
Total liabilities 9,461,164 7,518,858
Total equity and liabilities 30,753,779 22,952,394

Director Director Company Secretary

Auditors' Report to the Shareowners
See annexed report of date.

W/&%/M/ i

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Dhaka, 21 March 2012
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Creative Communication Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Revenue

Cost of service

Gross profit

Administrative & selling expenses
Profit before income tax
Income tax

Current tax expenses

Deferred tax expense

Net profit after tax
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

N7

© g

Managing Director Director

Dhaka, 21 March 2012
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2011 2010

Taka Taka
24,526,058 19,886,301
(13,401,980) (10,714,658)
11,124,078 9,171,643
(710,916) (725,537)
10,413,162 8,446,106
(4,399,059) (3,188,150)
(155,024) (172,819)
(4,554,083) (3,360,969)
5,859,079 5,085,137
5,859,079 5,085,137

Company Secretary

Auditors' Report to the Shareholders
See annexed report of date.

e b fo

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
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Creative Communication Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Particulars

Balance as at 1 January 2010

Net profit after tax for the year

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transaction with owners of the company, recognised deriectly in equity
Balance as at 31 December 2010

Net profit after tax for the year

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transaction with owners of the company, recognised deriectly in equity
Balance as at 31 December 2011

Share Retained
capital earnings Total
Taka Taka Taka
1,000,000 9,348,399 10,348,399
- 5,085,137 5,085,137
- 5,085,137 5,085,137

1,000,000 14,433,536 15,433,536

- 5,859,079 5,859,079

- 5,859,079 5,859,079

1,000,000 20,292,615 21,292,615

AR =

Managing Director Director

Dhaka, 21 March 2012

Sl W Rotrmann

Company Secretary

Auditors' Report to the Shareowners
See annexed report of date.
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Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Creative Communication Limited

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from income

Cash paid for:

Operating expenses

Income tax

Advances, deposits and prepayments

Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Inter-company debts paid

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalent at 1 January 2011

Cash and cash equivalent at 31 December 2011 (D+E)

Closing balance represents:

Page 136

Bank overdraft
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2011 2010
Taka Taka

19,976,148 | 15,423,790

19,976,148 15,423,790

(10,536,096)

(12,258,762)

(3,042,111) (3,287,192)
27,200 87,800
(13,551,007) (15,458,154)
6,425,141 (34,364)
(214,000) (1,989,987)
(214,000) (1,989,987)
(4,062,828) (1,276,145)
(4,062,828) (1,276,145)
2,148,313 (3,300,496)
(3,300,496) -
(1,152,183) (3,300,496)
(1,152,183) (3,300,496)
(1,152,183) (3,300,496)
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Premiaflex Plastics Limited
Directors' Report

Premiaflex Plastics Limited is a private Limited company incorporated in 2007 with the Registrar of Joint
Stock Companies, Dhaka, Bangladesh under Companies Act 1994 having 80% shares held by Advanced
Chemical Industries Limited. The principal activities of the company are manufacturing and marketing of
plastic products, flexible printing and doing other ancillary business associated with plastic and flexible
printing.

The factory of the company is located at Sreepur, Gazipur which has started its operation in the later
part of 2008. The Company became profitable within a short span of time of going into operation. The
company has recently gone into further expansion to cater for the larger section of customers. In the
year 2011, the company enjoyed significant growth in turnover (71%) which also resulted positively in
its bottom line (49%). The company is planning to go for further expansion to meet the increasing
demand of the customers. It is expected that the company will be able to keep up its good performance
in the years to come.

Key Financial Results Taka

Revenue 1,145,258,047
Gross profit 178,961,902
Operating profit 58,398,600
Profit before tax 55,478,670
Profit after tax 34,333,918

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Arif Dowla Dr. F H Ansarey
Director Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012
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6, Motijheel Com. Area.
W w @ ﬁ a@ @Tg Bhuiyan Mansion
(2nd floor), Dhaka-1000

ASHRAFUL HAQUE NABI & CO. Tel: 9559682, 9569620

E-mail: ashrafulhaquenabi@yahoo.com
Chartered Accountants . @y

Premiaflex Plastics Limited
Auditors’' Report to the Shareowners

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Premiaflex Plastics Limited which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December, 2011 and the related statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in shareholders equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other relevant explanatory notes thereon.

Management's responsibility for the financial statement:

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs) and for such internal control as
management determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on auditing (BSAs). Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion:

In our opinion, the financial statements prepared in accordance with the Bangladesh Accounting Standards
(BASs) and the Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs), give a true and fair view of the state of
the financial position of Premiaflex Plastics Limited as at 31 December, 2011 and the results of its financial

performance and its cash flows for the year then ended and comply with the Companies Act, 1994, and other
applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appeared from our examination of those books;

c) the Company's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income along with the
annexed notes 1 to 23 dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of accounts; and

d) the expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Company's businesses.

M/&%w/ aad

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Dhaka, 28 February 2012 Chartered Accountants
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Premiaflex Plastics Limited

Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Taka Taka
Assets
Property, plant and equipment-at cost 509,076,090 385,507,108
Accumulated depreciation (89,200,722) (53,155,639)
419,875,368 332,351,469
Capital work-in-progress = 9,725,971
Total non-Current assets 419,875,368 342,077,440
Current assets
Inventories 356,248,999 249,666,434
Advances, deposits and prepayments 11,986,671 20,439,482
Trade receivable 350,327,379 202,186,829
Advance income tax 57,843,025 12,238,007
Receivable from inter-company 6,067,428 12,675,481
Cash and bank balance 13,699,945 1,704,028
Total current assets 796,173,447 498,910,261
Total assets 1,216,048,815 840,987,701
Equity
Share capital 40,000,000 40,000,000
Retained earnings 55,313,633 20,979,715
Total equity 95,313,633 60,979,715
Liability
Long term bank loan 77,647,265 118,349,546
Deferred tax liability 34,278,739 13,133,987
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft 31,474,809 5,247,311
Short term bank loan 342,136,959 212,406,042
Long term bank loan-current portion 44,801,252 47,117,246
Inter-company liabilities 566,438,472 369,425,920
Trade payables 10,579,688 4,778,545
Other payables 13,377,997 9,549,389
Total current liabilities 1,008,809,178 648,524,453
Total liabilities 1,120,735,182 780,007,986
Total equity and liabilities 1,216,048,815 840,987,701

Slona Ve Rk e M7 o

Company Secretary

Dhaka, 28 February 2012

Director

Director

Auditors' Report to the Shareowners
See annexed report of date.

P oo B

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Premiaflex Plastics Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
_Taka _Taka
Revenue 1,145,258,047 668,404,718
Cost of sales (966,296,145) (554,186,125)
Gross profit 178,961,902 114,218,593
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses (18,222,149) (12,547,071)
Operating profit 160,739,752 101,671,522
Other income 6,310,000 3,900,000
167,049,752 105,571,522
Financing cost (108,651,152) (66,387,081)
58,398,600 39,184,441
Provision for contribution to WPPF (2,919,930) (1,959,222)
Profit before income tax 55,478,670 37,225,219
Income tax expenses
Deferred tax expenses ‘ (21,144,752) ‘ ‘ (14,225,806)‘
(21,144,752) (14,225,806)
Net profit after tax 34,333,918 22,999,413
Other comprehensive income = -
Total comprehensive income for the year 34,333,918 22,999,413

Dl Rt y o

Company Secretary Director Director

Auditors' Report to the Shareowners
See annexed report of date.

Jf gt B/

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Dhaka, 28 February 2012 Chartered Accountants
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Premiaflex Plastics Limited
Statement of changes in Shareholders' Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Particulars

Balance as at 01 January 2010

Net profit after tax for the year

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transaction with owners of the company, recognized directly in equity
Balance as at 31 December 2010

Net profit after tax for the year

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transaction with owners of the company, recognized directly in equity
Balance as at 31 December 2011

Share Retained
capital earnings Total
Taka Taka Taka
40,000,000 (2,019,698) 37,980,302
- 22,999,413 22,999,413
- 22,999,413 22,999,413
40,000,000 20,979,715 60,979,715
- 34,333,918 34,333,918
- 34,333,918 34,333,918
40,000,000 55,313,633 95,313,633

Dl Rt y S

Company Secretary Director

Dhaka, 28 February 2012

Auditors' Report to the Shareowners
See annexed report of date.

Y

Director
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Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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C)

D)
E)

F)
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Premiaflex Plastics Limited

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash receipts from other income

Cash paid for:

Purchase of inventory

Operating expenses

Receipts from/(payments to) other payables
Payments for advances, deposits and prepayments
Income tax

Value Added Tax (VAT)

Financing cost

Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Payments for capital work-in-progress

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Receipts from inter-company

Short term bank loan received

Long term bank loan (paid)/ received

Net cash flows provided by financing activities

Net cash inflows/ (outflows) from total activities (A+B+C)
Opening balance

Closing balance (D+E)

Closing Balance represents:

Cash in hand and at bank
Bank overdraft

Annual Report 2011

2011 2010
Taka Taka
997,117,497 611,933,306

6,310,000 4,661,852
1,003,427,497 616,595,158
(1,031,063,772) (700,601,113)
(18,190,861) (10,931,361)
908,678 (95,475,499)
(4,032,658) (1,861,136)
(45,605,018) (7,364,764)
12,485,469 (75,644,579)
(108,651,152) (66,387,081)
(1,194,149,314) (958,265,533)
(190,721,817) (341,670,375)
(15,094,600) (250,402)
(98,748,411) (11,378,140)
(113,843,011) (11,628,542)
203,620,605 170,402,377
129,730,917 154,972,564
(43,018,275) 57,418,783
290,333,247 382,793,724
(14,231,581) 29,494,807
(3,543,283) (33,038,090)
(17,774,864) (3,543,283)
13,699,945 1,704,028
(31,474,809) (5,247,311)
(17,774,864) (3,543,283)
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ACI Agrochemicals Limited
Directors' Report

ACI Agrochemicals Limited is a private limited company which was incorporated in 2006 with the
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies, Dhaka, Bangladesh under Companies Act 1994 as a subsidiary with
90% shares owned by Advanced Chemical Industries (ACI) Limited.

The principal activities of the company are formulating and packaging of pesticides, fertilizer, plant
nutrient products. The company is yet to start its operation.

Key Financial Results
Revenue
Expenses

Loss after tax

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Arif Dowla
Managing Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012

Taka

(30,565)

(30,565)

Dr. F H Ansarey
Director
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Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ACI Agrochemicals Limited
Auditors' Report to the Shareowners

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of ACI Agrochemicals Limited as at
31December 2011 and the related statement of comprehensive income and notes to the accounts for
the year then ended. The preparation of these financial statements is the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSAs). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements, prepared in accordance with Bangladesh
Accounting Standards (BASs), give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as of 31
December 2011 and of the results of its operations for the year then ended and comply with the
Companies Act 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appeared from our examination of those books;

c) the Company's statement of financial position dealt with by the report are in agreement with the
books of accounts;

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company's business; and

e) there was no commercial activities during the period.

.

Shiraz Khan Basak & CO.
Dhaka, 25 February 2012 Chartered Accountants
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ACI Agrochemicals Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2011

Assets
Current assets

Cash in hand
Equity and liabilities

Share capital
Accumulated loss

Current liabilities
Current Account with ACI Limited
Audit fee payable

Slaana Oad Retrnann

2011 2010

Taka Taka
20,000 20,000
(176,227) (145,662)
(156,227) (125,662)
151,227 115,662
5,000 10,000
156,227 125,662

Company Secretary

Dhaka, 25 February 2012

Managing Director Director

Auditors' Report to the Shareowners
See annexed report of date.

Q.

Shiraz Khan Basak & CO.
Chartered Accountants
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ACI Agrochemicals Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Revenue

Less expenses:
Bank Charge
Office stationery
Travelling & Conv
Audit Fee
Govt tax & license fee

Net loss

Slhanne Obad Ratirnann

2011 2010

Taka Taka
- 345
6,310 -
5,450 5,000
18,805 28,425
30,565 33,770
(30,565) (33,770)

Company Secretary

Dhaka, 25 February 2012
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Managing Director Director

Auditors' Report to the Shareowners
See annexed report of date.

Q.

Shiraz Khan Basak & CO.
Chartered Accountants
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Flyban Insecticides Limited
Directors' Report

Flyban Insecticides Limited is a private limited company which was incorporated in 1991 with the
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies, Dhaka, Bangladesh under Companies Act 1994 as a subsidiary with
51% shares owned by Advanced Chemical Industries (ACI) Limited.

The company has been dormant for last ten years. The principal business of the company was
manufacturing and marketing of Mosquito coils.

Key Financial Results
Revenue
Expenses

Loss after tax

On behalf of the Board

Dr. F H Ansarey
Managing Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012

Taka

(7,970)

(7,970)

Slianna Oed Ratroan

Sheema Abed Rahman
Director
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Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Flyban Insecticides Limited
Auditors' Report to the Shareowners

We have audited the statement of financial position of Flyban Insecticides Limited as at 31December
2011 and the related statement of comprehensive Income and notes to the accounts for the year then
ended. The preparation of these financial statements is the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSAs). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements, prepared in accordance with Bangladesh
Accounting Standards (BASs), give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as of 31
December 2011 and of the results of its operations for the year then ended and comply with the
Companies Act 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appeared from our examination of those books;

c) the Company's statement of financial position dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books
of accounts;

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company's business; and

e) there was no commercial activities during the period.
QOOU”

Shiraz Khan Basak & CO.
Dhaka, 25 February 2012 Chartered Accountants
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Flyban Insecticides Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Taka Taka
Assets
Property, plant and equipment:
At cost 6,349,299 6,349,299
Total asset : 6,349,299 6,349,299
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' equity:
Share capital 5,000,000 5,000,000
Accumulated loss (461,178) (453,208)
4,538,822 4,546,792
Current liabilities:
Current account with ACI Limited 999,862 987,342
Other liabilities 810,615 815,165
1,810,477 1,802,507
6,349,299 6,349,299

Sl Ol Rt > ldgssenr e

Sheema Abed Rahman Dr. F H Ansarey
Director & Company Secretary Managing Director

As per our report of same date

Q.

Shiraz Khan Basak & CO.
Dhaka, 25 February 2012 Chartered Accountants
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Flyban Insecticides Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Revenue
Less: expenses

Rent rates and taxes
Audit fee

Net loss

Slene O Ratrann

Sheema Abed Rahman

for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Taka Taka
2,070 2,028
5,900 5,000
7,970 7,028
(7,970) (7,028)

Director & Company Secretary

Dhaka, 25 February 2012
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Dr. F H Ansarey
Managing Director

As per our report of same date

Q.

Shiraz Khan Basak & CO.
Chartered Accountants
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Apex Leathercraft Limited
Directors' Report

Apex Leathercraft Limited is a private limited company incorporated in 1990 with the Registrar of Joint
Stock Companies, Dhaka, Bangladesh under Companies Act 1994 having 100% shares owned by
Advanced Chemical Industries Limited (ACI). The company is in the business of owning property and
letting them on rents to its Parent, ACI Limited.

Key Financial Results
Revenue
Expenses

Loss before tax

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Arif Dowla
Managing Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012

Taka

9,912,000
(5,361,890)

(411,346)

=

Mr. Syed Alamgir

Director
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M.J. ABEDIN & CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Telephone Off : 8629771, 8612203 National Plaza (3rd Floor)
Fax 1 (880-2) 8617681 109, Bir Uttam C.R. Datta Road,
Res 1 8631678 Dhaka-1205
E-mail : mjabedin@bangla.net
mjabedinbd@gmail.com

Apex Leathercraft Limited
Auditors’' Report to the Shareholders

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Apex Leathercraft Limited which comprise statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2011 and statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
explanatory notes thereto.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs), and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSAs). Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards
(BFRSs), give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as on 31 December 2011 and of the results of
its operations and its cash flow for the year then ended and comply with the Companies Act 1994 and other
applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

a. we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared
from our examination of those books;

c. Company's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income together with the annexed
notes 1 to8 dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and

d. the expenditure incurred and payments made were for the purposes of the Company's business.

Date: 9 April 2012 M. J. ABEDIN & CO.
Place: Dhaka Chartered Accountants
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Apex Leathercraft Limited

Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2011

2011 2010

Taka Taka
Assets
Investment property 319,807,700 323,455,648
Current assets 7,373,650 1,856,751
Advance income tax 2,349,023 1,853,423
Advance Holding tax 314,674 -
Cash at Bank 4,709,953 3,328
Security deposit 210,000 210,000
Total assets 327,391,350 325,522,399
Capital And Liabilities
Shareholders' equity 221,413,993 221,825,339
Share capital 37,010,000 37,010,000
Share money deposit 25,325,000 25,325,000
Accumulated profit 159,078,993 159,490,339
Loan from ACI Limited (Unsecured)
Non interest bearing 55,416,328 55,416,328
Interest bearing 50,498,745 48,218,448
Current liabilities 62,284 62,284
Accrued expenses 20,900 20,900
Income tax payable 41,384 41,384
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 327,391,350 325,522,399

Managing Director Director Company Secretary

As per our separate report of even date annexed.
M. J. ABEDIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 9 April 2012
Place: Dhaka
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Apex Leathercraft Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Taka Taka
Revenue from
Investment property rentals 9,912,000 9,912,000
Less: Expenses
Municipal and land revenue tax 1,019,058 1,127,338
Audit fee 20,900 20,900
Bank Charge 1,575 -
Insurance premium 537,409 434,605
Other expenses 135,000 70,220
(1,713,942) (1,653,063)
Change in fair value of investment property (3,647,948) (3,891,639)
Profit before interest and tax 4,550,110 4,367,298
Financing cost (4,961,456) (5,172,896)
Loss before tax (411,346) (805,598)
Provision for tax - -
Net loss after tax transferred
to statement of changes in equity (411,346) (805,598)
W //% Slhanna Wead Retram

Managing Director Director

Company Secretary

As per our separate report of even date annexed.
M. J. ABEDIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 9 April 2012
Place: Dhaka
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Apex Leathercraft Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Particulars

Share Share Money  Accumulated

capital deposit Profit/(loss) Total

Taka Taka Taka Taka
Opening balance at 1st January, 2010 37,010,000 25,325,000 160,295,937 222,630,937
Net loss for the year 2010 - - (805,598) (805,598)
As at 31st December 2010 37,010,000 25,325,000 159,490,339 221,825,339
Net loss for the year 2011 - - (411,346) (411,346)
As at 31st December 2011 37,010,000 25,325,000 159,078,993 221,413,993

y 2 =P T Y

Managing Director Director Company Secretary

As per our separate report of even date annexed.
Date: 9 April 2012 M. J. ABEDIN & CO.
Place: Dhaka Chartered Accountants
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Apex Leathercraft Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from customer
Payment of cost & expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities
B. Cash flows from financing activities

Interest bearing loan received / (repaid)

Net cash flows from financing activities
C. Net cash flow from total activities (A+B)

Cash balance as at 01 January

Cash balance as at 31 December

P A

2011 2010

Taka Taka
9,912,000 9,912,000
(7,485,672) (7,671,359)
2,426,328 2,240,641
2,280,297 (2,240,641)
2,280,297 (2,240,641)
4,706,625 -
3,328 3,328
4,709,953 3,328

Managing Director Director

Company Secretary

As per our separate report of even date annexed.
M. J. ABEDIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 9 April 2012
Place: Dhaka
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ACI Edible Oils Limited
Directors' Report

ACI Edible Oils Limited was incorporated on 13 December 2010 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1994 having 85% shares owned by Advanced Chemical Industries Limited (ACI). The
main objective of the Company is to carry out the business of manufacturing and trading of all kinds of
crude and refined edible oils, edible fats, food grade chemicals, cleansing materials, preservatives and
other allied food products. The company has started its initial operation in this year in a limited scale
and hopeful to enhance its portfolio considering that the regulatory and other conditions becomes

favorable.

Key Financial Results
Revenue

Operating expenses
Loss before tax

Loss after tax

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Arif Dowla
Managing Director

Dhaka, 25 April 2012

Taka

30,418,750
(765,163)
(617,622)

(386,014)

=

Mr. Syed Alamgir
Director

Annual Report 2011 Page 157




6, Motijheel Com. Area.
AT T 23 QA GG (P bien vansion
(2nd floor), Dhaka-1000

ASHRAFUL HAQUE NABI & CO. Tel: 9559682, 9569620

E-mail: ashrafulhaquenabi@yahoo.com
Chartered Accountants E @y

Auditors' Report to the Shareholders of
ACI Edible Oils Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ACI Edible Oils Limited which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 31 December, 2011 and the related statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in shareholders equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other relevant explanatory notes thereon.

Management's responsibility for the financial statement:

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs) and for such internal control as management determines necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on auditing (BSAs). Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion:

In our opinion, the financial statements prepared in accordance with the Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs)
and the Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs), give a true and fair view of the state of the financial

position of ACI Edible Qils Limited as at 31 December, 2011 and the results of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended and comply with the Companies Act, 1994, and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appeared from our examination of those books;

c) the Company's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income along with the
annexed notes 1 to 13 dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of accounts; and

d) the expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Company's businesses.

e b o

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Dhaka, 21 March 2012 Chartered Accountants

Page 158 Annual Report 2011




ACI Edible Oils Limited
Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2011

Non-current assets :
Deferred tax assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets :

Inventories

Advances, deposits and prepayments
Accounts receivable

Receivable from inter-company (ACI Ltd.)
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Shareholders' equity:
Share capital
Accumulated loss

Current liabilities:
Trade payables

Other payables
Inter-company liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

SIS

Director Director

Dhaka, 21 March 2012

2011
Taka

231,608
231,608

2,568,550
200,000
7,684,790
10,497,600
1,789,670
22,740,610
22,972,218

10,000,000
(386,014)
9,613,986

255,664
174,739
12,927,829
13,358,232

22,972,218

Slianna M Raternn

Company Secretary

Auditors' report to the shareholders
See annexed report of date

B Dz

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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ACI Edible Oils Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Revenue

Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Operating loss
Financing cost
Other income

Provision for contribution to WPPF
Net loss before tax

Income tax expenses:
Deferred tax income

Net loss after tax

Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss

N7

Director

Dhaka, 21 March 2012
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2011
Taka

30,418,750
(29,726,620)
692,130
(765,163)
(73,033)
(566,639)
22,050
(617,622)

(617,622)

| 231,608 |
231,608
(386,014)

(386,014)

//&& Sl O Rt

Director Company Secretary

Auditors' report to the shareholders
See annexed report of date

Y oz

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Chartered Accountants




ACI Edible Oils Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Particulars

Balance at 1 January 2011

Net loss for the year 2011
Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Transactions with owners of the company,recognised directly in equity

Balance at 31 December 2011

Share Accumulated

capital Loss Total

10,000,000 - 10,000,000
- (386,014) (386,014)
- (386,014) (386,014)

10,000,000 (386,014) 9,613,986

S

Director Director

Dhaka, 21 March 2012

Slianna M Radroan

Company Secretary

Auditors' report to the shareholders
See annexed report of date

e Pz

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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ACI Edible Oils Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011
Taka
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customer 22,733,960
Cash received from other income 22,050
22,756,010

Cash paid for :

Purchase and production (32,039,506)
Operating expenses (590,424)
Financing cost (566,639)
Advance, deposits and prepayments (200,000)

Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

(33,396,569)

(10,640,559)

Inter-company debts received 2,430,229
Share capital 10,000,000
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 12,430,229
Net cash flow from all activities (A+B) 1,789,670
Cash and bank balances at the beginning of the year -
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year 1,789,670
Closing balance represents :
Cash in hand and at bank 1,789,670
1,789,670
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Corporate Directory

Registered Office Share Office

ACI Centre 9 Motijheel C/A

245 Tejgaon Industrial Area Dhaka 1000

Dhaka 1208 Phone : (8802) 9556254
Phone : (8802) 8878603 Fax : (8802) 9565257

Fax : (8802) 8878626 & 8878619

Manufacturing Facilities

1. Pharmaceuticals Plant 5. ACI Pure Flour Limited
7 Hajiganj Road, Narayanganj 6/3 Dewli Chowrapara
Phone : (8802)7630496, 7630525, 7630493 Bondor, Narayanganj
Fax : (8802) 7630524 Phone: 7661419

Fax : 7661420
2. ACI Formulations Plant

Rajabari, Sreepur, Gazipur 6. ACI Napkin Plant
Phone : (8802) 0682555135 Nil Nagar, Konabari
Fax : (8802) 9201070 Gazipur

Phone: 01730007780
3. ACI Salt Limited

Murapara, Rupganj, Narayanganj 7. Premiaflex Plastics Limited
Phone : (8802) 7650017 Kewa Poschim Khondo,
Fax : (8802) 7650028 Mouna, Sreepur, Gazipur

Phone : 01730028466
4. ACI Foods Limited
Kutirchar, Bhadraghat
Kamarkhand, Sirajgonj
PABX : 01961559762
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ALY

Registered Office
ACI Centre, 245 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka 1208

PROXY FORM

I/We

of

being a Member of Advanced Chemical Industries Limited, hereby appoint

of

whose signature is appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf
at the 39th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 12 June 2012 at 9:00 a.m.

and/or at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hands this dayof ~ 2012.
Signature on
Tk. 10
Revenue Stamp
(Signature of the Proxy) (Signature of the Shareowner)

Registered Folio / BO ID No.
No. of Shares held

Note : A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on his/her behalf. The Proxy Form, duly completed, must be deposited at the
Share Office of the Company at 9 Motijheel C/A, Dhaka 1000, not later than 48 hours before

the time fixed for the meeting.
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@ Quality Policy

One of our important vision is to provide products and
services of high and consistent quality, ensuring value
for money to our customers.

To attain the Vision ACI will:

® Aim to achieve business excellence by
understanding, accepting, meeting and exceeding
customer expectations.

® Follow International Standards on Quality
Management System to ensure consistent quality of
products and services to achieve customer
satisfaction. ACI will also meet all national and
regulatory requirements relating to its current
businesses and ensure that current Good
Manufacturing Practice (cGMP) as recommended by
World Health Organisation is followed for its
pharmaceutical operations and conform to all other
guidelines and best practices relating to its other
businesses.

® Commit itself to quality as the prime consideration in
all its business decisions. All employees of ACI follow
documented procedures to ensure compliance with
quality standards.

® Develop a pool of human resources of the Company
to their full potential through regular training and
participation in seeking continuous improvement of
the Quality Management System.
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@ Environmental Policy

ACI is committed to formulate and conduct all its
operations in an environmentally friendly manner,
ensuring continual improvement in the utilisation of
resources and prevention of pollution or degradation of
the environment.

In pursuit of this Goal, ACI will:

® Comply with all local and national legislations and
regulations.

@ Conserve natural resources like water and energy for
sustainable development, and adopt environmentally
safe processes.

® Ensure appropriate treatment of all effluents prior to
discharge.

® Ensure appropriate communication with internal and
external interested parties on environmental issues.

® (Create awareness on environmental issues among
our employees and contractors.

® Ensure waste management in an environmentally
responsible manner through continuous upgradation
of technology.

@ Safety, Health and
Environment (SHE) Policy

ACI is committed to conduct all its operations in a
manner that is protective of the environment, health
and safety of employees, customers and the community.
To this end, the company has already obtained ISO
14001 Certification for Environmental Management
System. ACI will provide the resources to educate and
involve every individual in the Company in achieving this
objective. In fulfillment of this commitment, we shall
maintain a continuing effort to adhere to the following
principles.

Principles

1 We believe that all accidents, incidents and work-
related ill health are preventable and with this aim in
mind we will manage our businesses. We will deploy
adequate resources for the prevention and control of
accident.

2 We will investigate all workplace accidents and
illnesses in order to promptly correct any unsafe
conditions or practices, and to prevent repetition of
these occurrences.

3 We will fully comply with all the national regulations
but in addition will set our own stringent internal
corporate standards on matters relating to safety,
health and the environment, and endeavour to
strictly adhere to them.

4 We will continue to improve communication
and exchange views with employees, employee
representatives, customers, contractors, suppliers,
neighbours and any other individual or organisation
affected by our business.

5 We will integrate SHE considerations into business
planning and decision-making.

6 We will continue to innovate in order to improve our
products and processes so that their effects on
safety, health and the environment are reduced.

7 We will increase shareowners' value through SHE
excellence.
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